
 

 

County Buildings, Stafford 
DDI (01785) 276136 

Please ask for Julie Roberts 
Email: julie.roberts@staffordshire.gov.uk 

 

 
 
 
Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee 
 
Tuesday, 14 November 2017 
10.00 am 

Oak Room, County Buildings, Stafford 
 
NB. Members are requested to ensure that their Laptops/Tablets are fully charged 
before the meeting 

John Tradewell 
Director of Strategy, Governance and Change 

6 November 2017 
 

 
A G E N D A 

 
 

1.  Apologies  
   
2.  Declarations of Interest  
   
3.  Minutes of the Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee held 

on 10 October 2017 
(Pages 1 - 4) 

   
4.  Supported Bus Network (Pages 5 - 80) 
   
 Report of the Cabinet Member for Commercial  
   
5.  Progress on the Countryside Estate (Pages 81 - 88) 
   
 Report of the Cabinet Member for Communities  
   
6.  Infrastructure+ Improvement Plan and Performance Review / 

Highways Extra Investment 
(Pages 89 - 96) 

   
 Report of the Cabinet Member for Commercial  
   
7.  Work Programme (Pages 97 - 106) 
   



a)  West Midlands Rail Briefing Note (Pages 107 - 
116) 

   
8.  Exclusion of the Public  
   
 The Chairman to move:- 

 
“That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business which involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in the paragraphs of Schedule 12A (as amended) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 indicated below”. 
 

 
Part Two 
(All reports in this section are exempt) 
 
nil 

 

   
 

Committee Membership 
 

Ann Beech 
Tina Clements 
Maureen Compton 
Keith Flunder 
Julia Jessel (Vice-Chairman) 
Bryan Jones 
Rev. Preb. M. Metcalf 
 

Ian Parry (Chairman) 
David Smith 
Simon Tagg 
Bernard Williams 
Paul Woodhead 
Candice Yeomans 
 

Note for Members of the Press and Public 
 
Filming of Meetings 
 
The Open (public) section of this meeting may be filmed for live or later broadcasting or 
other use, and, if you are at the meeting, you may be filmed, and are deemed to have 
agreed to being filmed and to the use of the recording for broadcast and/or other 
purposes. 
 
Recording by Press and Public 
 
Recording (including by the use of social media) by the Press and Public is permitted 
from the public seating area provided it does not, in the opinion of the chairman, disrupt 
the meeting.  
 
 

 



- 1 - 
 

Minutes of the Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee Meeting held on 10 
October 2017 

 
Present: Simon Tagg (Chairman) 

 

Attendance 
 

Ann Beech 
Tina Clements 
Maureen Compton 
Keith Flunder 
Julia Jessel (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Rev. Preb. M. Metcalf 
Jeremy Pert 
David Smith 
Bernard Williams 
 

 
Also in attendance: Mark Deaville and Helen Fisher 
 
Apologies: Paul Woodhead and Candice Yeomans 
 
PART ONE 
 
54. Declarations of Interest 
 
Jeremy Pert declared an interest in the item on Flood Risk Management as he was a 
member of Eccleshall Flood Management Group. 
 
55. Minutes of the Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee held on 12 
September 2017 
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Prosperous Staffordshire Select 
Committee held on 12 September 2017 be confirmed and  signed by the Chairman. 
 
56. Update on Flood Risk Management 
 
The Committee received a presentation and report from Hannah Burgess, Flood Risk 
Manager, on flood risk management arrangements in Staffordshire and new 
collaborative working for providing these services to other councils.  The Environment 
Agency, who were key partners in managing flooding, were in attendance and were 
invited to participate in the discussion. 
 
Following the severe flooding during the summer of 2007 and a number of legislative 
changes, the County Council became a Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA), with various 
powers and statutory duties to manage and co-ordinate local flood risk management 
activities. Local flood risk means flooding from surface water (overland runoff), 
groundwater and smaller watercourses (known as Ordinary Watercourses).  The County 
Council did this by working together with other organisations including the Environment 
Agency, which managed flooding from generally larger rivers (known as Main Rivers, 
such as the River Trent); the Sow and Penk Internal Drainage Board (IDB) managing 
low lying areas around Stafford; District, Borough, Parish and Town Councils; and 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

- 2 - 
 

infrastructure/utility providers, such as Severn Trent Water, United Utilities and 
Highways England. 
 
There were both strategic and operational elements to the role of LLFA.  Strategically, 
the Council needed to develop, maintain, apply and monitor a Local Flood Risk 
Management Strategy.  Operationally, the Council investigated flooding incidents, held a 
flood risk management asset database, and had powers to designate third party assets 
where they had an impact on flood risk.  The Council also regulated land drainage 
activities, including consenting to works and enforcement on Ordinary Watercourses 
outside of the Sow and Penk IDB area.  Additionally, in 2015 the LLFA became a 
statutory consultee for major planning applications for sustainable drainage designs. 
 
In April 2017, the County Council had entered into Service Level Agreements with 
Walsall Council, the City of Wolverhampton Council and Sandwell Council to provide 
flood risk management services on their behalf.  This would generate an income of 
around £0.5m over the next three years.  To provide these services, the Flood Risk 
Management Team had restructured and increased its capacity by 2.2 FTEs.  The 
Business Case put forward had allowed the Team to offer a £30k/year saving in its 
revenue budget for the next three years. 
 
Members were informed that local flood alleviation schemes were primarily funded by 
national Flood Defence Grant in Aid that the County Council could bid for.  The process 
of allocating and accessing this funding was incredibly complex.  The amount of funding 
allocated rarely covered the full cost of a scheme as it was mainly based on the number 
of houses protected rather than the scheme cost.  To top up funding so that a scheme 
could proceed, the Council need to seek contributions from regional flood alleviation 
funds, local authorities, other flood management partners, other funding streams such 
as environmental projects, and the businesses and communities that were at risk of 
flooding.  This system was known as “Partnership Funding”.  Experience to date was 
that additional funding was challenging to find for small projects.  The Council had had 
some success in securing regional flood alleviation funds, known as Local Levy, but this 
fund was now limited and fully allocated within the River Trent catchment until 2021.   
 
The Committee considered case studies of schemes in Kidsgrove, Endon and Rugeley, 
together with details of future schemes which were planned.  The Council was opening 
a bidding scheme for communities to deliver Small Scale Flood Alleviation Projects 
within Staffordshire for 2017/18.  Applications could be made for up to £5,000 per 
location to be used for works, studies or projects that would mitigate known flood risk in 
an area.  The grant would be available to Town Councils, Borough and District Councils, 
Parish Councils, Community Groups and Flood Action Groups.  Applications would have 
to be submitted by 30 November 2017 and the vast majority of these grants would be 
externally funded through Local Levy.   
 
Members were informed of the work that was being undertaken in relation to land 
drainage.  There were nearly 8,000 culverts in the County and the exact location and 
condition of much of these is unknown.  A lack of regular maintenance coupled with the 
age of many of the assets, in many cases over 100 years, meant that the culvert 
network was vulnerable to blockage and failure.   
 

Page 2



 

- 3 - 
 

In April 2015 the LLFA became a statutory consultee to the planning process.  When 
considering planning applications for major developments, Local Planning Authorities 
must consult the County Council on the management of surface water.  Whilst the 
Council were not under a statutory duty to respond to non-major applications, a risk 
based system had been developed for LPAs to send applications at highest risk of 
localised flooding.  Preventing properties being built in high flood risk areas would 
always be the most effective form of flood risk management.   
 
In May 2016 the Committee had considered a paper which explored how prepared the 
County Council was to deal with a major flood event.  Members received an update on 
these arrangements, together with a schedule of Flood Risk Management Priorities for 
2017/18, including the establishment of local flood risk management groups in some 
areas.  Members requested more specific timescales and outcomes in relation to the 
priorities.   
 
In wide ranging discussion members shared experiences from their localities. In doing 
so, they queried what the role of the local member was in the event of a major flood.  
They were informed that members could contribute their local knowledge and also 
support communications.  Information on their role in an emergency was available on 
the Members’ Intranet, but it was suggested that a “crib Sheet” containing key facts and 
contact numbers could be provided for members. 
 
Members expressed concern over the impact that local planning and development 
decisions were having on flooding, and a perception that consideration of feedback from 
consultees was a tick box exercise when flooding could have a significant personal and 
economic impact.  In response to advice on reporting issues to Water Companies, 
concern was expressed over a poor response from Severn Trent, which had resulted in 
a resident having to vacate their property for six months.  It was suggested that it would 
be helpful to invite a representative to a future meeting of the Committee.  In relation to 
a number of local concerns raised by members, they were requested to report issues to 
the flood risk management team in order for these to be included on the digital mapping 
system.  It was confirmed that the team used two key sets of flood modelling on a daily 
basis, on surface water and water courses.  In response to a question on landowners’ 
responsibilities, members were informed that where a landowner had a water course on 
their land it was their responsibility to maintain it.  The Council was responsible for 
issuing consent for new structures and carrying out an enforcement role. 
 
In conclusion, the Chairman suggested that it may be helpful to present the Flood Risk 
Management Priorities in a similar way to that which was adopted for performance 
reports in the past, using a green, amber and  red traffic light system.  The Cabinet 
Member for Commercial undertook to contact Severn Trent with a view to a further 
update on partnership working to involve the utility companies, and also to review the 
role of the Council as a statutory consultee on planning matters. 
 
RESOLVED -  That: 

a) The progress with regard to the County Council’s responsibilities as Lead Local 
Flood Authority for Staffordshire be noted; 

b) The collaborative working arrangements for providing flood risk management 
services to Walsall, Sandwell and Wolverhampton Councils be noted; 

Page 3



 

- 4 - 
 

c) Progress on local flood alleviation schemes, and the challenges that the national 
Partnership Funding system presents for small schemes be noted, and a call for 
government to simplify the process for funding local food alleviation works be 
supported; and 

d) The update on preparation for a severe flood event, as discussed at the 
Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee in May 2016, be received. 

 
57. Work Programme 
 
The Select Committee received a copy of their 2017/18 Work Programme. 
 
As outlined in the Work Programme, a briefing note had been circulated to members on 
the Staffordshire History Centre, and Joanna Terry, Head of Archives was in attendance 
to answer questions. A further, more detailed briefing including plans was brought to the 
meeting.  Members agreed that this was an exciting new development which was an 
asset to the County and should be given more emphasis and a higher profile.  They 
requested that they be given the opportunity to have a tour around the History Centre, to 
enable them to be greater advocates for the service and also asked that the details 
tabled at the meeting be circulated to all members via the e-bulletin.  
 
RESOLVED – That: 

a) The Work Programme for 2017/18 be noted; 
b) The progress on the Staffordshire History Centre be noted; and 
c) Members of the Select Committee be invited to a guided tour of the Centre. 

 
 
 
 

Chairman 
 

Page 4



 
 

 

Local Members’ Interest 

N/A 

 

 

Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee – 14th November 2017 
 

Supported Bus Network Consultation Outcome 
 
 

Recommendations 
 
1. That the Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee scrutinises the content of the 

consultation analysis and comments on the outcome.  
 
2. That the Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee scrutinises the content of the 

report and considers whether they wish to make recommendations to the Cabinet 
Member for Commercial prior to a final decision being made by Cabinet on the 15 
November 2017. 

 
Report of Cllr Mark Deaville, Cabinet Member for Commercial 
 

Summary 
 
What is the Select Committee being asked to do and why? 
 
3. The authority has undertaken a public consultation on how the available budget 

for supporting bus services in Staffordshire from 2018/19 onwards is best spent. 
 
4. The Select Committee is asked to take note of the consultation insight and 

detailed analysis and consider whether any appropriate recommendations should 
be made to the Cabinet Member for Commercial prior to the Cabinet making a 
final decision on network options on the 15 November 2017. 

 

Report 
 
Background 
 
5. A report was considered by the Staffordshire Prosperous Select Committee on the 

31 July 2017 (Background Paper) which provided details of the public consultation 
on bus journeys subsidised by Staffordshire County Council. The eight week 
consultation was undertaken between Monday 24 July 2017 and the 17th 
September 2017. 

 
6. The report highlighted that over 90 per cent of bus passenger journeys in 

Staffordshire are undertaken on the commercial bus network with the authority 
currently providing funding for less than 10% of the bus journeys which are not 
commercially viable. 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 
 
7. The report also confirmed that the authority has a statutory duty to secure public 

transport that it considers to be socially necessary. This is set out in the Transport 
Act 1985, Section 63(1)(a) which explains that local transport authorities must: 

 
“… secure the provision of such public passenger transport services as the 
council consider it appropriate to secure to meet any public transport requirements 
within the county which would not in their view be met apart from any action taken 
by them for that purpose.” 

 
8. In February 2016, having considered its duty under section 63 of the Transport 

Act 1985, the Council agreed to provide a budget of £600,000 pa from 2018/19 
onwards which when combined with the Bus Services Operator Grant (BSOG) will 
provide a total budget of £1.3m to enable bus journeys which would not be 
possible on the commercial bus network. 

 
9. Members will recall that the public consultation on bus journeys subsidised by 

Staffordshire County Council suggested four options on how the agreed allocated 
funding could be best spent.  These options were described fully in the 
consultation questionnaires and in summary were: 

 
a. Option 1 – Revised Local Supported Bus Services, (no Connect or Demand 

Responsive Services) 
 
b. Option 2 – Revised Local Supported Bus Services with Two Connect Services 

(South Staffordshire Connects and Moorlands Connect) 
 
c. Option 3 – Revised Local Supported Bus Services with Existing Connect 

Services Retained (Border Car excepted) 
 
d. Option 4 – County-wide Connect and Demand Responsive Services, (no local 

supported bus services) 
 

10. The consultation document explained that Option 1 was the preferred option as it 
retained the greatest number of existing bus journeys whist minimising the public 
subsidy for each passenger trip.  

 
Public Consultation Insight 

 
11. The extensive eight week public consultation which was launched on the 24 July 

sought views from both individuals and organisations. 
 
12. As well as seeking opinions on the four service options the consultation explored 

the appetite from communities for the provision of additional voluntary transport 
schemes. 

 

13. Over 7000 paper consultation documents were distributed during the 8 week 
period and 979 completed paper surveys were returned to the authority. 
Residents were also able to complete the consultation on line via a dedicated 
website and in total of 1,923 individual survey responses were received.  A further 

Page 6



 

37 organisations also completed a bespoke survey that reflects the views of their 
organisation/people they represent.  

 
14. In addition to survey responses, a total of 65 written responses were received 

from organisations and individuals. 
 

15. In total, 2025 responses have been received to the consultation and three 
petitions were also received during the consultation period. 

 
16. Three petitions and a small number of responses were received outside the 

consultation period and in line with established practice these have not been 
included in the detailed analysis but the Cabinet Member has been made aware of 
the correspondence. 

  
17. The detailed insight report to the consultation report is attached as Appendix A. 
 
18.  In terms of general concerns raised by respondents, these included social 

isolation, access to services including health and retail, potential social and health 
care impacts and more limited education and employment access due to  a lack of 
suitable alternatives for them.   

       
19. Specific concerns included needing to be able to make vital healthcare 

appointments – this was evident across all options but was raised most frequently 
in option 1, under which Dial-a-Ride services would be removed.  

 
20. Social isolation and becoming housebound were also common concerns across 

all options and especially so for those older people who indicated they were 
unable to walk very far alone.  

 

21. There is most agreement for option one with 47% of respondents indicating their 
agreement with this option. Agreement with all other options ranged between 22-
27%. 27% agreed with option 4, 24% agreed with option 2 and 22% agreed with 
option 3.  

 
22. Within the consultation document, consideration was given to elicit travel pattern 

information, e.g., journey purpose, frequency of travel, to enable objective 
assessment of service options and travel need, set against the available funding. 
From the consultation responses there appears to be a partial willingness to retain 
service(s) by some service users, through the payment of a fare in conjunction 
with use of the English National Concessionary Travel Scheme (ENCTS) passes. 
This unfortunately is illegal, albeit it could have made the difference to the ability 
to retain some services, where ENCTS pass holders constitute the greater 
percentage of users. 

 
23. Understandably many respondents wished to preserve their existing bus services. 

This option is not possible given the MTFS budget decision made in February 
2016 and the agreed need to protect statutory services. 

  
 
 

Page 7



 
 

Implementation and Monitoring 
 

24. A paper is being submitted to the Cabinet Meeting on the 15 November 2017 to 
make a final decision on a supported bus network option which will be 
implemented in April 2018. 

 
25. It is likely that further work will be undertaken with bus operators prior to April 

2018 to see if the remaining agreed supported bus network (or the commercial 
bus network) can be adjusted to provide some additional connectivity to 
communities impacted by bus service reductions. 

 
26. Further work is also planned with parish councils and voluntary agencies, 

including Support Staffordshire, to attempt to enhance and develop community 
transport and voluntary transport options, expanding on our current 22 schemes. It 
should however be noted that the Department for Transport’s recent revised legal 
interpretation of section 19 permits and community driver qualifications is likely to 
have a significant impact in this sector.  This is because the comparative cost 
advantage of community transport service provision has been eroded, as staff 
availability and legislative requirements have converged with the traditional local 
bus sector. 

 
27. Bus passenger numbers on the Staffordshire bus network will continue to be 

monitored quarterly post April 2018 and the authority will be engaging in the 
English Transport Focus Bus Passenger Survey in both 2017and 2018 so that the 
impact on the overall bus network in Staffordshire can be assessed. 

 
Link to Strategic Plan 

 
28. The provision of a supported bus network supports the County Councils vision for 

a connected Staffordshire by ensuring that appropriate public transport links are 
maintained which would not otherwise be provided by the commercial bus 
network. 

 
29. In terms of prosperity, the provision of a supported bus network endeavours to 

provide links to education and work opportunities which would not otherwise be 
available by the commercial bus network. 

 
30. In terms of being healthier and more independent, the provision of a supported 

bus network enables residents to access education, employment, health, retail 
and leisure opportunities which would not otherwise be available by the 
commercial bus network.  

 
Link to Other Overview and Scrutiny Activity – None 
 
Community Impact – The final community impact assessment using data from the 
consultation exercise is attached as Appendix B 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



 

Contact Officer 
 
Name and Job Title: Clive Thomson, Commissioner for Connected and Sustainable 
Staffordshire 
Telephone No: 01785 276522 
Address/e-mail: clive.thomson@staffordshire.gov.uk  
 
Appendices/Background papers 

 
Background Paper - Staffordshire Prosperous Select Committee 31 July 2017 

 
Appendix A - Staffordshire Insight Consultation Analysis 
 
Appendix B - Final CIA 

Page 9

mailto:clive.thomson@staffordshire.gov.uk




�� 

Bus Review Consultation 2017 
Analysis of Results 

Page 11



�Ϯ 

 

�Ê�çÃ�Äã���ã�®½Ý 
dŝƚůĞ �ƵƐ�ZĞǀŝĞǁ��ŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�ϮϬϭϳ—�ŶĂůǇƐŝƐ�ŽĨ�ZĞƐƵůƚƐ 
�ĞƐĐƌŝƉƟŽŶ dŚĞ�ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚ�ŝƐ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ĚĞƚĂŝůƐ�ŽĨ�ĨĞĞĚďĂĐŬ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ��ƵƐ�

ZĞǀŝĞǁ��ŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ͘ 
WƌŽĚƵĐĞĚ�ďǇ ^ƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�dĞĂŵ͕�^ƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ͕�'ŽǀĞƌŶĂŶĐĞ�ĂŶĚ��ŚĂŶŐĞ͕�^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů 
dŝŵĞ�WĞƌŝŽĚ :ƵůǇ�ƚŽ�^ĞƉƚĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϳ͘ 
hƐĂŐĞ�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ /Ĩ�ǇŽƵ�ǁŝƐŚ�ƚŽ�ƌĞƉƌŽĚƵĐĞ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚ�ĞŝƚŚĞƌ�ŝŶ�ǁŚŽůĞ͕�Žƌ�ŝŶ�ƉĂƌƚ͕�ƉůĞĂƐĞ�

ĂĐŬŶŽǁůĞĚŐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŽƵƌĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƵƚŚŽƌ;ƐͿ͘ 
�ŽƉǇƌŝŐŚƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĚŝƐĐůĂŝŵĞƌ dŚŝƐ�ƉƌŽĚƵĐƚ�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉĞƌƚǇ�ŽĨ�^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů͘�/Ĩ�ǇŽƵ�ǁŝƐŚ�ƚŽ�

ƌĞƉƌŽĚƵĐĞ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚ�ĞŝƚŚĞƌ�ŝŶ�ǁŚŽůĞ͕�Žƌ�ŝŶ�ƉĂƌƚ͕�ƉůĞĂƐĞ�ĂĐŬŶŽǁůĞĚŐĞ�ƚŚĞ�
ƐŽƵƌĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƵƚŚŽƌ;ƐͿ͘ 
^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů͕�ǁŚŝůĞ�ďĞůŝĞǀŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉƵďůŝĐĂƟŽŶ�
ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĐŽƌƌĞĐƚ͕�ĚŽĞƐ�ŶŽƚ�ŐƵĂƌĂŶƚĞĞ�ŝƚƐ�ĂĐĐƵƌĂĐǇ�ŶŽƌ�ĚŽĞƐ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�
ĂĐĐĞƉƚ�ĂŶǇ�ůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ĨŽƌ�ĂŶǇ�ĚŝƌĞĐƚ�Žƌ�ŝŶĚŝƌĞĐƚ�ůŽƐƐ�Žƌ�ĚĂŵĂŐĞ�Žƌ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�
ĐŽŶƐĞƋƵĞŶĐĞƐ͕�ŚŽǁĞǀĞƌ�ĂƌŝƐŝŶŐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƐƵĐŚ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ƐƵƉƉůŝĞĚ͘ 

Page 12



�ϯ 

 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Ϯϯй 

Option 1: This option 
seeks to maintain priority 
routes and support some 
services for employment, 
education and health. There 
would be no Dial-A-Ride 
services.  

Themed comments  
· No alternatives 
· Mobility/out & about 
· Shopping 
· Appointments 
· Social isolation 

�ŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϭ 

ϰϳй 

ϱϰй�ŝŵƉĂĐƚĞĚ 
/ŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ��ŝĂů-Ă-ZŝĚĞ���
ƵƐĞƌƐ͕�ϳϱн�ǇĞĂƌ�ŽůĚƐ͕�
ƚŚŽƐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ͕�
ƵŶĚĞƌ�ϭϴ͛Ɛ͘ 

Option 2: This option 
seeks to maintain priority 
routes and support some 
services for employment, 
education and health. There 
would be two Dial-A-Ride 
services maintained.  

�ŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�Ϯ 

Ϯϰй 

ϰϲй�ŝŵƉĂĐƚĞĚ 
/ŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ��ŝĂů-Ă-ZŝĚĞ���
ƵƐĞƌƐ͕�ϳϱн�ǇĞĂƌ�ŽůĚƐ͕�
ƚŚŽƐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ͕�
ƵŶĚĞƌ�ϭϴ͛Ɛ͘ 

Themed comments 
· Mobility/out & about 
· No alternatives 
· Dial-a-Ride 
· Appointments 
· Social isolation 

Option 3: Option 3 
maintains four Dial-A-Ride 
services and some 
subsidised local bus 
services. There will be no 
Border Car service under 
this option. 

�ŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϯ 

ϰϱй�ŝŵƉĂĐƚĞĚ 
/ŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ��ŝĂů-Ă-ZŝĚĞ���
ƵƐĞƌƐ͕�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�
ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ͕�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ϭϴ͛Ɛ͘ 

Themed comments  
· No alternatives  
· Mobility/out & about 
· Dial-a-Ride 
· Shopping  
· Social isolation 

Option 4:  Option 4 
would subsidise existing 
Dial-A-Ride services and 
seven new Dial-a-Ride 
services. There would be 
no local council subsidised 
services. 

�ŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϰ 

ϱϯй�ŝŵƉĂĐƚĞĚ 
ϳϱн�ǇĞĂƌ�ŽůĚƐ͕�ƚŚŽƐĞ�
ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�
ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ͕�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ϭϴ͛Ɛ͘ 

Themed comments  
· No alternatives  
· Mobility/out & about 
· Dial-a-Ride 
· Cost 
· Social isolation 

Ϯϳй Ϯϯй 

/Ŷ�ƚŽƚĂů͕�ϮϬϮϰ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂůƐ͕�ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƚĂŬĞŚŽůĚĞƌƐ�ƐŚĂƌĞĚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ǀŝĞǁƐ�ŝŶ�^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�
�ŽƵŶĐŝů͛Ɛ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�ŽŶ�ƐƵďƐŝĚŝƐĞĚ�ďƵƐ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ͘�dŚŝƐ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƐ�ŵĞĂŶŝŶŐĨƵů�ŝŶƐŝŐŚƚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ƉƌĞĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�
ŝŵƉĂĐƚ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƌŽďƵƐƚ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƐŽŵĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ĂīĞĐƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂůƐ�ŝŶ�^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ͘�dŚĞ�
ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂů�ĂŶĚ�ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶĂů�ƐƵƌǀĞǇ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ͕�ůĞƩĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĞŵĂŝůƐ͘� 
ϭ͘ϭ͗�sŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƐƵďƐŝĚŝƐĞĚ�ďƵƐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ 
dŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�ŝŶĚŝĐĂƚĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŚŝŐŚĞƐƚ�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϭ͕�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů͛Ɛ�
ƉƌĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ�ŽƉƟŽŶ͘�dŚŝƐ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŚŽǁĞǀĞƌ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŚŝŐŚĞƐƚ�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽŶ�ƐŽŵĞ�ŬĞǇ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƚĞĚ�
ŐƌŽƵƉƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƵƉŽŶ��ŝĂů-Ă-ZŝĚĞ�ƵƐĞƌƐ͘�KƚŚĞƌ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ƌĞŇĞĐƚĞĚ�Ă�ůŽǁĞƌ�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ŽǀĞƌĂůů�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�
Ϯ�ĂŶĚ�ϯ�ƌĞŇĞĐƟŶŐ�ŵĂƌŐŝŶĂůůǇ�ůŽǁĞƌ�ůĞǀĞůƐ�ŽĨ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ͘�sŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ�Ăůů�ĨŽƵƌ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŽƵƚůŝŶĞĚ�
ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌĂƉŚŝĐ�ďĞůŽǁ͗�� 
&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϭ͘ϭ͗��ŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ 

Page 13



�ϰ 

 ϭ͘Ϯ͗��ŝĂů-Ă-ZŝĚĞ�ƵƐĞƌƐ 
�ŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ǀĂƌŝĞĚ�ŐƌĞĂƚůǇ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ŽǀĞƌĂůů�ĂŶĚ��ŝĂů-Ă-ZŝĚĞ�ƵƐĞƌƐ͘��Ɛ�ƚŚĞ�
ŐƌĂƉŚŝĐ�ďĞůŽǁ�ĚŝƐƉůĂǇƐ͕��ŝĂů-Ă-ZŝĚĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ƐŚŽǁĞĚ�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�ůĞǀĞůƐ�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�Ϯ-ϰ�ƚŚĂŶ�
ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ŽǀĞƌĂůů�ĚŝĚ͘�KƉƟŽŶ�ϭ�ǁĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ůĞĂƐƚ�ƉŽƉƵůĂƌ�ǁŝƚŚ��ŝĂů-Ă-ZŝĚĞ�ƵƐĞƌƐ͘� 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ϭ͘ϯ͗�DĂŬŝŶŐ��ůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ��ƌƌĂŶŐĞŵĞŶƚƐ� 
KǀĞƌ�ŚĂůĨ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂůƐ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚŝŶŐ�;ϱϲйͿ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƵŶĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ƚƌĂǀĞů�ŝĨ�ƚŚĞ�ďƵƐĞƐ�ƚŚĞǇ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇ�
ƵƐĞ͕�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƟŵĞƐ�ƚŚĞǇ�ƵƐĞ�ƚŚĞŵ͕�ǁĞƌĞ�ŶŽƚ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ͘���ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�ƉƌŽƉŽƌƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ǁŚŽ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƵŶĂďůĞ�
ƚŽ�ƚƌĂǀĞů�ŚĂĚ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƚĞĚ�ĐŚĂƌĂĐƚĞƌŝƐƟĐƐ͘�dŚĞƐĞ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�ĂŐĞ�;ƉĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌůǇ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ϭϴ�ĂŶĚ�ϳϱн�ǇĞĂƌ�
ŽůĚƐͿ�ĂŶĚ�ĂůƐŽ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ͘� 
 
ϭ͘ϰ͗�^ƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ŝŶ�DĂŝŶƚĂŝŶŝŶŐ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ� 
Þ ZĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ŝŶĚŝĐĂƚĞĚ�ƐŽŵĞ�ĂƉƉĞƟƚĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƌƵŶŶŝŶŐ�Žƌ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ůŽĐĂů�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�Žƌ�

ǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ϭϱй�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ƐŚŽǁŝŶŐ�ĞǆƉƌĞƐƐŝŽŶƐ�ŽĨ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ͘�Ϯй�;Žƌ�Ϯϵ�
ƉĞŽƉůĞͿ�ĞǆƉƌĞƐƐĞĚ�͚Ă�ŐƌĞĂƚ�ĚĞĂů�ŽĨ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ͛�ĂŶĚ�ϭϯй�;Žƌ�ϭϵϰ�ƉĞŽƉůĞͿ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚĞĚ�͚ƚŽ�
ƐŽŵĞ�ĞǆƚĞŶƚ͛͘� 

 
Þ ZĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ŽīĞƌĞĚ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�Ă�ƌĂŶŐĞ�ŽĨ�ŬĞǇ�ƌŽůĞƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�͚ĚĂǇ�ƚŽ�ĚĂǇ�ƌƵŶŶŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�

ƐĐŚĞŵĞ͛�ĂŶĚ�͚ďĞŝŶŐ�Ă�ǀŽůƵŶƚĞĞƌ�ĚƌŝǀĞƌ͛͘�ZĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ĞǆƉƌĞƐƐĞĚ�ĂŶ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ŝŶ�ǁĂŶƟŶŐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�
ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ƵƐĞ�ŶĞǁ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ�ŝĨ�ƚŚĞǇ�ǁĞƌĞ�͞ƐĞƚ�ƵƉ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽĐĂů�ĂƌĞĂ͘͟� 

 
Þ ZĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ŶĞĞĚĞĚ�͚ŵŽƌĞ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ͛�;ϯϭйͿ�ĂŶĚ�͚ŵŽƌĞ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�

ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƚǇƉĞƐ�ŽĨ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�Žƌ�ǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ͛�;ϮϲйͿ�ƚŽ�ĞŶĐŽƵƌĂŐĞ�ƚŚĞŵ�
ƚŽ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ŵĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ�ŽĨ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͘� 

 
Þ KƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŬĞĞŶ�ƚŽ�ƐŚĂƌĞ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƚǇƉĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŽ�ƐŝŐŶƉŽƐƚ�

ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ƚŽ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ͘�dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ƐŽŵĞ�ĂƉƉĞƟƚĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�
ƐĞƚ�ƵƉ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ůŽĐĂů�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�Žƌ�ǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ͘�� 

 
Þ KƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ƐƵŐŐĞƐƚĞĚ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ�ƐŽůƵƟŽŶƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�Ă�ƌĞǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŝĐŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ƟŵŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�

ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƚŽ�Įƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ͕�ĞĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŚĞĂůƚŚ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶƚƌŽĚƵĐŝŶŐ�ƚĂǆŝ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŇĞǆŝďůĞ�
ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ƉĂƚƌŽŶĂŐĞ�ĮŐƵƌĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ďĞůŽǁ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�Ă�ĐŽŶǀĞŶƟŽŶĂů�ďƵƐ�
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͘� 

&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϭ͘Ϯ͗��ŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ĨƌŽŵ��ŝĂů-Ă-ZŝĚĞ�ĂŶĚ�Ăůů�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�;йͿ 

Page 14



�ϱ 

 2. CONTENTS 
ϭ͘ �ǆĞĐƵƚŝǀĞ�ƐƵŵŵĂƌǇ ϯ 
Ϯ͘ �ŽŶƚĞŶƚƐ ϱ 
   
ϯ͘ /ŶƚƌŽĚƵĐƟŽŶ ϳ 
ϯ͘ϭ DĞƚŚŽĚŽůŽŐǇ ϳ 
ϯ͘Ϯ �ŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ ϴ 
ϯ͘ϯ ^ƵƌǀĞǇ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚ�ĐŚĂƌĂĐƚĞƌŝƐƟĐƐ ϴ 
   
ϰ͘ �ƵƐ�ƵƐĂŐĞ�ŝŶ�^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ ϵ 
ϰ͘ϭ ZĞĂƐŽŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƵƐĂŐĞ ϵ 
ϰ͘Ϯ dŝŵĞƐ�ŽĨ�ĚĂǇ�ĨŽƌ�ďƵƐ�ƵƐĂŐĞ ϵ 
ϰ͘ϯ �ƵƐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƵƐĞĚ ϭϬ 
ϰ͘ϰ �ŽŶĐĞƐƐŝŽŶĂƌǇ�ƉĂƐƐĞƐ ϭϬ 
ϰ͘ϱ �ŝĂů-Ă-ZŝĚĞ ϭϬ 
   
ϱ͘� KƉƟŽŶ�ϭ ϭϭ 
ϱ͘ϭ �ŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϭ ϭϭ 
ϱ͘Ϯ /ŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϭ� ϭϭ 
ϱ͘ϯ �ŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ—�/ŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϭ ϭϮ 
   
ϲ͘ KƉƟŽŶ�Ϯ ϭϯ 
ϲ͘ϭ �ŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�Ϯ ϭϯ 
ϲ͘Ϯ /ŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�Ϯ ϭϯ 
ϲ͘ϯ �ŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ—�/ŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�Ϯ ϭϰ 
   
ϳ͘ KƉƟŽŶ�ϯ ϭϱ 
ϳ͘ϭ �ŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϯ ϭϱ 
ϳ͘Ϯ /ŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϯ ϭϱ 

ϵ͘ �ŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂŐĂŝŶƐƚ�ŬĞǇ�ƚŚĞŵĞƐ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�Ăůů�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ ϭϵ 

ϳ͘ϯ �ŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ—�/ŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϯ ϭϲ 
   
ϴ͘� KƉƟŽŶ�ϰ ϭϳ 
ϴ͘ϭ �ŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϰ ϭϳ 
ϴ͘Ϯ /ŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϰ ϭϳ 
ϴ͘ϯ �ŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ—�/ŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϰ ϭϴ 
   
   
ϭϬ͘ DĂŬŝŶŐ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ�ĂƌƌĂŶŐĞŵĞŶƚƐ� Ϯϭ 
   
   

Page 15



�ϲ 
 

ϭϭ͘ ^ƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ŝŶ�ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ� ϮϮ 
ϭϭ͘ϭ �ǁĂƌĞŶĞƐƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƵƐĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ůŽĐĂů�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�Žƌ�ǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ� ϮϮ 
ϭϭ͘Ϯ /ŶǀŽůǀĞŵĞŶƚ�ŝŶ�ƌƵŶŶŝŶŐͬƐƵƉƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ůŽĐĂů�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�Žƌ�ǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ� ϮϮ 
ϭϭ͘ϯ /ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶͬƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŶĞĞĚ Ϯϯ 
   
ϭϮ͘ ^ƵŐŐĞƐƟŽŶƐͬŝĚĞĂƐ Ϯϰ 
   
ϭϯ͘ KƚŚĞƌ�ĨĞĞĚďĂĐŬ—�ŵĂŝů�ĂŶĚ�ůĞƩĞƌ�ĐŽƌƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶĐĞ Ϯϱ 
   
ϭϰ͘ KƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶĂů�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ Ϯϴ 
   
�ƉƉĞŶĚŝǆ�ϭ /ŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂůƐ�ƐƵƌǀĞǇ—KǀĞƌĂůů�ĚĞŵŽŐƌĂƉŚŝĐƐ ϯϬ 
�ƉƉĞŶĚŝǆ�Ϯ /ŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂůƐ�ƐƵƌǀĞǇ—�ĞŵŽŐƌĂƉŚŝĐƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇͬǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ƵƐĞƌƐ� ϯϮ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

   

   
   
   
   
   
   
   

   
   
   
   

Page 16



�ϳ 

 

3.  INTRODUCTION 
^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŚĂƐ�ƚŽ�ďĂůĂŶĐĞ�ǁŚĂƚ�ŝƚ�ƐƉĞŶĚƐ�ŽŶ�ƐƵďƐŝĚŝƐĞĚ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂŐĂŝŶƐƚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�Ă�ůĞŐĂů�ĚƵƚǇ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ƐƵĐŚ�ĂƐ�ĂĚƵůƚ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ĐĂƌĞ͘�>ĂƐƚ�ǇĞĂƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞĐŝƐŝŽŶ�ǁĂƐ�ƚĂŬĞŶ�
ƚŽ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁ�ƚŚĞ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�ĐĂŶ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞ�ƚŽ�ƉĂǇ�ƚŽǁĂƌĚƐ�ďƵƐ�ƚƌĂǀĞů͘�dŚŝƐ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�ĂďŽƵƚ�
ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�ŚŽǁ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ĐĂŶ�ďĞƐƚ�ƐƉĞŶĚ�ŝƚ͛Ɛ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ďƵĚŐĞƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŽ�ƵŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƉƉĞƟƚĞ�
ĨƌŽŵ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ƚŽ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŽǁŶ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ͘�dŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�
�ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŚĂƐ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĞĚ�ǁŝĚĞůǇ�ǁŝƚŚ�ůŽĐĂů�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ�ŽŶ�ŝƚƐ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�ďƵƐĞƐ͘�dŚŝƐ�
ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƐ�Ă�ƐƵŵŵĂƌǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�ĮŶĚŝŶŐƐ͘�dŚĞƐĞ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�ďǇ��ĂďŝŶĞƚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�
�ƵƚƵŵŶ�ŽĨ�ϮϬϭϳ͕�ĂƐ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞĐŝƐŝŽŶ�ŵĂŬŝŶŐ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ͘�� 

3.1 METHODOLOGY 

dŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽŽŬ�ƉůĂĐĞ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ϮϰƚŚ�:ƵůǇ�ĂŶĚ�ϭϳƚŚ�^ĞƉƚĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϳ�ǁŝƚŚ�ůŽĐĂů�ƉĞŽƉůĞ͕�ďƵƐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�
ƵƐĞƌƐ͕�ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƐƚĂŬĞŚŽůĚĞƌƐ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ĞŶĐŽƵƌĂŐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƐŚĂƌĞ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ǀŝĞǁƐ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�Ă�ƐƵƌǀĞǇ͕�ďǇ�
ĞŵĂŝů�Žƌ�ďǇ�ůĞƩĞƌ͘� 
/ŶǀŽůǀĞŵĞŶƚ�ǁĂƐ�ĂĐƟǀĞůǇ�ĞŶĐŽƵƌĂŐĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�Ă�ǁŝĚĞ�ƌĂŶŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƚĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ǀƵůŶĞƌĂďůĞ�
ŐƌŽƵƉƐ�ƐƵĐŚ�ĂƐ�ǇŽƵŶŐ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ͕�ŽůĚĞƌ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ͕�ĞƚŚŶŝĐ�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ͕�ĚŝƐĂďůĞĚ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ͕�ĐĂƌĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�Ă�ƌĂŶŐĞ�ŽĨ�ŚĞĂůƚŚ�
ĂŶĚ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ĂĚǀŽĐĂƚĞƐ�ƐƵĐŚ�ĂƐ��ůŝŶŝĐĂů��ŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶŝŶŐ�'ƌŽƵƉƐ�ĂŶĚ�dƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�&ŽĐƵƐ͘�� 
dŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�ǁĂƐ�ǁŝĚĞůǇ�ƉƵďůŝĐŝƐĞĚ�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ͗ 
Þ �ƌŝĞĮŶŐƐ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ŚĞůĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ŝŵƉŽƌƚĂŶƚ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�

ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƌƐ͘� 
Þ �ŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ�DW͛Ɛ͕��ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ�ĂŶĚ��ŽƌŽƵŐŚ��ŽƵŶĐŝůƐ͕�ĂůƐŽ�WĂƌŝƐŚ�ĂŶĚ�dŽǁŶ�

�ŽƵŶĐŝůƐ͘� 
Þ �ŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�Ă�ǁŝĚĞ�ƌĂŶŐĞ�ŽĨ�ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƟŶŐ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƚĞĚ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂůƐ�

ĂŶĚ�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ͘� 
Þ ^ƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐ��ĞůŝǀĞƌǇ�DĂŶĂŐĞƌƐ�ƉƌŽŵŽƟŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĚŝƐƚƌŝĐƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƚĞĚ�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ�

ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ůŽĐĂů�ĂƌĞĂ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĂƟŽŶ͘� 
Þ WŽƐƚĞƌƐ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽŵŽƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�ŽŶ�ďƵƐĞƐ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĂīĞĐƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�

ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŽŶ�ďƵƐĞƐ�ŝŶ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂů͘�WŽƐƚĞƌƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂůƐŽ�ƵƐĞĚ�ŝŶ�ďƵƐ�ƐŚĞůƚĞƌƐ͕�ůŝďƌĂƌŝĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�
ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ǀĞŶƵĞƐ͘ 

Þ �ĚǀĞƌƟƐĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶĐůƵƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ďĂĐŬŐƌŽƵŶĚ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ�
�ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů��ŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�WŽƌƚĂů͕�ŚĞůĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ǁĞďƐŝƚĞ͘ 

Þ /ƐƐƵŝŶŐ�ƉƌĞƐƐ�ƌĞůĞĂƐĞƐ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ůĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŵĞĚŝĂ�ĐŽǀĞƌĂŐĞ�ŝŶ�ůŽĐĂů�ŶĞǁƐƉĂƉĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŽŶ�ƌĞŐŝŽŶĂů�ŶĞǁƐ�
ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞƐ͘� 

Þ �ǆƚĞŶƐŝǀĞ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ŵĞĚŝĂ�;&ĂĐĞďŽŽŬ�ĂŶĚ�dǁŝƩĞƌͿ�ƉĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌůǇ�ƚŽ�ƚĂƌŐĞƚ�ŚĂƌĚ-ƚŽ-ƌĞĂĐŚ�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ͘ 
Þ ��ƚĂƌŐĞƚĞĚ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ŵĞĚŝĂ�ĐĂŵƉĂŝŐŶ�ŽǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĮŶĂů�ϭϬ�ĚĂǇƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĨŽĐƵƐƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�

ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐŝŶŐ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ǀĂƌŝŽƵƐ�ŐĞŽŐƌĂƉŚŝĐĂů�ĂƌĞĂƐ͘ 
Page 17



�ϴ 

 
 
 
 

3.2 CONSULTATION RESPONSES 
/Ŷ�ƚŽƚĂů͕�ϮϬϮϰ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ͘�dŚŝƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞƐ�ďŽƚŚ�ƐƵƌǀĞǇƐ͕�ůĞƩĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�
ĞŵĂŝůƐ͘�ZĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�ďǇ�ƚǇƉĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĞƚŚŽĚ�ĂƌĞ�ŽƵƚůŝŶĞĚ�ďĞůŽǁ͘� 
Þ ϭϵϮϯ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂů�ƐƵƌǀĞǇ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�;ƚŚŝƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞƐ�ϵϳϵ�ƉĂƉĞƌ�ƐƵƌǀĞǇƐ�ĂŶĚ�ϵϰϰ�ǁĞď�

ƐƵƌǀĞǇƐͿ͘� 
Þ ϯϳ�ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶĂů�ƐƵƌǀĞǇ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ͘�dŚĞƐĞ�ƌĞŇĞĐƚƐ�ƚŚĞ�ǀŝĞǁƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�

ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶͬƉĞŽƉůĞ�ƚŚĞǇ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ͘� 
Þ ϲϰ�ǁƌŝƩĞŶ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ƚǁŽ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�

ŶŝŶĞ�^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ�DW͛Ɛ͘� 
/Ŷ�ƐƚĂƟƐƟĐĂů�ƚĞƌŵƐ͕�ƚŚĞ�ϵϱй�ĐŽŶĮĚĞŶĐĞ�ůĞǀĞů�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĂƉƉůŝĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƵƌǀĞǇ�ƌĞƐƵůƚƐ͘�dŚŝƐ�ŵĞĂŶƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝĨ�
ƚŚĞ�ƐƵƌǀĞǇ�ǁĂƐ�ƌĞƉĞĂƚĞĚ͕�ŝŶ�ϵϱ�ŽƵƚ�ŽĨ�ϭϬϬ�ŽĐĐĂƐŝŽŶƐ͕�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂŵĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞĚ͘� 
ZĞƐŝĚĞŶƚƐ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĂŶ�ŽǀĞƌĂůů�ĐŽŶĮĚĞŶĐĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌǀĂů�ŽĨ�нͬ-Ϯй�ŵĞĂŶŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�
ŐŝǀĞŶ�ƚŽ�ĂŶǇ�ƋƵĞƐƟŽŶƐ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ĨĂůů�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĂŶŐĞ�ŽĨ�Ϯй�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�ƚŽ�Ϯй�ůŽǁĞƌ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĂĐƚƵĂů�ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ�
ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞ͘���ĐŽŶĮĚĞŶĐĞ�ŽĨ�нͬ-ϯ-ϰй�ŝƐ�ĨĂŝƌůǇ�ƚǇƉŝĐĂů�ĨŽƌ�Ă�ƐƚĂƟƐƟĐĂůůǇ�ƌŽďƵƐƚ�ƐƵƌǀĞǇ͘� 
Þ dǁŽ�ƉĞƟƟŽŶƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂůƐŽ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ƚŽƚĂůůĞĚ�ϭϭϬϵ�ƵŶǀĂůŝĚĂƚĞĚ�

ƐŝŐŶĂƚƵƌĞƐ͘� 
3.3 SURVEY RESPONDENT CHARACTERISTICS 

dŚĞ�ŵĂũŽƌŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂůƐ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚŝŶŐ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ĚĞƚĂŝůƐ�ĂďŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞŵƐĞůǀĞƐ͘�tŚĞƌĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ͕�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ŚĂǀĞ�
ďĞĞŶ�ŽƵƚůŝŶĞĚ�ďĞůŽǁ͘ 

Þ dŚĞ�ŵĂũŽƌŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�͚ďƵƐ�ƵƐĞƌƐ�ŝŶ�^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ͛�;ϴϮйͿ͕�ϭ͘ϯй�ǁĞƌĞ�
͚ƐƚĂī�Ăƚ�^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů͛�ĂŶĚ�Ϭ͘Ϯй�ǁŽƌŬĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�͚Ă�ďƵƐ�ĐŽŵƉĂŶǇ�ŝŶ�
^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ͛͘ 
Þ ϰй�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞĚ�ŝŶ�͚ĂŶŽƚŚĞƌ�ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ͛͘�dŚĞƐĞ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�ĂƐ�͞Ă�ƉĂƌĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�Ă�ĐŚŝůĚ�ƵƐŝŶŐ�

ďƵƐĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�Žƌ�ĐŽůůĞŐĞ͕͟�͞ƉĂƌŝƐŚ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌƐ͕͟�͞ďƵƐ�ƵƐĞƌƐ�ůŝǀŝŶŐ�ŝŶ�ŶĞŝŐŚďŽƵƌŝŶŐ�ĐŽƵŶƟĞƐ͕͟�
͞ĐĂƌĞƌƐ͕͟�͞ǀŽůƵŶƚĞĞƌƐ͕͟�͞ďƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ�ŽǁŶĞƌƐ͟�ĂŶĚ�͞ƚŽƵƌŝƐŵ�ŽƉĞƌĂƚŽƌƐ͘͟��ůƐŽ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�͞ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌŝŶŐ�Ă�ŵŽǀĞ�
ƚŽ�^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ͘͟� 

Þ dŚĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞ�ƌĂƚĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ĨĞŵĂůĞ�ƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁĂƐ�ĚŝƐƉƌŽƉŽƌƟŽŶĂƚĞůǇ�ŚŝŐŚ�ǁŚĞŶ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŝĚ�
ǇĞĂƌ�ƉŽƉƵůĂƟŽŶ�ĞƐƟŵĂƚĞƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�KĸĐĞ�ŽĨ�EĂƟŽŶĂů�^ƚĂƟƐƟĐƐ�ϮϬϭϲ͘�ϲϲй�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�
ĨĞŵĂůĞ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ϯϰй�ǁŚŽ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŵĂůĞ͘� 

Þ �Ǉ�ĂŐĞ͕�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂũŽƌŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚ�ƉƌŽĮůĞ�;ϲϰйͿ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂŐĞĚ�ϲϱ�Žƌ�ĂďŽǀĞ͘�ZĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�
ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�Ăůů�ĂŐĞ�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ϭϴ͘� 

Þ ϯϵй�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ŝŶĚŝĐĂƚĞĚ�Ă�ůŽŶŐ�ƚĞƌŵ�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�Žƌ�ŝůůŶĞƐƐ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĂīĞĐƚƐ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĚĂǇ�ƚŽ�ĚĂǇ�
ĂĐƟǀŝƟĞƐ͘�dŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�ƚǁŝĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƌƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ�ƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚƐ�ŽǀĞƌĂůů�ǁŚŽ�ŚĂǀĞ�Ă�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�
ĂīĞĐƚƐ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĚĂǇ�ƚŽ�ĚĂǇ�ĂĐƟǀŝƟĞƐ�;ϭϵйͿ͘ 

Þ �Ǉ�ĞƚŚŶŝĐŝƚǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚ�ƉƌŽĮůĞ�ǁĂƐ�ƐŝŵŝůĂƌ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƌƟŽŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŽƉƵůĂƟŽŶ�
ŽǀĞƌĂůů͘� 

ϴϮй�ǁĞƌĞ�ďƵƐ�ƵƐĞƌƐ� 

Page 18



�ϵ 

 4. BUS USAGE IN STAFFORDSHIRE  
ϰ͘ϭ͗�ZĞĂƐŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƵƐĂŐĞ 
ZĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁŚŽ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƌĞŐƵůĂƌ�ďƵƐ�ƵƐĞƌƐ�;ƚŚŽƐĞ�ƵƐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞŵ�ŽŶĐĞ�Ă�ŵŽŶƚŚ�Žƌ�ŵŽƌĞͿ�ŝŶĚŝĐĂƚĞĚ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�
ƚŚĞŝƌ�ƵƐĂŐĞ͘�/ƚ�ǁĂƐ�ŵŽƐƚ�ĐŽŵŵŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�ƵƐĞ�ďƵƐĞƐ�͚ƚŽ�ŐŽ�ƐŚŽƉƉŝŶŐ͛�;ϴϲйͿ͕�͚ĨŽƌ�ůĞŝƐƵƌĞͬƐŽĐŝĂů�
ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞƐ͛�;ϳϱйͿ͕�͚ƚŽ�ǀŝƐŝƚ�ĨƌŝĞŶĚƐͬĨĂŵŝůǇ͛�;ϳϭйͿ�ĂŶĚ�͚ƚŽ�ŐĞƚ�ƚŽ�Ă�ĚŽĐƚŽƌƐ�Žƌ�ŵĞĚŝĐĂů�ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚŵĞŶƚ͛�;ϲϭйͿ͘�
ϯϱй�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ƵƐĞĚ�ďƵƐĞƐ�ƌĞŐƵůĂƌůǇ�͚ƚŽ�ŐĞƚ�ƚŽ�ǁŽƌŬ͛�ĂŶĚ�Ϯϰй�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŚĞŵ�͚ƚŽ�ŐĞƚ�ƚŽ�ĞĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ�Žƌ�
ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ͛͘�ZĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ĨƌĞƋƵĞŶĐǇ�ŽĨ�ďƵƐ�ƵƐĂŐĞ�ďǇ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƵƐĂŐĞ�ŝƐ�ŽƵƚůŝŶĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌĂƉŚ�ďĞůŽǁ͘� 

ϰ͘Ϯ͗�dŝŵĞƐ�ŽĨ�ĚĂǇ�ĨŽƌ�ďƵƐ�ƵƐĂŐĞ� 
/ƚ�ǁĂƐ�ĐŽŵŵŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�ƵƐĞ�ďƵƐĞƐ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ϵĂŵ�ĂŶĚ�ϰƉŵ͘�dŚŝƐ�ǁĂƐ�ĨŽƌ�Ă�ǀĂƌŝĞƚǇ�ŽĨ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶƐ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�
ŵŽƐƚ�ĨƌĞƋƵĞŶƚůǇ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�͚ƚŽ�ŐŽ�ƐŚŽƉƉŝŶŐ͛͘�dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ĂŶ�ŝĚĞŶƟĮĞĚ�ŶĞĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ďƵƐ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚĂƟŽŶ�ďĞĨŽƌĞ�
ϵĂŵ͕�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ϰƉŵ�ĂŶĚ�ϳƉŵ�ĂŶĚ�ĂŌĞƌ�ϳƉŵ͘��ĞĨŽƌĞ�ϵĂŵ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŶĞĞĚ�ǁĂƐ�ŐƌĞĂƚĞƐƚ�ĨŽƌ�͚ŐĞƫŶŐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĚŽĐƚŽƌƐͬ
ŵĞĚŝĐĂů�ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚŵĞŶƚƐ͛�ĂŶĚ�͚ƚŽ�ŐĞƚ�ƚŽ�ǁŽƌŬ͛͘��ĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ϰƉŵ�ĂŶĚ�ϳƉŵ͕�ƚŚŝƐ�ŶĞĞĚ�ǁĂƐ�ŵŽƐƚ�ůŝŬĞůǇ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĨŽƌ�
͚ůĞŝƐƵƌĞͬƐŽĐŝĂů͛�ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞƐ͕�͚ƚŽ�ǀŝƐŝƚ�ĨƌŝĞŶĚƐͬĨĂŵŝůǇ͕͛�͚ƚŽ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͛�ĂŶĚ�ƚŽ�ƚƌĂǀĞů�ŚŽŵĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�͚ǁŽƌŬ͛͘��ŌĞƌ�
ϳƉŵ�͚ůĞŝƐƵƌĞͬƐŽĐŝĂů͛�ĂŶĚ�͚ĨƌŝĞŶĚƐͬĨĂŵŝůǇ͛�ǁĞƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ĐŽŵŵŽŶ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƵƐŝŶŐ�ďƵƐĞƐ͘� 

&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϰ͘ϭ͗��&ƌĞƋƵĞŶĐǇ�ŽĨ�ďƵƐ�ƵƐĂŐĞ�ŝŶ�^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ�ďǇ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƵƐĂŐĞ;йͿ 

&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϰ͘Ϯ͗�dŝŵĞƐ�ŽĨ�ĚĂǇ�ĨŽƌ�ďƵƐ�ƵƐĂŐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƵƐĂŐĞ�;EŽ͘�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞͿ 

Page 19



�ϭϬ 

ϰ͘ϯ͗��ƵƐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƵƐĞĚ 
^ƵƌǀĞǇ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ŝŶĚŝĐĂƚĞĚ�ƌĞŐƵůĂƌ�ƵƐĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ϳϲ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ͘�dŚĞ�ŚŝŐŚĞƐƚ�
ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ĂďŽƵƚ�ĞĂĐŚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ͖���Θ�'��ŽĂĐŚ�Θ��ƵƐ�>ƚĚ�-�ϭϰ͖�
^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ��ŽƌĚĞƌ�dƌĂǀĞů͖��ƐŚďŽƵƌŶĞ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�dƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ͖���Θ�'��ŽĂĐŚ�Θ��ƵƐ�>ƚĚ�-�ϭϮ�ĂŶĚ���Θ�'�
�ŽĂĐŚ�Θ��ƵƐ�>ƚĚ�-�ϯϬ͘���ĨƵůů�ůŝƐƚ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƵƐĞ�ŝƐ�ĐŽŶƚĂŝŶĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƉƉĞŶĚŝǆ͘�ZĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�
ŶŽƚ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ĞĂĐŚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ďĞůŽǁ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ—�ĞŶŶĞƩƐ�dƌĂǀĞů�>ƚĚ—ϰϱϱ͕���Θ�'��ŽĂĐŚ�Θ��ƵƐ�>ƚĚ�-�^ϲ͕�
�ĞƌďǇƐŚŝƌĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�-�sϯ͕�'���^ĐƌĂŐŐ�Θ�^ŽŶƐ�-�ϭϴϮ͕�^ŚŝƌĞ�dƌĂǀĞů�-�dϯ�ĂŶĚ�^ŚŝƌĞ�dƌĂǀĞů�-�dϱ͘� 
 
ϰ͘ϰ͗��ŽŶĐĞƐƐŝŽŶĂƌǇ�ƉĂƐƐĞƐ 
ZĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂƐŬĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŝĚĞŶƟĨǇ�ŝĨ�ƚŚĞǇ�ŚĞůĚ�Ă�ĐŽŶĐĞƐƐŝŽŶĂƌǇ�ƉĂƐƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĨƌĞĞ�ƚƌĂǀĞů͘�EĞĂƌůǇ�ƚŚƌĞĞ�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌƐ�
;ϳϯйͿ�ƐĂŝĚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ĚŝĚ͘�:ƵƐƚ�ŽǀĞƌ�ŽŶĞ�ĮŌŚ�;ϮϮй�Ϳ�ƉĂŝĚ�ĨƵůů�ĨĂƌĞ͕�ϯй�ƵƐĞĚ�Ă�zŽƵƌ�^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ��ĂƌĚ�ĂŶĚ�Ă�
ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ϯй�ƵƐĞĚ�ĂŶ�ŽƉĞƌĂƚŽƌ�ƉĂƐƐ�Žƌ�ƐĞĂƐŽŶ�ƟĐŬĞƚ͘� 
 
ϰ͘ϱ͗��ŝĂů-Ă-ZŝĚĞ 
Ϯϰй�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�;Žƌ�ϰϰϬ�ƉĞŽƉůĞͿ�ƐĂŝĚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ƵƐĞĚ��ŝĂů-Ă-ZŝĚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͘�KĨ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͕�
ƚŚĞ�ŵĂũŽƌŝƚǇ͕�;ϳϭйͿ�ƐĂŝĚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŚĞŵ�Ăƚ�ůĞĂƐƚ�ŽŶĐĞ�Ă�ǁĞĞŬ͘�� 
 

 
 

 

�ŝĂů-Ă-ZŝĚĞ�ƵƐĞƌƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂƐŬĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŝŶĚŝĐĂƚĞ�ŝĨ�ƚŚĞǇ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƉƌĞƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƉĂǇ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�άϴ-άϭϬ�ƉĞƌ�ƐŝŶŐůĞ�
ũŽƵƌŶĞǇ�ĨŽƌ�ƚƌĂǀĞů�ƚŽ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞ͘�ϳϵй�ĚŝƐĂŐƌĞĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƐĂŝĚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŶŽƚ�ďĞ�ƉƌĞƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƉĂǇ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚ͘�
ϴй�ĂŐƌĞĞĚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƉƌĞƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƉĂǇ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ϭϯй�ŶĞŝƚŚĞƌ�ĂŐƌĞĞĚ�ŶŽƌ�ĚŝƐĂŐƌĞĞĚ͘�/Ŷ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�
ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ĚŝĚ�ŝŶĚŝĐĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞǇ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƉƌĞƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƉĂǇ�Ă�͞ƐŵĂůů�ŶŽŵŝŶĂů�ĨĞĞ͟�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�
ƚŽ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞ͘� 
 
 
 

&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϰ͘ϰ͗�&ƌĞƋƵĞŶĐǇ�ŽĨ�ƵƐĞ͕��ŝĂů-Ă-ZŝĚĞ�;йͿ &ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϰ͘ϯ͗�й�ƵƐŝŶŐ��ŝĂů-Ă-ZŝĚĞ�;йͿ 
KŶĐĞ�Ă�ǁĞĞŬ >ĞƐƐ�ŽŌĞŶ 

�ƚ�ůĞĂƐƚ�ŽŶĐĞ�
Ă�ĨŽƌƚŶŝŐŚƚ 

�ƚ�ůĞĂƐƚ�ŽŶĐĞ�
Ă�ŵŽŶƚŚ 

Page 20



�ϭϭ 

 
 
 

5. OPTION 1  

Option 1: This option seeks to maintain priority routes and support some services for employment, 
education and health. There would be no Dial-A-Ride services. This is the county council’s preferred 
option because it retains the greatest number of journeys. 
ϱ͘ϭ͗��ŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�dŚĞ�ŐƌĂƉŚ�ďĞůŽǁ�ŝůůƵƐƚƌĂƚĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϭ͘�ϰϳй�ŽĨ�Ăůů�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�
ĞǆƉƌĞƐƐĞĚ�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŽƉƟŽŶ͘�dŚĞ�ƐĂŵĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƌƟŽŶ�;ϰϳйͿ�ŽĨ�͚ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂůƐ͛��ĂůƐŽ�ĞǆƉƌĞƐƐĞĚ�
ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŽƉƟŽŶ͕�ǁŚŝůĞ�Ă�ƐŵĂůůĞƌ�ƉƌŽƉŽƌƟŽŶ�;ϮϴйͿ�ŽĨ�͚ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ͛�ƐĂŝĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂŵĞ͘�dŚĞ�ůĞǀĞů�
ŽĨ�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ǀĂƌŝĞĚ�ďǇ�ƐŽŵĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚ�ƚǇƉĞƐ͘�dŚŽƐĞ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂůƐ�ůĞĂƐƚ�ůŝŬĞůǇ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ŝŶ�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚŝƐ�
ŽƉƟŽŶ�ǁĞƌĞ͖�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�͚ůŽŶŐ�ƚĞƌŵ�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĂīĞĐƚƐ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĚĂǇ�ƚŽ�ĚĂǇ�ĂĐƟǀŝƟĞƐ͛�;ϰϰй�ĂŐƌĞĞĚͿ͕�
ƚŚŽƐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�͚ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ͛�;ϯϳй�ĂŐƌĞĞĚͿ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�͚ƵƐŝŶŐ��ŝĂů-Ă-ZŝĚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͛�;ϭϯй�ĂŐƌĞĞĚͿ͘�� 
&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϱ͘ϭ͗�sŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϭ�;йͿ KǀĞƌĂůů�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ��;Ăůů�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐͿ 

 

ZĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŝŶǀŝƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƐƚĂƚĞ�ƚŽ�ǁŚĂƚ�ĞǆƚĞŶƚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ĂŐƌĞĞĚ�Žƌ�ĚŝƐĂŐƌĞĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĞĂĐŚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽƵƌ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ͘� 

&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϱ͗Ϯ͗�,Žǁ�ƚƌĂǀĞů�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ĂīĞĐƚ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĨĂŵŝůŝĞƐ�;йͿ 

ϱ͘Ϯ͗�/ŵƉĂĐƚ�ZĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂůƐŽ�ĂƐŬĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂƌƟĐƵůĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϭ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƵƉŽŶ�
ƚŚĞŵ�Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ƚŚĞǇ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ͘���ƚŽƚĂů�ŽĨ�ϱϰй�ĨĞůƚ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϭ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĞŝƚŚĞƌ�͚ƋƵŝƚĞ�Ă�ďŝŐͬďŝŐ�
ĞīĞĐƚ͛͘�dŚĞ�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ǀĂƌŝĞĚ�ďǇ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚ�ƚǇƉĞ͘��ůů�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚ�ƚǇƉĞƐ�ůŝƐƚĞĚ�ďĞůŽǁ�ĨĞůƚ�ƚŚĞ�
ŽƉƟŽŶ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĂŶ�ĂďŽǀĞ�ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞ�͚ƋƵŝƚĞ�Ă�ďŝŐͬďŝŐ�ĞīĞĐƚ͛�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞŵ͖�͚�ŝĂů-Ă-ZŝĚĞ�ƵƐĞƌƐ͛�;ϴϲйͿ͕�͚ϳϱн�ǇĞĂƌ�
ŽůĚƐ͛�;ϳϮйͿ͕�͚hŶĚĞƌ�ϭϴ͛Ɛ͛�;ϱϴйͿ͕�͚>ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ��ŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ͛�;ϲϲйͿ͕�͚DŽďŝůŝƚǇ�/ŵƉĂŝƌĞĚ͛�;ϲϱйͿ�ĂŶĚ�
͚�ŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ͛�;ϲϬйͿ͘��ůƐŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂũŽƌŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�͚ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ͛�;ϴϮйͿ�ĨĞůƚ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϭ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƋƵŝƚĞ�Ă�ďŝŐͬďŝŐ�ĞīĞĐƚ�
ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ƚŚĞǇ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ͘� 

;�ĂƐĞ͗�ϭϳϬϲ�
ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐͿ 

;�ĂƐĞ͗�ϯϱ�
ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐͿ 

;�ĂƐĞ͗�ϭϱϱϵ�
ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐͿ 

;�ĂƐĞ͗�ϯϯ�
ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐͿ 

Page 21



�ϭϮ 
 

ϱ͘ϯ͗��ŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ͗�/ŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϭ 
ZĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĞŶĐŽƵƌĂŐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŝĚĞŶƟĨǇ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚƐ�ŽĨ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϭ�ƵƉŽŶ�ƚŚĞŵƐĞůǀĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĨĂŵŝůŝĞƐ͘��
ϭϴϳϴ�ǀŝĞǁƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƚŚĞŵĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƵŵŵĂƌŝƐĞĚ�ďĞůŽǁ͘� 
 
dŚŽƐĞ�ǁŚŽ�ĞǆƉƌĞƐƐĞĚ�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ǁĞƌĞ͕�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ͕�ŶŽƚ�ĂīĞĐƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�
ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƚŚĞǇ�ŵŽƐƚ�ƌĞŐƵůĂƌůǇ�ƵƐĞĚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ƐƟůů�ƌƵŶ͘�^ŽŵĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ĨĞůƚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂŌĞƌ�ĂƐƐĞƐƐŝŶŐ�Ăůů�ĨŽƵƌ�
ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ƚŚŝƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŽŶĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ůĞĂƐƚ�ĂīĞĐƚƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ůŝǀŝŶŐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĂƌĞĂ�ǁŚŝůĞ�ŽƚŚĞƌƐ�ƐƚĂƚĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�
ƚŚĞǇ�ŚĂĚ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ƚƌĂǀĞů͘�/Ŷ�Ă�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ĐĂƐĞƐ͕�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�ĐůĞĂƌůǇ�ƐŽŵĞ�ĐŽŶĨƵƐŝŽŶ�ĂƐ�ǁŚŝůĞ�ƚŚĞ�
ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚ�ŚĂĚ�ƐĞůĞĐƚĞĚ�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƉƟŽŶ͕�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂďŽƵƚ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚƐ�ƌĞŇĞĐƚĞĚ�
ƋƵŝƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƉƉŽƐŝƚĞ͘ 
 
&Žƌ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ǁŚŽ�ĚŝƐĂŐƌĞĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŽƉƟŽŶ͕�Žƌ�ĨĞůƚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�Ă�ŶĞŐĂƟǀĞ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ůŝǀĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�
ŵŽƐƚ�ĐŽŵŵŽŶůǇ�ŵĞŶƟŽŶĞĚ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂďŽƵƚ͖�͚Ă�ůĂĐŬ�ŽĨ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ͖͛�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ�ŽĨ�͚ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�
ŵŽďŝůŝƚǇͬƚŚĞ�ĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ŐĞƚ�ŽƵƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂďŽƵƚ͖͛�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ�ĂďŽƵƚ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬŝŶŐ�͚ƐŚŽƉƉŝŶŐ͖͛�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ�ĂďŽƵƚ�ďĞŝŶŐ�
ƵŶĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ŵĂŬĞ�ŚŽƐƉŝƚĂů�ĂŶĚ�ĚŽĐƚŽƌƐ�͚ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚŵĞŶƚƐ͛�ĂƐ�ǁĞůů�ĂƐ�͚ƐŽĐŝĂů�ŝƐŽůĂƟŽŶ͛͘�� 
dŚĞƐĞ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂůƐŽ�ƌĞŝŶĨŽƌĐĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�͚ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ͛͘�KƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ͛�ŚĂǀĞ�ĂůƐŽ�
ŚŝŐŚůŝŐŚƚĞĚ�ƉĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌ�ǀƵůŶĞƌĂďůĞ�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ�ǁŚŽ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƚĞĚ�Žƌ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŽƉƟŽŶ͘�dŚĞƐĞ�ŚĂǀĞ�
ďĞĞŶ�ƐŚĂƌĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͘� 
 
<ĞǇ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƌĞŇĞĐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ĐŽŵŵŽŶůǇ�ŵĞŶƟŽŶĞĚ�ƚŚĞŵĞƐ�ĐĂƉƚƵƌĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌĂƉŚŝĐ�ďĞůŽǁ͕�ĂƌĞ�
ŽƵƚůŝŶĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƐĞĐƟŽŶ�ϭϬ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ͘� 
&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϱ͘ϯ͗�/ŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϭ—ƚŚĞŵĞĚ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�;EƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐͿ�� �ĂƐĞ͗�ϴϭϯ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ 

Page 22



�ϭϯ 

 

Option 2: This option seeks to maintain priority routes and support some services for employment, 
education and health. There would be two Dial-A-Ride services maintained - Staffordshire Moorlands 
Connect and South Staffordshire Connect. 
ϲ͘ϭ͗��ŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�dŚĞ�ŐƌĂƉŚ�ďĞůŽǁ�ŝůůƵƐƚƌĂƚĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�Ϯ͘�Ϯϱй�ŽĨ�Ăůů�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�
ĞǆƉƌĞƐƐĞĚ�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŽƉƟŽŶ͘�dŚĞ�ƐĂŵĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƌƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�͚ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂůƐ͛�ĂůƐŽ�ĞǆƉƌĞƐƐĞĚ�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�
ƚŚŝƐ�ŽƉƟŽŶ͕�ǁŚŝůĞ�Ă�ƐůŝŐŚƚůǇ�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�ƉƌŽƉŽƌƟŽŶ�;ϮϳйͿ�ŽĨ�͚ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ͛�ƐĂŝĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂŵĞ�͘dŚĞ�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�
ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ƐŚŽǁĞĚ�ŵŝŶŝŵĂů�ǀĂƌŝĂƟŽŶ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂũŽƌŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚ�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ͘�,ŽǁĞǀĞƌ͕�͚�ŝĂů-Ă-ZŝĚĞ�ƵƐĞƌƐ͛�
ǁĞƌĞ�ŵĂƌŐŝŶĂůůǇ�ŵŽƌĞ�ůŝŬĞůǇ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ŝŶ�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�;ϯϭйͿ͘�/Ŷ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶ͕�Ϯϳй�ŽĨ�͚ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ͛�
ĂŐƌĞĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŽƉƟŽŶ͘� 
&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϲ͘ϭ͗�sŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�Ϯ�;йͿ KǀĞƌĂůů�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�;Ăůů�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐͿ 

ϲ͘Ϯ͗�/ŵƉĂĐƚ�ZĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂůƐŽ�ĂƐŬĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂƌƟĐƵůĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�Ϯ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƵƉŽŶ�
ƚŚĞŵ�Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ƚŚĞǇ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ͘���ƚŽƚĂů�ŽĨ�ϰϲй�ĨĞůƚ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�Ϯ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĞŝƚŚĞƌ�͚ƋƵŝƚĞ�Ă�ďŝŐͬďŝŐ�
ĞīĞĐƚ͛͘�dŚĞ�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ǀĂƌŝĞĚ�ďǇ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚ�ƚǇƉĞ͘��ůů�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚ�ƚǇƉĞƐ�ůŝƐƚĞĚ�ďĞůŽǁ�ĨĞůƚ�ƚŚĞ�
ŽƉƟŽŶ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĂŶ�ĂďŽǀĞ�ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞ�͚ƋƵŝƚĞ�Ă�ďŝŐͬďŝŐ�ĞīĞĐƚ͛�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞŵ͖�ϴϬй�ŽĨ�͚�ŝĂů-Ă-ZŝĚĞ�ƵƐĞƌƐ͕͛�ϳϳй�ŽĨ�
͚ƵŶĚĞƌ�ϭϴ͛Ɛ͛�Θ�ϱϳй�ŽĨ�͚ϳϱн�ǇĞĂƌ�ŽůĚƐ͕͛�ϱϳй�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�͚ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ͛�ĂŶĚ�ϱϲй�ŽĨ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ǁŚŽƐĞ�͚ŵŽďŝůŝƚǇ�
ǁĂƐ�ŝŵƉĂŝƌĞĚ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�Ă�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ͛͘� 
dŚĞ�ŵĂũŽƌŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�͚ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ͛�ĂůƐŽ�ĨĞůƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�͚ƋƵŝƚĞ�Ă�ďŝŐͬďŝŐ�ĞīĞĐƚ͛�;ϴϬйͿ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�
ƚŚĞǇ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ͘ 
&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϲ͘Ϯ͗�,Žǁ�ƚƌĂǀĞů�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ĂīĞĐƚ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĨĂŵŝůŝĞƐ�;йͿ 

6. OPTION 2  

;�ĂƐĞ͗�ϭϱϯϮ�
ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐͿ 

;�ĂƐĞ͗�ϯϬ�
ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐͿ 

;�ĂƐĞ͗�ϭϯϮϮ�
ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐͿ 

;�ĂƐĞ͗�ϯϬ�
ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐͿ 

Page 23



�ϭϰ 

 ϲ͘ϯ͗��ŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ͗�/ŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�Ϯ 
ZĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĞŶĐŽƵƌĂŐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŝĚĞŶƟĨǇ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚƐ�ŽĨ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�Ϯ�ƵƉŽŶ�ƚŚĞŵƐĞůǀĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĨĂŵŝůŝĞƐ͘�
sŝĞǁƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĞǆƉƌĞƐƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�Ă�ǁŝĚĞ�ƌĂŶŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƉŽƚĞŶƟĂů�ŝŵƉĂĐƚƐ͘�ϳϵϮ�ǀŝĞǁƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƚŚĞŵĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�
ƐƵŵŵĂƌŝƐĞĚ�ďĞůŽǁ͘� 
 
dŚĞ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ǁŚŽ�ĞǆƉƌĞƐƐĞĚ�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ƌĞŇĞĐƚĞĚ�ŚŽǁ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂůƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�
ŚĂǀĞ�ůŝƩůĞ�Žƌ�ŶŽƚ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ůŝǀĞƐ�ĂƐ�ĞŝƚŚĞƌ�ƚŚĞǇ�ĚŝĚ�ŶŽƚ�ƵƐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƚŚĞŵƐĞůǀĞƐ͕�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƚŚĞǇ�
ƵƐĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶĞĚ�Žƌ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�ĂŶ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ͘�^ĞǀĞƌĂů�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�
ǁĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�Ăůů�ĂƐ�ŝƚ�ƐƟůů�ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶĞĚ�ůŝŶŬƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ƌƵƌĂů�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƐ�ǁĞůů�ĂƐ�
ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ƌŽƵƚĞƐ͘ 
 
&Žƌ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ǁŚŽ�ĚŝƐĂŐƌĞĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĨĞůƚ�ŝƚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ĐƌĞĂƚĞ�ŶĞŐĂƟǀĞ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ůŝǀĞƐ͕�ƚŚĞ�
ŵŽƐƚ�ĐŽŵŵŽŶůǇ�ŵĞŶƟŽŶĞĚ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂďŽƵƚ͖�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ�ŽĨ�͚ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�ŵŽďŝůŝƚǇͬƚŚĞ�ĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ŐĞƚ�ŽƵƚ�ĂŶĚ�
ĂďŽƵƚ͖͛�Ă�ůĂĐŬ�ŽĨ�͚ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ͛�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ĂƐ�ǁĞůů�ĂƐ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂů�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�ŽŶ�͚ �ŝĂů-Ă-ZŝĚĞ͛�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�
ƐŚĂƌĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͘��ŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ�ĂďŽƵƚ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ƵŶĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ŵĂŬĞ�ŚŽƐƉŝƚĂů�ĂŶĚ�ĚŽĐƚŽƌƐ�͚ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚŵĞŶƚƐ͛�ǁĞƌĞ�
ĂůƐŽ�ƌĂŝƐĞĚ͘ 
 
dŚĞƐĞ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂůƐŽ�ƌĞŝŶĨŽƌĐĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�͚ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ͛͘�KƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ͛�ŚĂǀĞ�ĂůƐŽ�
ŚŝŐŚůŝŐŚƚĞĚ�ƉĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌ�ǀƵůŶĞƌĂďůĞ�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ�ǁŚŽ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƚĞĚ�Žƌ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŽƉƟŽŶ͘�dŚĞƐĞ�ŚĂǀĞ�
ďĞĞŶ�ƐŚĂƌĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͘� 
 
<ĞǇ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƌĞŇĞĐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ĐŽŵŵŽŶůǇ�ŵĞŶƟŽŶĞĚ�ƚŚĞŵĞƐ�ĐĂƉƚƵƌĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌĂƉŚŝĐ�ďĞůŽǁ͕�ĂƌĞ�
ŽƵƚůŝŶĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƐĞĐƟŽŶ�ϭϬ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ͘� 

&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϲ͘ϯ͗�/ŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�Ϯ—ƚŚĞŵĞĚ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�;EƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐͿ�� �ĂƐĞ͗�ϱϱϲ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ 

Page 24



�ϭϱ 

 
 
Option 3: Option 3 maintains four Dial-A-Ride services - Staffordshire Moorlands Connect, South 
Staffordshire Connect, Needwood Forest Connect and Lichfield and Rugeley Village Connect. This 
option also maintains some subsidised local bus services. There will be no Border Car service under this 
option. 
ϳ͘ϭ͗��ŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�dŚĞ�ŐƌĂƉŚ�ďĞůŽǁ�ŝůůƵƐƚƌĂƚĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϯ͘�Ϯϯй�ŽĨ�Ăůů�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�
ĞǆƉƌĞƐƐĞĚ�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϯ͘�dŚĞ�ƐĂŵĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƌƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�͛ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂůƐ͛�ĨĞůƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂŵĞ�ǁŚŝůĞ�Ă�ƐůŝŐŚƚůǇ�
ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�ƉƌŽƉŽƌƟŽŶ�;ϯϬйͿ�ŽĨ�͚ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ͛�ĂůƐŽ�ĂŐƌĞĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŽƉƟŽŶ͘�dŚĞ�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ǀĂƌŝĞĚ�ďǇ�
ƐŽŵĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚ�ƚǇƉĞƐ͘�^ŽŵĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚ�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŵŽƌĞ�ůŝŬĞůǇ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ŝŶ�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ͘�dŚĞƐĞ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�
͚�ŝĂů-Ă-ZŝĚĞ�ƵƐĞƌƐ͛�;ϱϯй�ĂŐƌĞĞĚͿ͕�ƚŚŽƐĞ�͚ĂŐĞĚ�ϳϱн͛�;ϯϬй�ĂŐƌĞĞĚͿ͕�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�͚ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĂīĞĐƚƐ�
ŵŽďŝůŝƚǇ͛�;ϮϳйͿ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�͚Ă�ůŽŶŐ�ƚĞƌŵ�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ͛�;ϮϲйͿ͘� 
&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϳ͘ϭ͗sŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϯ�;йͿ KǀĞƌĂůů�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�;Ăůů�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐͿ 

ϳ͘Ϯ͗�/ŵƉĂĐƚ�ZĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂůƐŽ�ĂƐŬĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂƌƟĐƵůĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϯ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƵƉŽŶ�
ƚŚĞŵ�Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ƚŚĞǇ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ͘���ƚŽƚĂů�ŽĨ�ϰϱй�ĨĞůƚ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϯ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĞŝƚŚĞƌ�͚ƋƵŝƚĞ�Ă�ďŝŐͬďŝŐ�
ĞīĞĐƚ͛͘�dŚĞ�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ǀĂƌŝĞĚ�ďǇ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚ�ƚǇƉĞ͘��ůů�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚ�ƚǇƉĞƐ�ůŝƐƚĞĚ�ďĞůŽǁ�ĨĞůƚ�ƚŚĞ�
ŽƉƟŽŶ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĂŶ�ĂďŽǀĞ�ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞ�͚ƋƵŝƚĞ�Ă�ďŝŐͬďŝŐ�ĞīĞĐƚ͛�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞŵ͖�ϳϵй�ŽĨ�͚�ŝĂů-Ă-ZŝĚĞ�ƵƐĞƌƐ͕͛�ϳϭй�ŽĨ�
͚ƵŶĚĞƌ�ϭϴ�ǇĞĂƌ�ŽůĚƐ͕͛�ϲϲй�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�͚ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ͛�ĂŶĚ�ϱϲй�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁŚŽƐĞ�
͚ŵŽďŝůŝƚǇ�ǁĂƐ�ŝŵƉĂŝƌĞĚ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�Ă�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ͛͘�dŚĞ�ŵĂũŽƌŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�͚ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ͛�ĂůƐŽ�ĨĞůƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�
͚ƋƵŝƚĞ�Ă�ďŝŐͬďŝŐ�ĞīĞĐƚ͛�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ƚŚĞǇ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ͘� 
&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϳ͘Ϯ͗�,Žǁ�ƚƌĂǀĞů�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ĂīĞĐƚ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĨĂŵŝůŝĞƐ�;йͿ 

7. OPTION 3  

;�ĂƐĞ͗�ϭϰϲϯ�
ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐͿ 

;�ĂƐĞ͗�ϯϰ�
ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐͿ 

;�ĂƐĞ͗�ϭϮϱϮ�
ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐͿ 

;�ĂƐĞ͗�ϯϯ�
ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐͿ 

Page 25



�ϭϲ 

 

ϳ͘ϯ͗��ŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ͗�/ŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϯ 
ZĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĞŶĐŽƵƌĂŐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŝĚĞŶƟĨǇ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚƐ�ŽĨ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϯ�ƵƉŽŶ�ƚŚĞŵƐĞůǀĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĨĂŵŝůŝĞƐ͘�
sŝĞǁƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĞǆƉƌĞƐƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�Ă�ǁŝĚĞ�ƌĂŶŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƉŽƚĞŶƟĂů�ŝŵƉĂĐƚƐ͘�ϳϳϮ�ǀŝĞǁƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƚŚĞŵĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�
ƐƵŵŵĂƌŝƐĞĚ�ďĞůŽǁ͘� 
 
tŚĞƌĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ƐŚŽǁĞĚ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂůƐ͕�ƚŚĞǇ�ĞǆƉƌĞƐƐĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŶŽƚ�
ŚĂǀĞ�Ă�ŐƌĞĂƚ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĞŝƚŚĞƌ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƚŚĞǇ�ŵŽƐƚ�ƌĞŐƵůĂƌůǇ�ƵƐĞ�ŚĂƐ�ůŝƩůĞ�Žƌ�ŶŽ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞ�Žƌ�
ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĂŶ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ�ŵĞĂŶƐ�ŽĨ�ƚƌĂǀĞů�Žƌ�ĚŽ�ŶŽƚ�ĨƌĞƋƵĞŶƚ�ďƵƐ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚĂƟŽŶ�ǀĞƌǇ�ŽŌĞŶ͘� 
 
tŚĞƌĞ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƌĂŝƐĞĚ͕�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ĐŽŵŵŽŶ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂďŽƵƚ͖�͚ŶŽ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞƐ͕͛�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ�ŽĨ�͚ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�ŵŽďŝůŝƚǇͬ
ƚŚĞ�ĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ŐĞƚ�ŽƵƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂďŽƵƚ͖͛�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂů�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�ŽŶ�͚�ŝĂů-Ă-ZŝĚĞ͛�;ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƐŚĂƌĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞͿ͕�͚ƐŽĐŝĂů�ŝƐŽůĂƟŽŶ͕͛�ĚŝĸĐƵůƟĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ƉŝĐŬ�ƵƉ�͚ƐŚŽƉƉŝŶŐ͛�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ�ĂďŽƵƚ�ďĞŝŶŐ�
ƵŶĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ŵĂŬĞ�ŚŽƐƉŝƚĂů�ĂŶĚ�ĚŽĐƚŽƌƐ�͚ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚŵĞŶƚƐ͛͘� 
 
dŚĞƐĞ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂůƐŽ�ƌĞŝŶĨŽƌĐĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�͚ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ͛͘�͚KƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ͛�ŚĂǀĞ�
ĂůƐŽ�ŚŝŐŚůŝŐŚƚĞĚ�ƉĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌ�ǀƵůŶĞƌĂďůĞ�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ�ǁŚŽ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƚĞĚ�Žƌ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŽƉƟŽŶ͘�dŚĞƐĞ�
ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƐŚĂƌĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͘� 
 
<ĞǇ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƌĞŇĞĐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ĐŽŵŵŽŶůǇ�ŵĞŶƟŽŶĞĚ�ƚŚĞŵĞƐ�ĐĂƉƚƵƌĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌĂƉŚŝĐ�ďĞůŽǁ͕�ĂƌĞ�
ŽƵƚůŝŶĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƐĞĐƟŽŶ�ϭϬ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ͘� 

 

&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϳ͘ϯ͗�/ŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϯ—ƚŚĞŵĞĚ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�;EƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐͿ�� �ĂƐĞ͗�ϰϵϳ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ 

Page 26



�ϭϳ 

 

Option 4: Under this option, Staffordshire County Council would subsidise Dial-A-Ride services only. 
The existing Dial-A-Ride services; Staffordshire Moorlands Connect, South Staffordshire Connect, 
Needwood Forest Connect, Lichfield and Rugeley Village Connect and the Border Car would be 
maintained. An additional Seven new Dial-A-Ride services would also be introduced. There would be no 
local council subsidised services. 
ϴ͘ϭ͗��ŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�dŚĞ�ŐƌĂƉŚ�ďĞůŽǁ�ŝůůƵƐƚƌĂƚĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϰ͘��Ϯϳй�ŽĨ�Ăůů�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�
ƐĂŝĚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ĂŐƌĞĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ǁŚŝůĞ�Ă�ƐůŝŐŚƚůǇ�ůŽǁĞƌ�ƉƌŽƉŽƌƟŽŶ�;ϮϲйͿ�ŽĨ�͚ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂůƐ͛�ĨĞůƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂŵĞ͘�
dŚŝƐ�ǁĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ�ĐŚŽŝĐĞ�ŽĨ�͚ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ͛�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ŚŝŐŚĞƐƚ�ƉƌŽƉŽƌƟŽŶ�;ϯϵйͿ�ĞǆƉƌĞƐƐŝŶŐ�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�
ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŽƉƟŽŶ͘�dŚĞ�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ǀĂƌŝĞĚ�ďǇ�ƐŽŵĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚ�ƚǇƉĞƐ͘�^ŽŵĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚ�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ�
ǁĞƌĞ�ŵŽƌĞ�ůŝŬĞůǇ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ŝŶ�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ͘�dŚĞƐĞ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�͚�ŝĂů-Ă-ZŝĚĞ͛�ƵƐĞƌƐ�;ϲϱйͿ͕�ƚŚŽƐĞ�͚ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�
ϭϴ͛�;ϯϴйͿ͕�ƚŚŽƐĞ�͚ĂŐĞĚ�ϳϱн͛�;ϯϰйͿ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�͚Ă�ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ͛�;ϯϮйͿ͘� 

ϴ͘Ϯ͗�/ŵƉĂĐƚ�ZĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂůƐŽ�ĂƐŬĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂƌƟĐƵůĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϰ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƵƉŽŶ�
ƚŚĞŵ�Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ƚŚĞǇ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ͘���ƚŽƚĂů�ŽĨ�ϱϯй�ĨĞůƚ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϰ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĞŝƚŚĞƌ�͚ƋƵŝƚĞ�Ă�ďŝŐͬďŝŐ�
ĞīĞĐƚ͛͘�dŚĞ�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ǀĂƌŝĞĚ�ďǇ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚ�ƚǇƉĞ͘��ůů�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚ�ƚǇƉĞƐ�ůŝƐƚĞĚ�ďĞůŽǁ�ĨĞůƚ�ƚŚĞ�
ŽƉƟŽŶ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĂŶ�ĂďŽǀĞ�ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞ�͚ƋƵŝƚĞ�Ă�ďŝŐͬďŝŐ�ĞīĞĐƚ͛�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞŵ͖�ϲϮй�ŽĨ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�͚ĂŐĞĚ�ϳϱн͕͛�ϱϳй�ŽĨ�
ƚŚŽƐĞ�͚ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ϭϴ͛�ĂŶĚ�ϲϬй�ŽĨ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�͚Ă�ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ͛͘� 
dŚĞ�ŵĂũŽƌŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ĨĞůƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�͚ƋƵŝƚĞ�Ă�ďŝŐͬďŝŐ�ĞīĞĐƚ͛�;ϴϰйͿ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�
ƚŚĞǇ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚ͘� 

&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϴ͘ϭ͗�sŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϰ�;йͿ 

&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϴ͘Ϯ͗�,Žǁ�ƚƌĂǀĞů�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ĂīĞĐƚ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĨĂŵŝůŝĞƐ�;йͿ 

8. OPTION 4  

KǀĞƌĂůů�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�;Ăůů�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐͿ 

;�ĂƐĞ͗�ϭϰϵϭ�
ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐͿ 

;�ĂƐĞ͗�ϯϯ�
ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐͿ 

;�ĂƐĞ͗�ϭϮϳϱ�
ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐͿ 

;�ĂƐĞ͗�ϯϭ�
ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐͿ 

Page 27



�ϭϴ 

 

ϴ͘ϯ͗��ŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ͗�/ŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϰ 
ZĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĞŶĐŽƵƌĂŐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŝĚĞŶƟĨǇ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚƐ�ŽĨ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϰ�ƵƉŽŶ�ƚŚĞŵƐĞůǀĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĨĂŵŝůŝĞƐ͘�
sŝĞǁƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĞǆƉƌĞƐƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�Ă�ǁŝĚĞ�ƌĂŶŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƉŽƚĞŶƟĂů�ŝŵƉĂĐƚƐ͘�ϵϭϬ�ǀŝĞǁƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƚŚĞŵĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�
ƐƵŵŵĂƌŝƐĞĚ�ďĞůŽǁ͘� 
 
�Ɛ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ăůů�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ͕�ŐĞŶĞƌĂůůǇ�ƐƉĞĂŬŝŶŐ͕�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ĂŐƌĞĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŽƉƟŽŶ͕�ŝƚ�ǁĂƐ�ďĞĐĂƵƐĞ�
ƚŚĞ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƐƵĐŚ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂůƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ůĞĂƐƚ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƚŚĞǇ�ƵƐĞ͘�DŽƐƚ�
ĐŽŵŵŽŶůǇ�ŵĞŶƟŽŶĞĚ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ�ĂďŽƵƚ͖�ŚĂǀŝŶŐ�͚ŶŽ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞƐ͕͛�͚ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�ŵŽďŝůŝƚǇͬƚŚĞ�ĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ŐĞƚ�
ŽƵƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂďŽƵƚ͖͛�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�ŽŶ��ŝĂů-Ă-ZŝĚĞ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƐŚĂƌĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͕�ƚŚĞ�͚ĐŽƐƚ͛�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͕�͚ƐŽĐŝĂů�ŝƐŽůĂƟŽŶ͛�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�͚ĐŽŵŵƵƚĞ͛�ƚŽ�ĂŶĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ǁŽƌŬ͘� 
 
dŚĞƐĞ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂůƐŽ�ƌĞŝŶĨŽƌĐĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�͚ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ͛͘�͚KƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ͛�ŚĂǀĞ�
ĂůƐŽ�ŚŝŐŚůŝŐŚƚĞĚ�ƉĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌ�ǀƵůŶĞƌĂďůĞ�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ�ǁŚŽ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƚĞĚ�Žƌ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŽƉƟŽŶ͘�dŚĞƐĞ�
ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƐŚĂƌĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͘� 
 
<ĞǇ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƌĞŇĞĐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ĐŽŵŵŽŶůǇ�ŵĞŶƟŽŶĞĚ�ƚŚĞŵĞƐ�ĐĂƉƚƵƌĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌĂƉŚŝĐ�ďĞůŽǁ͕�ĂƌĞ�
ŽƵƚůŝŶĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƐĞĐƟŽŶ�ϭϬ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ͘� 
&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϴ͘ϯ͗�/ŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϰ—ƚŚĞŵĞĚ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�;EƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐͿ�� �ĂƐĞ͗�ϱϰϬ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ 

Page 28



�ϭϵ 

dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĞƌĞ�Ă�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ŬĞǇ�ƚŚĞŵĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚ͛Ɛ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�ƚŚĂƚ��ƐƉĂŶŶĞĚ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�Ăůů�ĨŽƵƌ�
ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ͘���ƐĞůĞĐƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ĂƌĞ�ƐŚŽǁŶ�ďĞůŽǁ�͘�/ƚ�ŵƵƐƚ�ďĞ�ŶŽƚĞĚ�͕�ŚŽǁĞǀĞƌ͕�ƚŚĂƚ�Ăůů�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂů�
ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ĨŽƌǁĂƌĚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĂƌĞĂ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞĐŝƐŝŽŶ�ŵĂŬŝŶŐ͘� 
͚EŽ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞƐ͛͗ 
· ͞tĞ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŶŽ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ͘͟� 
· ͞EŽ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ŵĞĂŶƐ�ŽĨ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ͘͟ 
· ͞tĞ�ĐĂŶŶŽƚ�ŐĞƚ�ŽƵƚ�ĂŶǇ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ǁĂǇ�ĂƐ�ŶŽƚŚŝŶŐ�ĞůƐĞ�ƌƵŶƐ�ŝŶ�ŽƵƌ�ǀŝůůĂŐĞ͘͟ 
 
͚DŽďŝůŝƚǇͬ�ďŝůŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ŐĞƚ�ŽƵƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂďŽƵƚ͛͗� 
· ͞/ƚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ůŝŵŝƚ�ũŽƵƌŶĞǇ�ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ�ǁĂůŬŝŶŐ͘͟ 
· ͞/�ĨĞĂƌ�ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ�ƐƵďƐŝĚŝƐĞĚ�ďƵƐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�/�ǁŽŶΖƚ�ďĞ�ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ƚƌĂǀĞů͘��/�ůŝǀĞ�ŝŶ�Ă�ǀŝůůĂŐĞ�ĂŶĚ�/�ĚŽŶΖƚ�ĚƌŝǀĞ�ƐŽ�

ƌĞůǇ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƵďƐŝĚŝƐĞĚ�ďƵƐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͘͟ 
· ͞tĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ǀĞƌǇ�ƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�ďƵƐ�ƚŽ�ƚĂŬĞ�ƵƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŽǁŶ͘͟ 
· �͞/�ĐŽƵůĚŶ͛ƚ�ŐŽ�ŽƵƚ�ŽŶ�ŵǇ�ŽǁŶ�ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͕�/�ǁŽƵůĚ�ůŽƐĞ�ŵǇ�ŝŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶĐĞ͘͟� 
 
͚^ŚŽƉƉŝŶŐ͛͗� 
· ͞/�ŚĂǀĞ�ŶŽ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ͕�/�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƵŶĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ŐĞƚ�ĂŶǇǁŚĞƌĞ͕�ĨŽƌ�ƐŚŽƉƉŝŶŐ͘�dŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽ�ƐŚŽƉƐ�ŝŶ�ŵǇ�

ǀŝůůĂŐĞ͘͟� 
· ͞dƌŽƵďůĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ǁĞĞŬůǇ�ƐŚŽƉͬǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĐƵƚ�Žī�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŚŽƉ͟�ĂŶĚ�͞/�ĚŽŶΖƚ�ĞǀĞŶ�ǁĂŶƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚŝŶŬ�ĂďŽƵƚ�ŚŽǁ�/�

ǁŽƵůĚ�ŐĞƚ�ĨŽŽĚ͕�ŶĂƉƉŝĞƐ͕�ďĂďǇ�ŵŝůŬ�ĞƚĐ͘͘͟� 
 
͚�ƉƉŽŝŶƚŵĞŶƚƐ͛͗� 
· ͞�ƩĞŶĚĂŶĐĞ�Ăƚ�ŵǇ�ĚŽĐƚŽƌƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĂůŵŽƐƚ�ŝŵƉŽƐƐŝďůĞ͟� 
· ͞ŝƚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŵĂŬĞ�ŝƚ�ĚŝĸĐƵůƚ�ƚŽ�ŐĞƚ�ƚŽ�ŚŽƐƉŝƚĂů�ĨŽƌ�ŵǇ�ŵĂŶǇ�ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚŵĞŶƚƐ͘͟� 
· ͞/�ƌĞůǇ�ŽŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ďƵƐ�ƚŽ�ŐĞƚ�ŵĞ�ƚŽ�Ăůů�ŵǇ�ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚŵĞŶƚƐ͟ 
· ͞/�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŶŽƚ�ďĞ�ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ŐĞƚ�ƚŽ�ŵǇ�ŚŽƐƉŝƚĂů�ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ŵǇ�ĚŝĂůǇƐŝƐ͙͘ĞǀĞƌǇ�Ϯ�ĚĂǇƐ͟� 
· ͞ŽƵƌ�ŚĞĂůƚŚ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƉƵƚ�ŝŶ�ĚĂŶŐĞƌ�ŝĨ�ǁĞ�ĐĂŶ͛ƚ�ŐĞƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĚŽĐƚŽƌƐ�ĨŽƌ�ŵĞĚŝĐĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĚŽĐƚŽƌƐ�

ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚŵĞŶƚƐ͘͟� 
 
͚^ŽĐŝĂů�ŝƐŽůĂƟŽŶ͛͗� 
· ͞dŚŝƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ĐĂƵƐĞ�ŝƐŽůĂƟŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĞůĚĞƌůǇ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ͕͟�ĂŶĚ�͞ƚŚŝƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�Ă�ŚƵŐĞ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽŶ�ŵǇ�

ƉĞƌƐŽŶĂů�ǁĞůůďĞŝŶŐ͘͟ 
· ͞tĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�Ăůů�ďĞ�ůĞŌ�ǀĞƌǇ�ŝƐŽůĂƚĞĚ�ŝĨ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ŝƐ�ĐƵƚ͘͟ 
· ͞tĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞĐŽŵĞ�ŝƐŽůĂƚĞĚ͘͟ 
· ͞tĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŶŽƚ�ďĞ�ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ůĞĂǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ǀŝůůĂŐĞ͘͟ 
· ͟/�ǁŽƵůĚ�ĨĞĞů�ĞǆƚƌĞŵĞůǇ�ŝƐŽůĂƚĞĚ�ŝĨ�ǁĞ�ŚĂǀĞŶΖƚ�ŐŽƚ�Ă�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͘͟� 
· ͞/�ǁŽƵůĚ�ĨĞĞů�ůŽŶĞůǇ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞƉƌĞƐƐĞĚ͘͟ 
 

9.  COMMENTS ON KEY THEMES ACROSS ALL OPTIONS  

Page 29



�ϮϬ 

 
͚,ŽƵƐĞďŽƵŶĚ͛͗� 
· ͞/�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƵŶĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ůĞĂǀĞ�ŵǇ�ŚŽƵƐĞ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ŚĞůƉ�ŽĨ�ĨƌŝĞŶĚƐ�ĞǀĞŶ�ĨŽƌ�ŵĞĚŝĐĂů�ǀŝƐŝƚƐ͘�/�

ŵŝŐŚƚ�ŶŽƚ�ďĞ�ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞ�ƚŽ�ůŝǀĞ�ŝŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚůǇ͘͟ 
· ͞dŚŝƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ƚƌĂƉ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŚŽŵĞƐ�ĂƐ�ŶŽ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ďƵƐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ŽƉĞƌĂƚĞƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĂƌĞĂ͘͟� 
 
͚�ŽƐƚ͛͗� 
· ͞/ƚ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ƉƌŝĐĞƐ�ĞǀĞŶ�ŵŽƌĞ͕�ŵǇ�ŬŝĚƐ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ŶŽƚ�ĂīŽƌĚ�ƚŽ�ŐŽ�ƚŽ�ĐŽůůĞŐĞ�Žƌ�ƵŶŝ�Ăƚ�άϴ�-�άϭϬ�ƉĞƌ�

ũŽƵƌŶĞǇ͕�άϭϬϬ�ƉĞƌ�ǁĞĞŬ͘͟ 
· ͞/�ĐŽƵůĚ�ŶŽƚ�ĂīŽƌĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ũŽƵƌŶĞǇƐ�ǁĞ�ŵĂŬĞ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ĮŶĚ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�ƐŚŽƉƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŚŽƐƉŝƚĂů�

ǀŝƐŝƚƐ�ĞǆƉĞŶƐŝǀĞ͘͟� 
· ͞/�ǁŽƵůĚ�ƉĂǇ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͘͟ 
 
͚�ŽŵŵƵƚĞ͛͗ 
· ͞tŝƚŚŽƵƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ďƵƐ͕�/ΖĚ�ďĞ�ƵŶĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ũŽď͘͟ 
· ͞��ůŽƚ�ŽĨ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĂƌĞĂ�ǁŝůů�ůŽƐĞ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ũŽďƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŝƚ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ƌƵƌĂů͘͟� 
· �͞/͛Ě�ďĞ�ƵŶĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ŐŽ�ƚŽ�ǁŽƌŬ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽƌŶŝŶŐ�ŽŶ�ƟŵĞ͘͟� 
· �͞�ŽƵůĚ�ŵĂŬĞ�ŝƚ�ŚĂƌĚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ŐĞƚ�ƚŽ�ĂŶĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ǁŽƌŬ͘͟� 
· ͞/�ĂŶĚ�ŵǇ�ƐŽŶ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ůŽƐĞ�ŽƵƌ�ũŽďƐ͕�ŚĂǀŝŶŐ�ŶŽ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ŵĞĂŶƐ�ŽĨ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ͘͟ 
 

Page 30



�Ϯϭ 

 10.  MAKING ALTERNATIVE ARRANGEMENTS  
ZĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂƐŬĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌ�ŚŽǁ�ƚŚĞǇ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ƚƌĂǀĞů�ŝĨ�ƚŚĞ�ďƵƐĞƐ�ƚŚĞǇ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇ�ƵƐĞ͕�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƟŵĞƐ�
ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ƵƐĞ�ƚŚĞŵ͕�ǁĞƌĞ�ŶŽƚ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ͘�KǀĞƌ�ŚĂůĨ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚŝŶŐ�ƐĂŝĚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŶŽƚ�ďĞ�ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�
ƚƌĂǀĞů�;ϱϲйͿ͕�ũƵƐƚ�ŽǀĞƌ�ŽŶĞ�ƚŚŝƌĚ�ƐĂŝĚ�ŝƚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ƐƚŽƉ�ƚŚĞŵ�ƵƐŝŶŐ�ĂŶǇ�ƉƵďůŝĐ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�;ϯϱйͿ�ĂŶĚ�ũƵƐƚ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�
ŽŶĞ�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌ�;ϮϰйͿ�ƐĂŝĚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ƵƐĞ�ĂŶŽƚŚĞƌ�ƚǇƉĞ�ŽĨ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ͘��ůů�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ǀŝĞǁƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŽƵƚůŝŶĞĚ�ŝŶ�
ƚŚĞ�ŐƌĂƉŚŝĐ�ďĞůŽǁ͘� 
��ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�ƉƌŽƉŽƌƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ϱϲй�ǁŚŽ�ƐĂŝĚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŶŽƚ�ďĞ�ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ƚƌĂǀĞů�ǁĞƌĞ�͚ĂŐĞĚ�ϳϱн͕͛�͚ĨĞŵĂůĞ͕͛�ŚĂĚ�Ă�
͚ůŽŶŐ�ƚĞƌŵ�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ͛�Žƌ�͚ŝŵƉĂŝƌĞĚ�ŵŽďŝůŝƚǇ͛͘� 
dŚŽƐĞ�ǁŚŽ�ǁĂŶƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƵƐĞ�Ă�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇͬǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŵŽƌĞ�ůŝŬĞůǇ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĂŐĞ�
ŽĨ�Ϯϰ͕�ĂŐĞĚ�ϳϱн�Žƌ�ŚĂǀĞ�Ă�ůŽŶŐ�ƚĞƌŵ�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ͕�Ă�ŵŽďŝůŝƚǇ�ŝŵƉĂŝƌŵĞŶƚ�Žƌ�Ă�ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ͘� 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ϳй�ƐĂŝĚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŵĂŬĞ�͚ŽƚŚĞƌ͛�ĂƌƌĂŶŐĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�͞ǁĂůŬŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ĂŶŽƚŚĞƌ�ďƵƐ�ƐƚŽƉ͟�Žƌ�ƚŽ�
ƚŚĞ�͞ĚĞƐƟŶĂƟŽŶ͕͟�ĂƐŬŝŶŐ�͞ĨƌŝĞŶĚƐͬĨĂŵŝůǇ�ĂŶĚ�ŶĞŝŐŚďŽƵƌƐ�ĨŽƌ�ůŝŌƐ͕͟�͞ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ĚƌŝǀĞͬďƵǇŝŶŐ�Ă�ĐĂƌ͕͟�
͞ƚĂŬŝŶŐ�ŵŽƌĞ�ďƵƐĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĂĐŚ�ĚĞƐƟŶĂƟŽŶ͟�Ğ͘Ő͘�ǁŽƌŬ�ĂŶĚ�͞ƚĂŬŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƚƌĂŝŶ͘͟�� 
 
dŚŽƐĞ�ǁŚŽ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ƵƐĞ�ŽŶĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ĨŽƵƌ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞƐ�ŽƵƚůŝŶĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�
ŐƌĂƉŚ�;ƚŚĞƐĞ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�ƵƐŝŶŐ� 
ĂŶŽƚŚĞƌ�ƚǇƉĞ�ŽĨ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ͕�ƵƐŝŶŐ�
Ă�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇͬǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ͕�
ƚƌĂǀĞů�ŽŶ�Ă�ĚŝīĞƌĞŶƚ�ĚĂǇͬĂƚ�Ă�
ĚŝīĞƌĞŶƚ�ƟŵĞ�Žƌ�ƵƐŝŶŐ�Ă�ĐĂƌ�
ƐŚĂƌŝŶŐ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞͿ�ǁĞƌĞ�ůĞƐƐ�ůŝŬĞůǇ�
ƚŽ�ƐĂǇ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĞĂĐŚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽƵƌ�
ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ƵƉŽŶ�
ƚŚĞŵ�ƚŚĂŶ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ŽǀĞƌĂůů�
ǁĞƌĞ͘� 
 

&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϭϬ͘ϭ͗��DĂŬŝŶŐ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ�ĂƌƌĂŶŐĞŵĞŶƚƐ�;й�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐͿ 

 &ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϭϬ͘Ϯ͗��ŽŵƉĂƌŝŶŐ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ǁŚŽ�ŚĂĚ�ĂŶ��
ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ�ĂŶĚ�Ăůů�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�;й�ŝŵƉĂĐƚĞĚͿ͘� 

Page 31



�ϮϮ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11. SUPPORT IN MAINTAINING SERVICES  
ϭϭ͘ϭ͗��ǁĂƌĞŶĞƐƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƵƐĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ůŽĐĂů�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�Žƌ�ǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ� 
ZĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂƐŬĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŝŶĚŝĐĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŬŶŽǁůĞĚŐĞ�ŽĨ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶǀŽůǀĞŵĞŶƚ�ŝŶ�ůŽĐĂů�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�Žƌ�ǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�
ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ͘�dŚĞ�ůĂƌŐĞƐƚ�ƉƌŽƉŽƌƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�;ϰϴйͿ�ƐĂŝĚ�ƚŚĞǇ�͚ŚĂĚ�ŶĞǀĞƌ�ŚĞĂĚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞƐĞ͕͛�ϰϬй�
ŚĂĚ�͚ŚĞĂƌĚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞŵ�ďƵƚ�ŶĞǀĞƌ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŚĞŵ͛�ĂŶĚ�ϭϮй�͚ŚĂĚ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŚĞŵ͛͘� 
 
KĨ�ƚŚĞ�ϮϬϬ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŚĂĚ�ƵƐĞĚ�ůŽĐĂů�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�Žƌ�ǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ͕�ϲϯй�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�ƚŚĞ��
ŶĂŵĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ŚĂĚ�ƵƐĞĚ͘�DŽƐƚ�ĐŽŵŵŽŶůǇ�ŵĞŶƟŽŶĞĚ�ǁĞƌĞ�͚DŽďŝůŝƚǇ�>ŝŶŬ͕͛�
͚>ŽŐŐĞƌŚĞĂĚƐ�ĂŶĚ��ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ��ĂƌƐ͛�ĂŶĚ�͚,ŽŵĞůŝŶĞ͛͘� 
 
dŚĞ�ĚĞƚĂŝůƐ�ŽĨ�Ăůů�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ�ƵƐĞĚ�ďǇ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƐŚĂƌĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͘�� 
 
�Ǉ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚ�ƚǇƉĞ͕�ƵƐĞƌƐ�ŽĨ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�Žƌ�ǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŵŽƌĞ�ůŝŬĞůǇ�ƚŽ�ďĞ͖ 
 
Þ &ĞŵĂůĞ͗�;ϭϮй�Žƌ�ϭϯϱ�ĨĞŵĂůĞƐ�ŚĂĚ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŚĞƐĞͿ͘� 
Þ zŽƵŶŐĞƌ�Žƌ�ŽůĚĞƌ͗�ϭϵй�Žƌ�ϭϬϱ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ĂŐĞĚ�ϳϱн�ŚĂĚ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŚĞƐĞ͘�dŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƌƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ǇŽƵŶŐĞƌ�

ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ƵƐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ǁĂƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ͘�ϭϮй�Žƌ�ϯ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ϭϴ�ĂŶĚ�ϭϮй�Žƌ�ϰ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�
ǁĞƌĞ�ϭϴ-Ϯϰ͘ 

Þ ,ĂǀĞ�Ă�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇͬŝŵƉĂŝƌŵĞŶƚ͗�Ϯϯй�Žƌ�ϭϲ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ŚĂĚ�Ă�ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ͕�ϭϴй�Žƌ�ϳϱ�
ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ŚĂĚ�Ă�ŵŽďŝůŝƚǇ�ŝŵƉĂŝƌŵĞŶƚ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�Ă�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ϭϳй�Žƌ�ϭϭϯ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ŚĂĚ�Ă�ůŽŶŐ�
ƚĞƌŵ�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ͘� 

Þ �Ğ�ĨƌŽŵ�ĂŶ�ĞƚŚŶŝĐ�ŐƌŽƵƉ͗�ϯϭй�Žƌ�ϰ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�Ă�DŝǆĞĚͬDƵůƟƉůĞ�ĞƚŚŶŝĐ�ŐƌŽƵƉ�ĂŶĚ�ϭϳй�
Žƌ�ϭ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ĂŶ��ƐŝĂŶͬ�ƐŝĂŶ��ƌŝƟƐŚ�ďĂĐŬŐƌŽƵŶĚ͘� 

Þ tŚŝůƐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƌƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ƵƐŝŶŐ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�Žƌ�ǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ�ǁĂƐ�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�ŝŶ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�
ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚ�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ�ŽƵƚůŝŶĞĚ�ĂďŽǀĞ͕�ƵƐĞƌƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�Ă�ǁŝĚĞ�ƌĂŶŐĞ�ŽĨ�ĚĞŵŽŐƌĂƉŚŝĐ�ďĂĐŬŐƌŽƵŶĚƐ�ŚĂĚ�
ŵĂĚĞ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͘�&ƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ĚĞƚĂŝůƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�ĨŽƵŶĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ƉƉĞŶĚŝǆ͘��� 

 
ZĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁŚŽ�ŚĂĚ�ƵƐĞĚ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�Žƌ�ǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂƐŬĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƐŚĂƌĞ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŽǀĞƌĂůů�
ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞƐĞ͘�/ƚ�ǁĂƐ�ŵŽƐƚ�ĐŽŵŵŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�ƐĂǇ�ƚŚĞǇ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚ�ƚŚĞŵ�;ϱϬйͿ͘�
,ŽǁĞǀĞƌ�ŽŶĞ�ƚŚŝƌĚ�ĨĞůƚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŶŽ�ƐƵďƐƟƚƵƚĞ�ĨŽƌ�Ă�ďƵƐ�ĂŶĚ�ϭϴй�ǁŽƵůĚŶΖƚ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚ�ƚŚĞŵ͘� 
 

 
 

&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϭϭ͘ϭ͗�KǀĞƌĂůů�ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ�ŽĨ�ƵƐŝŶŐ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�Žƌ�ǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ�;й�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞͿ ;�ĂƐĞ͗�ϮϬϬ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐͿ 

Page 32



�Ϯϯ 

ϭϭ͘Ϯ͗�/ŶǀŽůǀĞŵĞŶƚ�ŝŶ�ƌƵŶŶŝŶŐͬƐƵƉƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ůŽĐĂů�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�Žƌ�ǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ� 
tŚŝůƐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂũŽƌŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŶŽƚ�ďĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƌƵŶŶŝŶŐͬƐƵƉƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ůŽĐĂů�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�Žƌ�
ǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ�;ϴϱйͿ͕�ĞǆƉƌĞƐƐŝŽŶƐ�ŽĨ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ďǇ�ϭϱй�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ͘�Ϯй�
ĞǆƉƌĞƐƐĞĚ�͚Ă�ŐƌĞĂƚ�ĚĞĂů�ŽĨ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚ͛�ĂŶĚ�ϭϯй�ǁĞƌĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚĞĚ�͚ƚŽ�ƐŽŵĞ�ĞǆƚĞŶƚ͛͘� 
 
/Ŷ�ƚĞƌŵƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƚǇƉĞƐ�ŽĨ�ŝŶǀŽůǀĞŵĞŶƚ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ůŝŬĞ�ƚŽ�ŚĂǀĞ͕�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ĐŽŵŵŽŶ�ŽīĞƌ�ǁĂƐ�͚ƚŽ�
ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĂǇ�ƚŽ�ĚĂǇ�ƌƵŶŶŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽĐĂů�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ͛͘�ZĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ǀŝĞǁƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŽƵƚůŝŶĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�
ŐƌĂƉŚŝĐ�ďĞůŽǁ͘��� 

 

ϲϬ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ŝĚĞŶƟĮĞĚ�͚ŽƚŚĞƌ͛�ƚǇƉĞƐ�ŽĨ�ŝŶǀŽůǀĞŵĞŶƚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ůŝŬĞ�ƚŽ�ŚĂǀĞ͘�/ƚ�ǁĂƐ�ŵŽƐƚ�ĐŽŵŵŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�
ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�ƐĂǇ�ƚŚĞǇ�ǁŽƵůĚ�͞ůŝŬĞ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ƵƐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ͟�ĂŶĚͬŽƌ�͞ƚŽ�ŵĂŬĞ�Ă�ƐŵĂůů�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�
ĐŽǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ƵƐĂŐĞ͘͟� 
KƚŚĞƌ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ŽīĞƌ�͞ŽĐĐĂƐŝŽŶĂů�ůŝŌƐ͟�Žƌ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�͞ŽĐĐĂƐŝŽŶĂů�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĂƐ�Ă�ĚƌŝǀĞƌ͘͟��
�ĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ŽīĞƌĞĚ�ŚĞůƉ�͞ĐŽ-ŽƌĚŝŶĂƟŶŐ͕͟�͞ƉƌŽŵŽƟŶŐ͟�ĂŶĚ�͞ĂĚŵŝŶŝƐƚĞƌŝŶŐ͟�ŶĞǁ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ͘�� 
 
ϭϭ͘ϯ͗�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶͬƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŶĞĞĚ 
ZĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂƐŬĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĂƌƟĐƵůĂƚĞ�ǁŚĂƚ�ƚǇƉĞƐ�ŽĨ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�Žƌ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŶĞĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�
�ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ƚŽ�ŚĞůƉ�ƚŚĞŵ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƐĞƫŶŐ�ƵƉ�ĂŶĚ�ƌƵŶŶŝŶŐͬƐƵƉƉŽƌƟŶŐ�Ă�ůŽĐĂů�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�Žƌ�ǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�
ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ͘�dŚĞƐĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ĐŽŵŵŽŶůǇ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�͚ŵŽƌĞ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂůƐ͛�;ϯϭйͿ͘��ůů�
ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ďƵůůĞƚ�ƉŽŝŶƚĞĚ�ďĞůŽǁ͗ 
 

Þ ͚DŽƌĞ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ͛�;ϯϭйͿ͘ 
Þ ͚/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƚǇƉĞƐ�ŽĨ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�Žƌ�ǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ͛�;ϮϲйͿ͘ 
Þ ͚^ƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƟŶŐ�Ă�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�Žƌ�ǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ͛�;ϮϬйͿ͘ 
Þ ͚/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ŽŶ�ǁŚĂƚ͛Ɛ�ŝŶǀŽůǀĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƐĞƫŶŐ�ƵƉ�ĂŶĚ�ƌƵŶŶŝŶŐ�Ă�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�Žƌ�ǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�

ƐĐŚĞŵĞ͛�;ϭϵйͿ͘ 
Þ ͚KƚŚĞƌ͛�;ϰйͿ�Ğ͘Ő͘�͞ĐĞƌƟĮĐĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ĐŽŵƉĞƚĞŶĐǇ�ŽĨ�ǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ĚƌŝǀĞƌ͟�ĂŶĚ�͞ƚŚĞ�ĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ŵĂŬĞ�ƐƉĞĐŝĂů�

ĂƌƌĂŶŐĞŵĞŶƚƐ�Ğ͘Ő͘�ƚĂŝů�ůŝŌƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĚŝƐĂďůĞĚ�ƵƐĞƌƐ͘͟ 
 
 
 
 

&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϭϭ͘Ϯ͗�dǇƉĞƐ�ŽĨ�ŝŶǀŽůǀĞŵĞŶƚ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�;й�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞͿ 

Page 33



�Ϯϰ 

 
12. SUGGESTIONS/IDEAS 
ZĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĞǆƉƌĞƐƐ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ǀŝĞǁƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂůƐ�ĂƐ�Ă�ǁŚŽůĞ͕�ƵƐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƉĂĐĞ�
ĨŽƌ�ƐƵŐŐĞƐƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ƌĞŝƚĞƌĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ƐƚƌĞŶŐƚŚ�ŽĨ�ĨĞĞůŝŶŐ�ƚŽǁĂƌĚƐ�ƉŽŝŶƚƐ�ĐĂƉƚƵƌĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ĞĂƌůŝĞƌ�ƋƵĞƐƟŽŶƐ͘�
,ŽǁĞǀĞƌ͕�ĂƐŝĚĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ͕�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂůƐŽ�ƐŽŵĞ�ƐƵŐŐĞƐƟŽŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĂŶ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ�ĂƉƉƌŽĂĐŚ͘�dŚĞ�
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĂƌĞĂ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�Ăůů�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƵŐŐĞƐƟŽŶƐ�ƉƵƚ�ĨŽƌǁĂƌĚ�ĨŽƌ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĂƟŽŶ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�
ĚĞĐŝƐŝŽŶ-ŵĂŬŝŶŐ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ͕�ďƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ĐŽŵŵŽŶ�ĂƌĞ�ƐƵŵŵĂƌŝƐĞĚ�ďĞůŽǁ͗ 
dŚĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ĐŽŵŵŽŶ�ƐƵŐŐĞƐƟŽŶ�ǁĂƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƉĂƐƐĞŶŐĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ƉĂǇ�ŵŽƌĞ�ƚŚĂŶ�ƚŚĞǇ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇ�ĚŽ�ƚŽ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͕�
ǁŝƚŚ�ŵĂŶǇ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ƐƚĂƟŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƉƌĞƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƉĂǇ�ŵŽƌĞ�ĂƐ�ŝƚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ƐƟůů�ďĞ�ůĞƐƐ�ƚŚĂŶ�Ă�
ƚĂǆŝ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶ�Ă�ǀŝƚĂů�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ůŝĨĞ͘�^ŽŵĞ�ƐƵŐŐĞƐƚĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ĐŽŶĐĞƐƐŝŽŶĂƌǇ�ďƵƐ�ƉĂƐƐ�
ĐŽƵůĚ�ƉĂǇ�ĂŶ�ĂŶŶƵĂů�ĐŚĂƌŐĞ�ǁŚŝůĞ�ŽƚŚĞƌƐ�ƐƵŐŐĞƐƚĞĚ�Ă�ĨĞĞ�ĞĂĐŚ�ƟŵĞ�ƚŚĞǇ�ƚƌĂǀĞůůĞĚ͘�KƚŚĞƌƐ�ƐƵŐŐĞƐƚĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�
ĐŽŶĐĞƐƐŝŽŶĂƌǇ�ƉĂƐƐĞƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŵĞĂŶƐ�ƚĞƐƚĞĚ͘ 
· �͞/�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƉƌĞƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƉĂǇ�άϯ�ƚŽǁĂƌĚƐ�ĐŽƐƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ŵǇ�ũŽƵƌŶĞǇ͘�/�Ăŵ�ƐŽ�ǁŽƌƌŝĞĚ�ĂďŽƵƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�

ŐŽŝŶŐ͘͟ 
· ͞�ƵƐ�ƉĂƐƐĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ŽŶůǇ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĐĂŶ͛ƚ�ĂīŽƌĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĨĂƌĞƐ͘͟ 
· /�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ŚĂƉƉǇ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚĞ�ƚŽǁĂƌĚƐ�ŵǇ�ĨĂƌĞ�ƌĂƚŚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ůŽƐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͘��dŚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ŝƐŶΖƚ�ũƵƐƚ�ϰ�

ǁŚĞĞůƐ͕�ŝƚΖƐ�ŽƵƌ�ŽǁŶ�ůŝƩůĞ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ͘͟� 
· ͞/�ŚĂǀĞ�Ă�ďƵƐ�ƉĂƐƐ͕�ďƵƚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ǁŝůůŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ƉĂǇ�ƉĞƌŚĂƉƐ�άϭ�ƉĞƌ�ũŽƵƌŶĞǇ�ƚŽ�ŬĞĞƉ�ŽƵƌ�ďƵƐĞƐ�ƌƵŶŶŝŶŐ͘͟ 
· ͞dŚŽƐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƉĂƐƐĞƐ�-�ƐƵĐŚ�ĂƐ�ŵǇƐĞůĨ�-�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ƉĂǇ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞŵ�-�ƉĞƌŚĂƉƐ�άϭϬ-�Žƌ�άϮϬ�Ă�ǇĞĂƌ͘͟ 
· ͞��ůŽŶŐ�ƟŵĞ�ĂŐŽ�ǁĞ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƉĂǇ�ŚĂůĨ�ĨĂƌĞ�ŽŶ�ŽƵƌ�ůŽĐĂů�ďƵƐ͕�/�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ŚĂƉƉǇ�ƚŽ�ĚŽ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂŐĂŝŶ͕�ĂƐ�ĂŶ�

ϴϭ�ǇĞĂƌ�ŽůĚ͕�/�ĚŽ�ŶĞĞĚ�ďƵƐĞƐ͘͟ 
�ŶŽƚŚĞƌ�ĐŽŵŵŽŶ�ƐƵŐŐĞƐƟŽŶ�ǁĂƐ�ƚŽ�ƌĞǀŝƐĞ�ďƵƐ�ƐĐŚĞĚƵůŝŶŐ�ƌĂƚŚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ĐƵƫŶŐ�ƌŽƵƚĞƐ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞůǇ͘�^ŽŵĞ�
ƐƵŐŐĞƐƚĞĚ�Ă�ƌĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ŝŶ�ĨƌĞƋƵĞŶĐǇ�ŽĨ�ĐĞƌƚĂŝŶ�ƌŽƵƚĞƐ͕�ǁŚŝůĞ�ŽƚŚĞƌƐ�ƐƵŐŐĞƐƚĞĚ�ĚĞƉůŽǇŝŶŐ�Ă�ŵŝŶŝďƵƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�
ůĞƐƐ�ƉŽƉƵůĂƌ�ƌŽƵƚĞƐ�Žƌ�ƌĞǀŝƐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƌŽƵƚĞƐ�ƚŚĞŵƐĞůǀĞƐ͕�ƉŽƐƐŝďůǇ�ĐŽŵďŝŶŝŶŐ�ƐŽŵĞ͗� 
· ͞�ŽŽƌĚŝŶĂƚĞ�ďƵƐ�ƟŵĞƐ�ďĞƩĞƌ�ƐŽ�ƚŚĂƚ�Ϯ�ĚŝīĞƌĞŶƚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂŵĞ�ƌŽƵƚĞ�ĚŽŶΖƚ�ŽǀĞƌůĂƉ͘�ZĂƚŚĞƌ�

ƚŚĂŶ�ĐƵƚ�ƌŽƵƚĞƐ͕�ĐƵƚ�ĨƌĞƋƵĞŶĐǇ͘͟ 
· ͞^ƚƌŝƉƉŝŶŐ�ƐŽŵĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ůĞƐƐ�ƉŽƉƵůĂƌ�ŽŶĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŵŽƌĞ�ůĂƚĞƌ�ŽŶ͕�ƐŵĂůůĞƌ�ďƵƐĞƐ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĂǇ-�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�Ă�

ƐŬĞůĞƚŽŶ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƚŽ�ĐŽǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ĚĂǇͬƟŵĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƚƌĂǀĞů�ƌĂƚŚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ĐƵƚ�ƚŚĞŵ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞůǇ͘͟� 
· ͞EŽ�ŽďũĞĐƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�Ă�ƌĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ŝŶ�ďƵƐĞƐ�ƌƵŶŶŝŶŐ�ďƵƚ�ŶĞĞĚ�Ăƚ�ůĞĂƐƚ�Ϯ-ϯ�ďƵƐĞƐ�ƌƵŶŶŝŶŐ�ŽŶ�ƌŽƵƚĞ�ĞĂĐŚ�

ĚĂǇ͘͟ 
· ͞tŚǇ�ŶŽƚ�ƌƵŶ�ŵŝŶŝ�ďƵƐĞƐ�ŽŶ�ƋƵŝĞƚĞƌ�ƌŽƵƚĞƐ͍͟� 
· ͞�ŽŵďŝŶĞ�ďƵƐ�ƌŽƵƚĞƐ͘�^ƚŽŶĞ�ůŽĐĂů�ďƵƐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĐŽŵďŝŶĞĚ�^ϭн�^Ϯ�н�^ϯ�Žƌ�^ϱ͘���Ɛ�ƐƚĂƚĞĚ�

ƉƌĞǀŝŽƵƐůǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶ�ŽĨ�tĂůƚŽŶ͕�^ƚŽŶĞ͕�ZŽƵŐŚ��ůŽƐĞ͕�DĞŝƌ�,ĞĂƚŚ�ƚŽ�>ŽŶŐƚŽŶ͘�^ƵƌĞůǇ�ŵŽƌĞ�ƉĂƐƐĞŶŐĞƌƐ�
ƚŚĂŶ�ŚĂǀŝŶŐ�ƐŵĂůů�ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͘͟ 

· �͞ZĞĚƵĐĞ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŽŶ�ƐŽŵĞ�ƉŽƉƵůĂƌ�ƌŽƵƚĞƐ�Ğ͘Ő͘�ŶŽƚ�ĞǀĞƌǇ�ϮϬ�ŵŝŶƐ�ďƵƚ�ĞǀĞƌǇ�ϯϬ�ŵŝŶƐ͘�,ŽƵƌůǇ�ŶŽƚ�
ŚĂůĨ�ŚŽƵƌůǇ͘͟ 

 
^ĞǀĞƌĂů�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ƵŶĚĞƌƐƚŽŽĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ŚĂĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�ĚƌĂƐƟĐĂůůǇ�ďƵƚ�ĨĞůƚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�
�ŽƵŶĐŝů�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�͞ŵĂŬĞ�ĐƵƚƐ�ĞůƐĞǁŚĞƌĞ͕͟�ŶŽƚ�ŽŶůǇ�ďĞĐĂƵƐĞ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�Ă�͞ůŝĨĞůŝŶĞ͟�ƚŽ�ŵĂŶǇ�ĞůĚĞƌůǇ�ĂŶĚ�ŝƐŽůĂƚĞĚ�
ďƵƚ�ĂůƐŽ�ďĞĐĂƵƐĞ�ƵƐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ďƵƐ�ŚĞůƉƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ŐƌĞĞŶ�ĂŐĞŶĚĂ�ďǇ�ƌĞĚƵĐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ĐĂƌƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌŽĂĚ�
ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶƐĞƋƵĞŶƚůǇ�ŚĂǀŝŶŐ�Ă�ƉŽƐŝƟǀĞ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽŶ�ƉŽůůƵƟŽŶ͘�^ŽŵĞ�ĨĞůƚ�ƐƚƌŽŶŐůǇ�ƚŚĂƚ�͞ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�
ƵƌŐĞŶƚůǇ�ŶĞĞĚƐ�ƚŽ�ĮŐŚƚ�ďĂĐŬ�ĂŐĂŝŶƐƚ�ĐĞŶƚƌĂů�ŐŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐƵƚƐ�ŝŵƉŽƐĞĚ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽǁ�ƐĞǀĞƌĞůǇ�ĚĂŵĂŐŝŶŐ�
ŝŵƉŽƌƚĂŶƚ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ŝŶĨƌĂƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�Ăƚ�Ăůů�ůĞǀĞůƐ͘͟ 
 Page 34



�Ϯϱ 

 13. OTHER FEEDBACK: EMAIL AND LETTER CORRESPONDENCE 
��ƚŽƚĂů�ŽĨ�ϲϰ�ůĞƩĞƌƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ͘�dŚĞƐĞ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ďƵƐ�ƵƐĞƌƐ�;ϮϳͿ͕�
ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ�;ϯͿ͕��ŽƵŶĐŝůůŽƌƐ�;ϴͿ͕�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�Ϯ�DWƐ͕�ĐŽƵŶĐŝůƐ�;ϯͿ͕��ŝĂů-Ă-ZŝĚĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƌ�;ϭͿ͕�,ĞĂůƚŚ�
ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĂƟǀĞƐ�;ϮͿ͕�KƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ�;ϰͿ�ĂŶĚ�WĂƌŝƐŚ��ŽƵŶĐŝůƐ�;ϭϲͿ͘� 
 
dǁŽ�ƉĞƟƟŽŶƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂůƐŽ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ͕�ŽŶĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ϱϯϮ�ƵŶǀĂůŝĚĂƚĞĚ�ƐŝŐŶĂƚƵƌĞƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚƐ�ŽĨ��ŝĚĚƵůƉŚ�ĂŶĚ�
�ŝĚĚƵůƉŚ�DŽŽƌ�ƐƉĞĐŝĮĐĂůůǇ�ŽďũĞĐƟŶŐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ƌĞŵŽǀĂů�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƵďƐŝĚǇ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ϵϯ��Θ'�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͘�
dŚĞ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ĐŽŶƚĂŝŶĞĚ�ϱϳϳ�ƵŶǀĂůŝĚĂƚĞĚ�ƐŝŐŶĂƚƵƌĞƐ�ŽďũĞĐƟŶŐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ƌĞŵŽǀĂů�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƵďƐŝĚǇ�ĨƌŽŵ�
ƚŚĞ��ŽƌĚĞƌ�ĐĂƌ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͘ 
 
dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�ƌĞĂů�ƉĂƐƐŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĨĞĞůŝŶŐ�ďĞŚŝŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ůĞƩĞƌƐ͕�ƉĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌůǇ�ƐŽ�ĨƌŽŵ�ďƵƐ�ƵƐĞƌƐ�
ƚŚĞŵƐĞůǀĞƐ͘�^ŽŵĞ�ŽīĞƌĞĚ�ƉƌĞĨĞƌĞŶĐĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ��ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŽƉƟŽŶ�ϭ�Žƌ�ϰ�ďĞŝŶŐ�
ƚŚĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ƉŽƉƵůĂƌ͘�,ŽǁĞǀĞƌ�ĨŽƌ�ƐŽŵĞ͕�ŶŽŶĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĚĞĞŵĞĚ�ƐƵŝƚĂďůĞ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ůŽĐĂů�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�
ǁŽƵůĚ�ŶŽ�ůŽŶŐĞƌ�ďĞ�ƐƵďƐŝĚŝƐĞĚ͘�dŚĞ�ƚŚĞŵĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ůĞƩĞƌƐ�ƚĞŶĚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĨŽůůŽǁ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂŵĞ�ĂƐ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�
ĐĂƉƚƵƌĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂů�ĂŶĚ�ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶĂů�ƐƵƌǀĞǇƐ͘�dŚĞƐĞ�ĂƌĞ�ƐƵŵŵĂƌŝƐĞĚ�ďĞůŽǁ͗ 
 
ϭϯ͘ϭ͗�/ŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ǀƵůŶĞƌĂďůĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĞůĚĞƌůǇ 
dŚĞ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĞůĚĞƌůǇ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŐƌĞĂƚůǇ�ĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ůĞƩĞƌƐ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚƌĞŶŐƚŚ�ŽĨ�ĨĞĞůŝŶŐ�
ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƚĞŶƚƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ůĞƩĞƌƐ�ĚĞŵŽŶƐƚƌĂƚĞƐ�ũƵƐƚ�ŚŽǁ�ŝŵƉŽƌƚĂŶƚ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƚŽ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ͘�DĂŶǇ�
ŽĨ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ǁŚŽ�ƵƐĞĚ��ŝĂů-Ă-ZŝĚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ŚĂĚ�ŶŽ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŽŌĞŶ�ĚĞƐĐƌŝďĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�
͞ůŝĨĞůŝŶĞ͟�ĂŶĚ�ĂƐŬĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�͞ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ĚŽŶ͛ƚ�ůŽŽŬ�Ăƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŽǁŶ�ƉƌŝǀĂƚĞ�ůƵǆƵƌǇ�ďƵƚ�ĂƐ�Ă�ǀŝƚĂů�
ŶĞĐĞƐƐŝƚǇ͘͟����ůĂƌŐĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƌƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ůĞƩĞƌƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ��ŽƌĚĞƌ��Ăƌ�ƵƐĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ĐŽŶƚĂŝŶĞĚ�ƐƵĐŚ�
ƉƌĂŝƐĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚĂī�ŵĞŵďĞƌ͕�ĚĞƐĐƌŝďŝŶŐ�ŚĞƌ�ĂƐ�Ă�͞ƉĞƌƐŽŶĂů�ĐĂƌĞƌ͟�ǁŚŽ��͞ŐŽĞƐ�ĂďŽǀĞ�ĂŶĚ�ďĞǇŽŶĚ͟�ĂŶĚ�
ŚĞůƉƐ�ƚŚĞŵ�ŝŶ�ŵĂŶǇ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ĐĂƉĂĐŝƟĞƐ�ĂƐ�ǁĞůů�ĂƐ�ŬĞĞƉŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞŵ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ůŽĐĂů�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŚŽƉƉŝŶŐ�
ĂƌĞĂƐ͘� 
 
dŚĞ�ŝŵƉŽƌƚĂŶĐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ŝŶ�ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶĐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĞůĚĞƌůǇ�ĂŶĚ�ŝƐŽůĂƚĞĚ�ǁĂƐ�ĂůƐŽ�
ƐƚƌĞƐƐĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ůĞƩĞƌƐ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ͕�ĨŽƌ�ĞǆĂŵƉůĞ�͞ĞǀĞŶ�ƚŚŽƵŐŚ�ǁĞ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŚĞĂůƚŚ�ƉƌŽďůĞŵƐ�ŝƚ͛Ɛ�ŐŽŽĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚŝŶŬ�
ǁĞ�ĐĂŶ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞ�ƚŽ�ƐƚĂǇ�ŝŶ�ŽƵƌ�ŚŽƵƐĞ͟�ĂŶĚ�͞ƚŚŝƐ�ĂůůŽǁƐ�ŵĞ�ƚŽ�ƉƵƌĐŚĂƐĞ�ŵǇ�ƉĞƌƐŽŶĂů�ƐŚŽƉƉŝŶŐ͕�ƚŽ�ďĂŶŬ�ĂŶĚ�
ŽĨ�ĐŽƵƌƐĞ�ƚŽ�ƐĞĞ�Ă�ďŝƚ�ŽĨ�ůŝĨĞ�ďĞǇŽŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶĮŶĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŚŽƵƐĞ͘͟ 
 
ϭϯ͘Ϯ͗�/ŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽŶ�ǇŽƵŶŐ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ 
/ŵƉĂĐƚƐ�ŽŶ�ǇŽƵŶŐ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŝĚĞŶƟĮĞĚ�ŝŶ�Ă�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ůĞƩĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĨĞƌĞŶĐĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĚŝĸĐƵůƟĞƐ�ǇŽƵŶŐ�
ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƌƵƌĂů�ůŽĐĂƟŽŶƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ĨĂĐĞ�ƌĞŐĂƌĚŝŶŐ�͞ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�ĞĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ůĞŝƐƵƌĞ�ĨĂĐŝůŝƟĞƐ͟�ĂŶĚ�ŚŽǁ�
͞ƌĂƚŚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ĞŶĐŽƵƌĂŐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŝŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶĐĞ͕�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂůƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŵĞĂŶ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƵŶůĞƐƐ�ƚŚĞǇ�ŚĂĚ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�
Ă�ĐĂƌ�ƚŚĞŵƐĞůǀĞƐ͕�ƚŚĞǇ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞ�ƚŽ�ƌĞůǇ�ŽŶ�ƉĂƌĞŶƚƐͬĐĂƌĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ŐŝǀĞ�ƚŚĞŵ�ůŝŌƐ�ƚŽ�ƉůĂĐĞƐ͘�/Ĩ�
ƚŚĞƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�ŶŽ�ĨĂŵŝůǇ�ĐĂƌ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĮƌƐƚ�ƉůĂĐĞ�ƚŚĞŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ĞǀĞŶ�ŵŽƌĞ�ƉƌŽďůĞŵĂƟĐ͘͟ 
 
ϭϯ͘ϯ͗�DĞŶƚĂů�ŚĞĂůƚŚͬƐŽĐŝĂů�ŝƐŽůĂƟŽŶ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ 
^ĞǀĞƌĂů�ůĞƩĞƌƐ�ĚŝƐĐƵƐƐĞĚ�ŚŽǁ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�ŝƚƐĞůĨ�ŚĂƐ�ďƌŽƵŐŚƚ�ĂŶǆŝĞƚǇ�ƚŽ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ǁŚŽ�ŚĞĂǀŝůǇ�ƌĞůǇ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂƌĞ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚƌĞĂƚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂůƐ͘�/ƚ�ŝƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ŶŽƚĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�;ƉĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌůǇ�ƚŚĞ��ŝĂů-Ă-
ZŝĚĞ͕��ŽƌĚĞƌ��ĂƌƐ�ĂŶĚ��ŽŶŶĞĐƚ�ďƵƐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐͿ�ŚĂǀĞ�Ă�ƉŽƐŝƟǀĞ�ĞīĞĐƚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŚĞĂůƚŚ�ĂŶĚ�ǁĞůůďĞŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƐŽŵĞ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ǀƵůŶĞƌĂďůĞ�ƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚƐ�ŽĨ�^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ͘�&Žƌ�ĞǆĂŵƉůĞ͕�͞Ă�ƚƌŝƉ�ŝŶƚŽ�ƚŽǁŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂƌŬĞƚ͕�ƐŚŽƉƉŝŶŐ�Žƌ�
ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�Ă�ǁĂǇ�ŽĨ�ŬĞĞƉŝŶŐ�ŝŶ�ƚŽƵĐŚ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌĞǀĞŶƟŶŐ�ŵĞŶƚĂů�ŚĞĂůƚŚ�ƉƌŽďůĞŵƐ�ĂƌŝƐŝŶŐ�ĨƌŽŵ�
ƐŽĐŝĂů�ŝƐŽůĂƟŽŶ͘͟ 

Page 35



�Ϯϲ 

ϭϯ͘ϰ͗�/ŶĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐͬƉůĂĐĞƐ 
DĂŶǇ�ůĞƩĞƌƐ�ĚĞƐĐƌŝďĞĚ�ŚŽǁ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂůƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŵĞĂŶ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚƐ�ŝŶ�ĐĞƌƚĂŝŶ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŶŽ�ůŽŶŐĞƌ�ďĞ�
ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ŐĞƚ�ƚŽ�͞ŚĞĂůƚŚ�ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚŵĞŶƚƐ͕͟�͞ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƐŚŽƉƐ�ĂŶĚ�ďĂŶŬƐ͟�Žƌ�ǀŝƐŝƚ�͞ĨƌŝĞŶĚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĨĂŵŝůǇ�ǁŚŽ�ůŝǀĞ�ŝŶ�
ŽƚŚĞƌ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƵŶƚǇ͘͟� 
 
^ŽŵĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ĂůůƵĚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĨĂĐƚ�ƚŚĂƚ�͞ŵĂŶǇ�ĞůĚĞƌůǇ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ĚŽ�ŶŽƚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�Ă�ĐŽŵƉƵƚĞƌ�ƚŽ�
ĞŶĂďůĞ�ƚŚĞŵ�ƚŽ�ƐŚŽƉ�ŽŶůŝŶĞ�ĂƐ�ĂŶ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ͘͟��ƋƵĂůůǇ�ƐŽŵĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ĐƵƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ĂƌĞ�͞ƐŽ�
ƌƵƌĂů�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ĞŝƚŚĞƌ�ĚŽ�ŶŽƚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌŶĞƚ�ĐŽǀĞƌĂŐĞ�Žƌ�ƐƵƉĞƌŵĂƌŬĞƚƐ�ĚŽ�ŶŽƚ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ĂŶǇǁĂǇ͘͟ 
dŚĞ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�͞ŶŽƚ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ĂƩĞŶĚ�ŚĞĂůƚŚ�ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ǁĂƐ�ƋƵĞƌŝĞĚ͖�ǁŽƵůĚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŵĞĂŶ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŵĞĚŝĐĂů�
ƐƚĂī�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƚŽ�ŵĂŬĞ�ŵŽƌĞ�ŚŽŵĞ�ǀŝƐŝƚƐ͍�/Ĩ�ƐŽ͕�ǁŝůů�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƐƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŝƐ�ďĞ�ŵŽƌĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽƐƚ�ŽĨ�ŬĞĞƉŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�
ƐƵďƐŝĚŝƐĞĚ�ďƵƐĞƐ͍͟ 

 
ϭϯ͘ϱ͗��ŽƐƚ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ� 
&Žƌ�ƐŽŵĞ͕�ƚŚĞ�ŽŶůǇ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ�ǁĂƐ�͞ƚŽ�ƌĞůǇ�ŽŶ�ƚĂǆŝƐ͟�ĂŶĚ�ĨŽƌ�ŵĂŶǇ�ƚŚŝƐ�ǁĂƐ�ƐĞĞŶ�ĂƐ�͞ƚŽŽ�ĐŽƐƚůǇ�ĂŶĚ�
ƵŶƌĞĂůŝƐƟĐ͟�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ďƵĚŐĞƚ͘�^ĞǀĞƌĂů�ƐƵŐŐĞƐƟŽŶƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƉƵƚ�ĨŽƌǁĂƌĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�͞ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŶŽƚ�ŵŝŶĚ�
ƉĂǇŝŶŐ�Ă�ůŝƩůĞ�ŵŽƌĞ�ƚŽ�ŬĞĞƉ�Ă�ǀŝƚĂů�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ŐŽŝŶŐ�ĞƐƉĞĐŝĂůůǇ�ƐŝŶĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ�;ƚĂǆŝƐͿ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ŵƵĐŚ�
ŵŽƌĞ�ĐŽƐƚůǇ͘͟ 
 
ϭϯ͘ϲ͗�/ŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ�ĐŽŶŐĞƐƟŽŶ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŝŶ�ĐĂƌ�ƵƐĞͬĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶĐǇ 
&Žƌ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ǁŚŽ�ŚĂĚ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�Ă�ĐĂƌ�Žƌ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ĂƐŬ�ŽƚŚĞƌƐ�ĨŽƌ�Ă�ůŝŌ͕�ƚŚĞ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƚŽ�ƵƐĞ�ƚŚŝƐ�
ŵŽĚĞ�ŽĨ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ďƵƐĞƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŶŽ�ůŽŶŐĞƌ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�Žƌ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŶŽƚ�ƌƵŶ�Ăƚ�Ă�ĐĞƌƚĂŝŶ�ƟŵĞ͘�dŚŝƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�
͞/ŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ĐŽŶŐĞƐƟŽŶ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌŽĂĚƐ͕�ƉĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌůǇ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ďƵƐŝĞƐƚ�ƟŵĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĂǇ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ŚĂĚ�ďĞĞŶ�
ƉƌĞǀŝŽƵƐůǇ�ƵƐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ďƵƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŵŵƵƚĞ͟�ĂŶĚ�͞ƚŚĞ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƉƵďůŝĐ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ĚŽĞƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ůŝŵŝƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�
ƉƌŝǀĂƚĞ�ĐĂƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚĂǆŝƐ͕�ĐƵƫŶŐ�ĚŽǁŶ�ŽŶ�ƉŽůůƵƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƚƌĂĸĐ�ƉƌŽďůĞŵƐ�ŽŶ�^ƚĂīŽƌĚΖƐ�ŝŶĂĚĞƋƵĂƚĞ�ƌŽĂĚƐ͘͟ 
 
ϭϯ͘ϳ͗�/ŶĐŽŶǀĞŶŝĞŶĐĞ 
^ĞǀĞƌĂů�ůĞƩĞƌƐ�ĚĞƐĐƌŝďĞĚ�ŚŽǁ�ƌĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�Žƌ�ƌĞŵŽǀĂů�ŽĨ�ƐƉĞĐŝĮĐ�ƐƵďƐŝĚŝƐĞĚ�ƌŽƵƚĞƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŵĞĂŶ�ƚŚĞǇ�ǁŽƵůĚ�
ŚĂǀĞ�ƚŽ�͞ƚĂŬĞ�ƐĞǀĞƌĂů�ďƵƐĞƐ�ƚŽ�ŐĞƚ�ƚŽ�ĐĞƌƚĂŝŶ�ůŽĐĂƟŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ƟŵĞƚĂďůĞƐ�ĚŝĚ�ŶŽƚ�ĐŽƌƌĞƐƉŽŶĚ�ƚŚĞǇ�
ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƐƵďũĞĐƚ�ƚŽ�ůŽŶŐ�ǁĂŝƚƐ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƟŽŶƐ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŝƐ�ŶŽƚ�ŽŶůǇ�ĂŶ�ŝŶĐŽŶǀĞŶŝĞŶĐĞ�ďƵƚ�ĂůƐŽ͕�ŝŶ�ƐŽŵĞ�
ĐĂƐĞƐ͕�ĂŶ�ŝŵƉŽƐƐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ŐĞƚ�ƚŽ�ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚŵĞŶƚƐ�Ăƚ�Ă�ƌĞĂƐŽŶĂďůĞ�ƟŵĞ͘͟ 
 
 
 
 

Page 36



�Ϯϳ 

ϭϯ͘ϴ͗�KƚŚĞƌ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƵŐŐĞƐƟŽŶƐ 
dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĞƌĞ�Ă�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ƐƵŐŐĞƐƟŽŶƐ�ĂďŽƵƚ�ƐƉĞĐŝĮĐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƌŽƵƚĞƐ�ĂƐ�ǁĞůů�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ŝĚĞĂ�ŽĨ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ƉĂǇŝŶŐ�Ă�
ůŝƩůĞ�ŵŽƌĞ�ƚŽ�ĞŶĂďůĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĞĚ͘� 
 
KƚŚĞƌ�ƐƵŐŐĞƐƟŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ͗ 
 

Þ ZŝŶŐ�ĨĞŶĐŝŶŐ�ĂŶ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŝŶ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�dĂǆ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƐƵďƐŝĚŝĞƐ�ĐĂŶ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞ͘ 
Þ tŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ůŽĐĂů�ĐŽƵŶĐŝůƐ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞ�ũŽƵƌŶĞǇƐ�ƌĂƚŚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ĂďŽůŝƐŚ�ƚŚĞŵ�ĞŶƟƌĞůǇ͘ 
Þ �Ŷ�ŽīĞƌ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƉĞƌĂƚŽƌ�ŽĨ��ŽƌĚĞƌ��ĂƌƐ�ƚŽ�ƚĂŬĞ�ŽŶ�ƚǁŽ�ůŽĐĂů�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ƌƵŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĨƌĞĞ�;ƚŚĞƐĞ�ĂƌĞ�

ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚͿ͘� 
Þ 'ŝǀŝŶŐ�ĚƵĞ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ůĞŐĂů�ĚƵƟĞƐ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ��ƋƵĂůŝƟĞƐ��Đƚ�ϮϬϭϬ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŽ�ŶĂƟŽŶĂů�ƐƚĂƟƐƟĐƐ�ĂŶĚ�

ůŽĐĂů�ĨĞĞĚďĂĐŬ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ŝŶ�Ă�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�ĂƐ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�ĨĞĞĚďĂĐŬ͘� 
 

Page 37



�Ϯϴ 

 

14. ORGANISATIONAL RESPONSES 
ϭϰ͘ϭ͗�KƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐͬƉĞŽƉůĞ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ 
ϯϳ�͚ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶĂů͛�ƐƵƌǀĞǇ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ƌĞŇĞĐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ǀŝĞǁƐ�ŽĨ�ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐͬ
ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƟŶŐ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƵďůŝĐ�ĂŶĚ�Ă�ƌĂŶŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƚĞĚ�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ͘�͚DĞŵďĞƌƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƵďůŝĐ͛�ĂŶĚ�
͚ŽůĚĞƌ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ͛Ɛ�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ͛�ǁĞƌĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ĐŽŵŵŽŶůǇ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ͘�KƚŚĞƌ�ƉĞŽƉůĞͬŐƌŽƵƉƐ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�
ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�͚ƉŚǇƐŝĐĂů�ŚĞĂůƚŚ͛�ĂŶĚ�͚ŵĞŶƚĂů�ŚĞĂůƚŚ͛�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ͘� 

ϭϰ͘Ϯ͗�'ĞŽŐƌĂƉŚŝĐĂů�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ 
͚KƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ͛�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�Ăůů�^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ�ĚŝƐƚƌŝĐƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�^ƚŽŬĞ-ŽŶ-dƌĞŶƚ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ͘�/Ŷ�
ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶ͕�ŐĞŽŐƌĂƉŚŝĐĂů�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ďŽƌĚĞƌŝŶŐ�^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ�ĂůƐŽ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞĚ͘�dŚĞ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŽƵƚůŝŶĞĚ�ďĞůŽǁ͗ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ϭϰ͘ϯ͗�sŝĞǁƐͬĞīĞĐƚƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ� 
͚KƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶĂů͛�ǀŝĞǁƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ŝŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞĚ�ĂůŽŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�͚ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂů͛�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ƐĞĐƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ͘�͚KƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ͛�;ǁŚĞŶ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ŽǀĞƌĂůůͿ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŵŽƌĞ�ůŝŬĞůǇ�ƚŽ�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�
ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ�ƚŚĞǇ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ĞĂĐŚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽƵƌ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ͘� 
KǀĞƌ�ŚĂůĨ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ�ĚŝƐĂŐƌĞĞŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƟŶŐ�ŽůĚĞƌ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞǇ�
ǁĞƌĞ�ƉĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌůǇ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŶŽ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞƐ͕�ƚŚĂƚ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĚŝĸĐƵůƚǇ�ǁŝƚŚ�
ŐĞƫŶŐ�ƚŽ�ŵĞĚŝĐĂů�ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚŵĞŶƚƐ͕�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŵŽďŝůŝƚǇͬŐĞƫŶŐ�ŽƵƚ�ĂŶĚ�
ĂďŽƵƚ͕�ĂŶĚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ƐƵīĞƌ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ŝƐŽůĂƟŽŶ͘�KƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂůƐŽ�ŵŽƌĞ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǇŽƵŶŐĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�
ŽůĚĞƌ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ĮŶĚ�ŝƚ�ĚŝĸĐƵůƚ�ƚŽ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ůĞŝƐƵƌĞ�ĂĐƟǀŝƟĞƐ͘��� 
 
ϭϰ͘ϰ͗��ŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ� 
͚KƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ͛�ĐŽŵŵĞŶƚƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĂůƐŽ�ďĞĞŶ�ŝŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞĚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ƐĞĐƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ͘�dŚĞƐĞ�
ƌĞŝƚĞƌĂƚĞĚ�ĐŽŵŵŽŶ�ƚŚĞŵĞƐ�ŝĚĞŶƟĮĞĚ�ďǇ�͚ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂůƐ͛�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ŶŽƚ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ŵĂŬĞ�
͚ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚŵĞŶƚƐ͛�;ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ĚŽĐƚŽƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŚŽƐƉŝƚĂůƐͿ͕�Ă�ůŽƐƐ�ŽĨ�͚ŝŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶĐĞ͕͛�ĂŶ�ŝŶĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�͚ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƐŚŽƉƐ�
ĂŶĚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͕͛�ǇŽƵŶŐ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ŶŽƚ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ŐĞƚ�ƚŽ�͚ƐĐŚŽŽůͬĐŽůůĞŐĞ͕͛�ĂŶ�ŝŶĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�͚ŐĞƚ�ƚŽ�ǁŽƌŬ͕͛�͚ŵŽďŝůŝƚǇ�
ŝƐƐƵĞƐͬŶŽƚ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ŐĞƚ�ŽƵƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂďŽƵƚ͛�ĂƐ�ǁĞůů�ĂƐ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ�ŽĨ�͚ƐŽĐŝĂů�ŝƐŽůĂƟŽŶ͛͘�dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�ĂůƐŽ�Ă�ŐĞŶĞƌĂů�
ĨĞĞůŝŶŐ�ĞǆƉƌĞƐƐĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�Ăůů�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ŝŵƉĂĐƟŶŐ�ƵƉŽŶ�͞ƚŚŽƐĞ�ǁŚŽ�ŵŽƐƚ�ŶĞĞĚ�
ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ͘͟� 

&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϭϰ͘ϭ͗�'ƌŽƵƉƐ͕�ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ƌĞƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶĂů�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ�;EŽ͘�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐͿ 

Þ ^ƚĂīŽƌĚ�;ϳ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐͿ Þ �ĂƐƚ�^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ�;ϱ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐͿ 
Þ ^ŽƵƚŚ�^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ�;ϳ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐͿ Þ �ĂŶŶŽĐŬ��ŚĂƐĞ�;ϰ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐͿ 
Þ ^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ�DŽŽƌůĂŶĚƐ�;ϲ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐͿ Þ dĂŵǁŽƌƚŚ�;ϯ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐͿ 
Þ EĞǁĐĂƐƚůĞ-ƵŶĚĞƌ->ǇŵĞ�;ϲ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐͿ Þ �Ŷ�ĂƌĞĂ�ŽƵƚƐŝĚĞ�ŽĨ�^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ�;ϯ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐͿ 
Þ >ŝĐŚĮĞůĚ�;ϲ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐͿ Þ ^ƚŽŬĞ-ŽŶ-dƌĞŶƚ�;ϭ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞͿ 

Page 38



�Ϯϵ 

ϭϰ͘ϱ͗�KƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶĂů�ĂŶĚ�ŐƌŽƵƉ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ŵĂŝŶƚĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ 
ϰϬй�ŽĨ�͚ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ͛�ǁĞƌĞ�͚ĂǁĂƌĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƚĞŶĐĞ�ŽĨ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ͛ �ŝŶ�
ƚŚĞŝƌ�ůŽĐĂů�ĂƌĞĂ͘���ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ�Ϯϵй�ǁĞƌĞ�͚ĂǁĂƌĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ƚŽ�ƐŽŵĞ�ĞǆƚĞŶƚ͛�ĂŶĚ�ϯϭй�ǁĞƌĞ�͚ŶŽƚ�ĂǁĂƌĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ĞǆŝƐƚĞŶĐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�Ăƚ�Ăůů͛͘� 
 
ϭϰ͘ϲ͗��ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ŝŶŝƟĂƟǀĞƐ 
͚KƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ͛�ǁĞƌĞ�ĞŶĐŽƵƌĂŐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŶĂŵĞ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂǁĂƌĞ�ŽĨ͘�/Ŷ�ƚŽƚĂů͕�ϭϳ�
͚ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ͛�ĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚĞĚ�ĚĞƚĂŝůƐ�ŽĨ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ�ƚŚĞǇ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂǁĂƌĞ�ŽĨ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƐŚĂƌĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͘���ĨĞǁ�͚ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ͛�ĞǆƉƌĞƐƐĞĚ�Ă�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƐŽŵĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ŝŶŝƟĂƟǀĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�͞ ƐŵĂůů�ƐĐĂůĞ͟�ĂŶĚ�͞ŶŽƚ�
ƐĞƚ�ƵƉ�ĨŽƌ�ƌĞŐƵůĂƌ�ƵƐĞ͘͟�KƚŚĞƌƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�͞ĂůƌĞĂĚǇ�ƵƉ�ƚŽ�ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ�Ğ͘Ő͘�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ƉĂƟĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�ŵĞĚŝĐĂů�
ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚŵĞŶƚƐ͘͟�� 
 
ϭϰ͘ϳ͗�^ƵƉƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ůŽĐĂů�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƐĞƚ�ƵƉ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ� 
͚KƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ͛�ǁĞƌĞ�ŵŽƐƚ�ŬĞĞŶ�ƚŽ�ƐŚĂƌĞ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ŽŶ�͚ƚŚĞ�ƚǇƉĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ͛�ĂŶĚ�͚ƚŽ�ƐŝŐŶƉŽƐƚ�
ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ƚŽ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ͛͘�dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�ƐŽŵĞ�ĂƉƉĞƟƚĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ŶĞǁ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞƚ�ƵƉ�ĂŶĚ�
ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƟŽŶ͘��ĞƚĂŝůƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ǁŚŽ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ŽīĞƌ�͚ĂŶŽƚŚĞƌ�ƚǇƉĞ�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ͛�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƐŚĂƌĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͘� 

 

ϭϰ͘ϴ͗�^ƵŐŐĞƐƟŽŶƐͬŝĚĞĂƐ 
^ŽŵĞ�͚ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ͛�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ƐƵŐŐĞƐƟŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŝĚĞĂƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ŚĞůƉ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚĞ�ƚŽǁĂƌĚƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂǀŝŶŐƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�
ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ŵĂĚĞ͘�dŚĞƐĞ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ͗ 
 
Þ ��ƌĞǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŝĐŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ƟŵŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƚŽ�Įƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ͕�ĞĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŚĞĂůƚŚ͘ 
Þ ^ĞĞŬŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ƌĞƐƚŽƌĞ�ƉƌĞǀŝŽƵƐůǇ�ĐĂŶĐĞůůĞĚ�ƌŽƵƚĞƐ͘ 
Þ /ŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƟŶŐ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ŝŶƚŽ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͘ 
Þ /ŶƚƌŽĚƵĐŝŶŐ�ƚĂǆŝ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŇĞǆŝďůĞ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ƉĂƚƌŽŶĂŐĞ�ĮŐƵƌĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ďĞůŽǁ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�

ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�Ă�ĐŽŶǀĞŶƟŽŶĂů�ďƵƐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͘� 
Þ /ŶĐƌĞĂƐŝŶŐ�ƐƵďƐŝĚŝĞƐ�ĨŽƌ��ŝĂů-Ă-ZŝĚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƐĞĞŬŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ŵĂŬĞ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶĐŝĞƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ͘ 
 
^ŽŵĞ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶ�ǁĂƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ĞǆƉƌĞƐƐĞĚ�ďǇ�͚ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ͛�ŝŶ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƐĞĐƟŽŶ͘�<ĞǇ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ�ƌĂŝƐĞĚ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�Ă�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶ�
ƚŚĂƚ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŶŽ�ůŽŶŐĞƌ�ďĞ�ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ůŝǀĞ�ŝŶ�ƌƵƌĂů�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ŶŽƚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ͘�/Ŷ�ƉĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌ�
ƚŚŝƐ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽŶ�ŽůĚĞƌ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ͛Ɛ�ĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ƌĞŵĂŝŶ�ŝŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ůŝǀĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŽǁŶ�ŚŽŵĞƐ͘�� 
 

&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϭϰ͘Ϯ͗�dŚĞ�ƚǇƉĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ�ĐĂŶ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�;EŽ͘�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐͿ 

Page 39



�ϯϬ 

� APPENDIX 1—INDIVIDUALS SURVEY—OVERALL DEMOGRAHICS 
 

'ĞŶĚĞƌ� ^ƵƌǀĞǇ�����������������
ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ 

^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ�
Dz��ϮϬϭϲ 

 EŽ͛Ɛ й й 
DĂůĞ ϱϵϵ ϯϰй ϱϬй 
&ĞŵĂůĞ ϭϭϳϭ ϲϲй ϱϬй 

tŚĂƚ�ŝƐ�ǇŽƵƌ�ŐĞŶĚĞƌ͍ 

�ŐĞ ^ƵƌǀĞǇ�����������������
ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ 

^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ�
Dz��ϮϬϭϲ 

 EŽ͛Ɛ й й 
hŶĚĞƌ�ϭϴ Ϯϲ ϭ͘ϰϬй ϭϵй 
ϭϴ-Ϯϰ ϯϰ ϭ͘ϵϬй ϴй 
Ϯϱ-ϯϰ ϳϳ ϰ͘ϯϬй ϭϮй 
ϯϱ-ϰϰ ϭϬϭ ϱ͘ϲϬй ϭϮй 
ϰϱ-ϱϰ ϭϳϴ ϵ͘ϵϬй ϭϱй 
ϱϱ-ϲϰ ϮϯϬ ϭϮ͘ϴϬй ϭϯй 
ϲϱ-ϳϰ ϲϬϱ ϯϯ͘ϳϬй ϭϮй 
ϳϱн ϱϰϱ ϯϬ͘ϯϬй ϵй 

,Žǁ�ŽůĚ�ĂƌĞ�ǇŽƵ͍� 

�ŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ ^ƵƌǀĞǇ�����������������
ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ 

^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ�
�ĞŶƐƵƐ�ϮϬϭϭ 

 EŽ͛Ɛ й й 
zĞƐ ϲϳϬ ϯϵй ϭϵй 
EŽ ϭϬϲϲ ϲϭй ϴϭй 

�Ž�ǇŽƵ�ŚĂǀĞ�Ă�ůŽŶŐ�ƚĞƌŵ�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�Žƌ�ŝůůŶĞƐƐ�
ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĂīĞĐƚƐ�ĚĂǇ�ƚŽ�ĚĂǇ�ĂĐƟǀŝƟĞƐ͍ 

�ŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ ^ƵƌǀĞǇ�����������������
ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ 

 EŽ͛Ɛ й 
zĞƐ͕�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�Ă�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ� ϰϭϯ Ϯϰй 
zĞƐ͕�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ĂŐĞ ϱϬϲ Ϯϵй 
EŽ� ϴϭϯ ϰϳй 

/Ɛ�ǇŽƵƌ�ŵŽďŝůŝƚǇ�ŝŵƉĂŝƌĞĚ�ŝŶ�ĂŶǇǁĂǇ͍ 

�ƚŚŶŝĐŝƚǇ ^ƵƌǀĞǇ�����������������
ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ 

^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ�
�ĞŶƐƵƐ�ϮϬϭϭ 

 EŽ͛Ɛ й й 
tŚŝƚĞ ϭϳϮϵ ϵϴй ϵϲй 
DŝǆĞĚ ϭϯ ϭй ϭй 
�ƐŝĂŶ ϲ Ϭй Ϯй 
�ůĂĐŬ� ϯ Ϭй ϭй 
KƚŚĞƌ�ŐƌŽƵƉ� ϴ ϭй Ϭ͘Ϯй 

tŽƵůĚ�ǇŽƵ�ĚĞƐĐƌŝďĞ�ǇŽƵƌƐĞůĨ�ĂƐ͍ 

�ŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ ^ƵƌǀĞǇ�����������������
ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ 

 EŽ͛Ɛ й 
zĞƐ ϲϵ ϰй 
EŽ� ϭϲϲϰ ϵϲй 

�Ž�ǇŽƵ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƌĞŐƵůĂƌ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�Ă�ĐĂƌ͍ 

�ŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ ^ƵƌǀĞǇ�����������������
ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ 

 EŽ͛Ɛ й 
zĞƐ ϲϵ ϰй 
EŽ� ϭϲϲϰ ϵϲй 

�Ž�ǇŽƵ�ŚĂǀĞ�Ă�ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ͍ 

Page 40



�ϯϭ 

 
^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ŶĂŵĞͬŶƵŵďĞƌ EŽ�ŽĨ� 

ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ 
^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ŶĂŵĞͬŶƵŵďĞƌ EŽ�ŽĨ� 

ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ 
^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ŶĂŵĞͬŶƵŵďĞƌ 

��Θ�'��ŽĂĐŚ�Θ��ƵƐ�>ƚĚ�-�ϭϰ ϭϯϲ ^ĞůĞĐƚ��ƵƐĞƐ�-�ϳϯ Ϯϴ �ƌƌŝǀĂ�DŝĚůĂŶĚƐ�EŽƌƚŚ�-�ϭϬ� 
^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ��ŽƌĚĞƌ�dƌĂǀĞů ϭϮϱ ��Θ�'��ŽĂĐŚ�Θ��ƵƐ�>ƚĚ�-�ϳϰ Ϯϰ ��Θ�'��ŽĂĐŚ�Θ��ƵƐ�>ƚĚ�-�ϭϭϲ 
�ƐŚďŽƵƌŶĞ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�dƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ ϴϵ DŝĚůĂŶĚ��ůĂƐƐŝĐ�>ŝŵŝƚĞĚ�-�ϰϬϭ Ϯϰ �ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�dƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�tDŝĚůĂŶĚƐ 
��Θ�'��ŽĂĐŚ�Θ��ƵƐ�>ƚĚ�-�ϭϮ ϳϳ ��Θ�'��ŽĂĐŚ�Θ��ƵƐ�>ƚĚ�-�ϭϰ� Ϯϯ ��Θ�'��ŽĂĐŚ�Θ��ƵƐ�>ƚĚ�-�ϳϯ 
��Θ�'��ŽĂĐŚ�Θ��ƵƐ�>ƚĚ�-�ϯϬ ϳϯ ��Θ�'��ŽĂĐŚ�Θ��ƵƐ�>ƚĚ�-�ϴϱ Ϯϯ DŝĚůĂŶĚ��ůĂƐƐŝĐ�>ŝŵŝƚĞĚ�-�ϰϬϯ 
^ĞůĞĐƚ��ƵƐĞƐ�-�ϭϭ ϲϵ �ƌƌŝǀĂ�DŝĚůĂŶĚƐ�EŽƌƚŚ�-�Ϯ� ϮϮ �ƌƌŝǀĂ�DŝĚůĂŶĚƐ�EŽƌƚŚ�-�Ϯϭ 
^ŽůƵƐ�-�ϴϮ ϲϴ ��Θ�'��ŽĂĐŚ�Θ��ƵƐ�>ƚĚ�-�ϭϯ� ϮϮ �ƌƌŝǀĂ�DŝĚůĂŶĚƐ�EŽƌƚŚ�-�ϳϲ� 

EŽ�ŽĨ� 
ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ 
ϭϯ 
ϭϯ 
ϭϮ 
ϭϮ 
ϭϮ 
ϭϭ 
ϭϭ 

��Θ�'��ŽĂĐŚ�Θ��ƵƐ�>ƚĚ�-�ϭϲ ϲϱ DŝĚůĂŶĚ��ůĂƐƐŝĐ�>ŝŵŝƚĞĚ�-�ϴϭϮ ϮϮ �ƌƌŝǀĂ�DŝĚůĂŶĚƐ�EŽƌƚŚ�-�ϳϬ ϭϬ 
^ĞůĞĐƚ��ƵƐĞƐ�-�ϴϳϳ ϲϬ �ƌƌŝǀĂ�DŝĚůĂŶĚƐ�EŽƌƚŚ�-�ϵ Ϯϭ ��Θ�'��ŽĂĐŚ�Θ��ƵƐ�>ƚĚ�-�ϴϬ ϭϬ 
��Θ�'��ŽĂĐŚ�Θ��ƵƐ�>ƚĚ�-�ϭϱ ϱϵ ��Θ�'��ŽĂĐŚ�Θ��ƵƐ�>ƚĚ�-�^ϭ ϮϬ DŝĚůĂŶĚ��ůĂƐƐŝĐ�>ƚĚ�-�ϭϴ ϵ 
&ŝƌƐƚ�WŽƩĞƌŝĞƐ�>ƚĚ�-�ϲ� ϱϵ �ĐĐĞƐƐŝďůĞ�dƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�'ƌŽƵƉ ϭϳ �ĞƌďǇƐŚŝƌĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�-�sϭ ϴ 

DŽďŝůŝƚǇ�>ŝŶŬ�;>ŝĐŚĮĞůĚ�ĂŶĚ�ZƵŐĞůĞǇ��ŽŶŶĞĐƚͿ ϯϲ �ĞƌďǇƐŚŝƌĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�-�ϰϰϮ ϭϰ DŝĚůĂŶĚ��ůĂƐƐŝĐ�>ŝŵŝƚĞĚ�-�ϰϬϮ� ϯ 
��Θ�'��ŽĂĐŚ�Θ��ƵƐ�>ƚĚ�-�ϭϯ ϯϰ &ŝƌƐƚ�WŽƩĞƌŝĞƐ�>ƚĚ�-�ϳϮ� ϭϰ ^ĞůĞĐƚ��ƵƐĞƐ�-�ϲϳ ϯ 
DŽďŝůŝƚǇ�>ŝŶŬ�;EĞĞĚǁŽŽĚ�&ŽƌĞƐƚ��ŽŶŶĞĐƚͿ ϯϯ DŽďŝůŝƚǇ�>ŝŶŬ�-�ϰϭϭ ϭϰ ^ƚŽŬĞ��ŝƚǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�;^ĐƌĂŐŐƐͿ�-�ϰϰ ϯ 
dƌĂǀĞů�tĞƐƚ�DŝĚůĂŶĚƐ�-�ϭϬ ϯϯ dĂǆŝĐŽ�-�ϭϬϵ ϭϰ �ĞƌďǇƐŚŝƌĞ��ŽƵŶƚǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�-�Ϯϭ� Ϯ 

��Θ�'��ŽĂĐŚ�Θ��ƵƐ�>ƚĚ�-�ϴϰϮ ϱϴ DŝĚůĂŶĚ��ůĂƐƐŝĐ�>ŝŵŝƚĞĚ�-�ϰϬϮ ϭϳ ^ƚĂŶƚŽŶΖƐ�ŽĨ�^ƚŽŬĞ�-�ϰϮϵ ϴ 
�ƌƌŝǀĂ�DŝĚůĂŶĚƐ�EŽƌƚŚ�-�ϴ ϱϯ �ƌƌŝǀĂ�DŝĚůĂŶĚƐ�EŽƌƚŚ�-�ϭϬ ϭϲ �ĞŶƚƌĂů��ƵƐĞƐ�;�ĞŶͿ�-�ϯϱ� ϳ 
�ĞŶŶĞƩƐ�dƌĂǀĞů�;�ƌĂŶďĞƌƌǇͿ�>ƚĚ�-�ϭϮϯ ϱϯ �ƌƌŝǀĂ�DŝĚůĂŶĚƐ�EŽƌƚŚ�-�ϳϭͬ� ϭϲ ��Θ�'��ŽĂĐŚ�Θ��ƵƐ�>ƚĚ�-�^ϰ ϳ 
�ƌƌŝǀĂ�DŝĚůĂŶĚƐ�EŽƌƚŚ�-�ϲϭ ϰϴ ��Θ�'��ŽĂĐŚ�Θ��ƵƐ�>ƚĚ�-�ϴϰϮ� ϭϲ ��Θ�'��ŽĂĐŚ�Θ��ƵƐ�>ƚĚ�-�ϭϰ� ϲ 
��Θ�'��ŽĂĐŚ�Θ��ƵƐ�>ƚĚ�-�ϴϰϭ ϰϳ ��Θ�'��ŽĂĐŚ�Θ��ƵƐ�>ƚĚ�-�^Ϯ ϭϲ �ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�>ŝŶŬ�^ƚĂīŽƌĚ�ĂŶĚ��ŝƐͲƚƌŝĐƚ�;>ŽĚŐĞĮĞůĚ�WĂƌŬ�-�^ƚĂīŽƌĚͿ ϱ 
��Θ�'��ŽĂĐŚ�Θ��ƵƐ�>ƚĚ�-�^ϱ ϰϱ DŝĚůĂŶĚ��ůĂƐƐŝĐ�>ŝŵŝƚĞĚ�-�ϭϬ ϭϲ ��Θ�'��ŽĂĐŚ�Θ��ƵƐ�>ƚĚ�-�ϴϰϭ� ϰ 
�ƌƌŝǀĂ�DŝĚůĂŶĚƐ�EŽƌƚŚ�-�ϱ ϰϮ dĂǆŝĐŽ�-�ϭϬϴ ϭϲ ^ƚŽŬĞ��ŝƚǇ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�;^ĐƌĂŐŐƐͿ�-�ϱϬ ϰ 
��Θ�'��ŽĂĐŚ�Θ��ƵƐ�>ƚĚ�-�^ϯ ϰϭ ��Θ�'��ŽĂĐŚ�Θ��ƵƐ�>ƚĚ�-�ϯϯͬϯϱ ϭϱ �ŽĂƐƚĂů�>ŝŶĞƌ�>ƚĚ�-�ϭϲ ϯ 
�ƌƌŝǀĂ�DŝĚůĂŶĚƐ�EŽƌƚŚ�-�ϲϮ ϯϴ DŝĚůĂŶĚ��ůĂƐƐŝĐ�>ŝŵŝƚĞĚ�-�ϴϭϭ ϭϱ �ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�>ŝŶŬ�^ƚĂīŽƌĚ�ĂŶĚ��ŝƐͲƚƌŝĐƚ�;�ŽƉƉĞŶŚĂůů�-�dĞŶ��ƵƩƐ�-�^ƚĂīŽƌĚͿ 

ϯ 

^ĞůĞĐƚ��ƵƐĞƐ�-�ϴϳϴ ϯϭ dĂǆŝĐŽ�-�ϭϴ� ϭϰ �ƌƌŝǀĂ�DŝĚůĂŶĚƐ�EŽƌƚŚ�-�ϭϬ^ ϭ 
��Θ�'��ŽĂĐŚ�Θ��ƵƐ�>ƚĚ�-�ϵϯ Ϯϴ     

�ƵƐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƵƐĞĚ�ďǇ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚĞŶƚƐ� 

�ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ ^ƵƌǀĞǇ�����������������
ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ 

^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ�
�ĞŶƐƵƐ�ϮϬϭϭ �ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ ^ƵƌǀĞǇ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞƐ��������� ^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ�

�ĞŶƐƵƐ�ϮϬϭϭ 
 EŽ͛Ɛ й й  EŽ͛Ɛ й й 
�ĂŶŶŽĐŬ��ŚĂƐĞ ϳϮ ϰй ϭϭй ^ŽƵƚŚ�^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ ϭϲϳ ϭϬй ϭϯй 
�ĂƐƚ�^ƚĂīŽƌĚƐŚŝƌĞ ϭϮϵ ϳй ϭϯй ^ƚĂīŽƌĚ ϱϲϰ ϯϮй ϭϱй 
>ŝĐŚĮĞůĚ ϮϬϳ ϭϮй ϭϮй ^ƚĂīƐ�DŽŽƌůĂŶĚƐ ϯϱϳ ϮϬй ϭϭй 
EĞǁĐĂƐƚůĞ Ϯϭϯ ϭϮй ϭϱй dĂŵǁŽƌƚŚ ϰϱ ϯй ϵй 

tŚĂƚ�ŝƐ�ǇŽƵƌ�ĚŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƐŝĚĞŶĐĞ͍ 

Page 41



�ϯϮ 

 

APPENDIX 2—INDIVIDUALS SURVEY— DEMOGRAPHICS FOR COMMUNITY/VOLUNTARY 
TRANSPORT USERS  

'ĞŶĚĞƌ�   
 EŽ͛Ɛ�ƵƐĞĚ EŽ͛Ɛ�ŝŶ�ƐƵƌǀĞǇ й�ƵƐĞĚ 
DĂůĞ ϰϵ ϱϵϵ ϴй 
&ĞŵĂůĞ ϭϯϱ ϭϭϳϭ ϭϮй 

,ĂǀĞ�ƵƐĞĚ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇͬǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ďǇ�ŐĞŶĚĞƌ 

�ŐĞ   
 EŽ͛Ɛ�ƵƐĞĚ EŽ͛Ɛ�ŝŶ�ƐƵƌǀĞǇ й�ƵƐĞĚ 
hŶĚĞƌ�ϭϴ ϯ Ϯϲ ϭϮй 
ϭϴ-Ϯϰ ϰ ϯϰ ϭϮй 
Ϯϱ-ϯϰ ϲ ϳϳ ϴй 
ϯϱ-ϰϰ ϳ ϭϬϭ ϳй 
ϰϱ-ϱϰ ϭϬ ϭϳϴ ϲй 
ϱϱ-ϲϰ ϭϲ ϮϯϬ ϳй 
ϲϱ-ϳϰ ϰϯ ϲϬϱ ϳй 
ϳϱн ϭϬϱ ϱϰϱ ϭϵй 

,ĂǀĞ�ƵƐĞĚ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇͬǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ďǇ�ĂŐĞ 

�ŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ   
 EŽ͛Ɛ�ƵƐĞĚ EŽ͛Ɛ�ŝŶ�

ƐƵƌǀĞǇ 
й�ƵƐĞĚ 

zĞƐ ϭϭϯ ϲϳϬ ϭϳй 
EŽ ϳϯ ϭϬϲϲ ϳй 

,ĂǀĞ�ƵƐĞĚ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇͬǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�
ďǇ�ǁŚĞƚŚĞƌ�ŚĂǀĞ�Ă�ůŽŶŐ�ƚĞƌŵ�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�Žƌ�
ŝůůŶĞƐƐ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĂīĞĐƚƐ�ĚĂǇ�ƚŽ�ĚĂǇ�ĂĐƟǀŝƟĞƐ͍ 

�ŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ  
 EŽ͛Ɛ�

ƵƐĞĚ 
EŽ͛Ɛ�ŝŶ�
ƐƵƌǀĞǇ 

zĞƐ͕�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ� ϳϱ ϰϭϯ 
zĞƐ͕�ĂŐĞ ϲϰ ϱϬϲ 
EŽ� ϰϳ ϴϭϯ 

й�ƵƐĞĚ 
ϭϴй 
ϭϯй 
ϲй 

,ĂǀĞ�ƵƐĞĚ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇͬǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�
ďǇ�ǁŚĞƚŚĞƌ�ŵŽďŝůŝƚǇ�ŝƐ�ŝŵƉĂŝƌĞĚ�ŝŶ�ĂŶǇǁĂǇ͍ 

�ŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ  
 EŽ͛Ɛ�

ƵƐĞĚ 
EŽ͛Ɛ�ŝŶ�
ƐƵƌǀĞǇ 

й�ƵƐĞĚ 

zĞƐ ϭϲ ϲϵ Ϯϯй 
EŽ� ϭϳϬ ϭϲϲϰ ϭϬй 

,ĂǀĞ�ƵƐĞĚ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇͬǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�
ďǇ�ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ͍ 

�ƚŚŶŝĐŝƚǇ   
 EŽ͛Ɛ�

ƵƐĞĚ 
EŽ͛Ɛ�ŝŶ�
ƐƵƌǀĞǇ 

й�ƵƐĞĚ 

tŚŝƚĞ ϭϴϯ ϭϳϮϵ ϭϭй 
DŝǆĞĚ ϰ ϭϯ ϯϭй 
�ƐŝĂŶ ϭ ϲ ϭϳй 
�ůĂĐŬ� Ϭ ϯ Ϭй 
KƚŚĞƌ�ŐƌŽƵƉ� ϭ ϴ ϭϯй 

,ĂǀĞ�ƵƐĞĚ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇͬǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ďǇ�ĞƚŚŶŝĐŝƚǇ 

Page 42



 

1 
 

 

Community Impact Assessment  
 

 

Name of Proposal:  Supported Local Bus Service Network 

Project Sponsor (if applicable):     

Project Manager (if applicable) or Lead:  Clive Thomson 

Date:  18 October 2017                            

 
 

P
age 43



 

2 
 

 

Community Impact Assessment Template 

 

Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) – Use this section to identify if the proposal will impact on our legal obligations under the Equality Act 2010 for 

both residents and staff.   In summary, those subject to the general equality duty must have due regard to the need to: Eliminate unlawful discrimination, 
harassment and victimisation, advance equality of opportunity between different groups and foster good relations between different groups. 
Please consider: 

 Who is currently using the service, across the protected characteristics?   

 What do we know about their experiences and outcomes?   

 What relevant information is available from the Census and population trends data?  

 What were the findings of the engagement/consultation?   

 Is there any relevant national, regional and/or local sources of research/evidence available?  

 Is there any relevant information from partners or voluntary, community, social enterprise organisations?   

 What is the analysis of the impact on those with relevant protected characteristics? 

Protected 
Characteristics: 

Which groups will be affected Benefits Risks Mitigations / Recommendations   

 Race The proportion of population from 
minority ethnic groups in 
Staffordshire is 6.4% which is 
significantly lower than the regional 
proportion (20.8%) and the national 
proportion (20.2%).  However, the 
rate in East Staffordshire (13.8%) is 
higher than other districts/boroughs 
and in the wards of Anglesey 
(50.3%), Eton Park (32.3%) and 
Burton (31.4%) the rates are 
considerably higher than the national 
average. 
While it is not possible to analyse 
bus usage by minority ethnic groups, 
we are aware through the 

N/A N/A N/A 
 

P
age 44



 

3 
 

consultation results that the 
respondent ethnicity profile is similar 
to the Staffordshire proportions for 
the population overall; 98% of 
respondents described themselves 
as ‘white’, 1% as ‘mixed’ and 1% as 
‘other’. 

 Disability The changes could have an impact 
on people with disabilities.  The 
percentage of people claiming 
Disability Living Allowance in 
Staffordshire (7%) is similar to the 
England figure (7.1%).  However, 
there are some districts/boroughs 
with higher percentages as follows: 
Cannock Chase (8.8%), Tamworth 
(8.1%), Newcastle (7.5%) and Staffs 
Moorlands (7.4%). 
 
The consultation responses show 
that 39% of respondents indicated a 
long term disability or illness which 
affects their day to day activities.  
This is twice the proportion of 
Staffordshire residents overall who 
have a disability which affects their 
day to day activities (19%). 
 

There could be an 
increase in capacity 
of commercial 
services if 
Sundays/Bank 
Holidays supported 
services cut – 
people may choose 
to travel Monday to 
Saturday. 

Risk that disabled 
people may become 
isolated or have 
reduced accessibility 
to services/support. 
 
Annual ENCTS 
Patronage data 
shows numbers of 
passenger journeys 
made by older or 
disabled people on 
the services within 
this review.  This 
often makes up a 
large proportion of 
annual passenger 
numbers. In 
Staffordshire there 
are 17 services that 
operate with over 
70% ENCTS 
patronage, six of 
these services 
operate with 100% 
ENCTS patronage 
as follows: 
Service nos.T3/T5 
Cannock; 

Concessions 
The continuation of the English 
National Concessionary Travel 
Scheme will help to ensure that 
financial impacts on disabled 
people which could be caused by 
having to make interchanges are 
minimised.  
 
Voluntary/Community Transport 
We are aware through the 
consultation that a number of 
respondents with a 
disability/impairment are aware of 
and/or use local community or 
voluntary transport schemes to get 
around.  
 
There are also a number of 
respondents with a long term 
disability, a mobility impairment or a 
learning disability who wanted to 
use a community/voluntary 
transport scheme if the buses they 
currently use, at the times that they 
use them, were not available.   
 
There was an indication within the 
consultation results that a small 

P
age 45



 

4 
 

Coppenhall and 
Lodgefield Park, 
Stafford (5 
respondents to the 
consultation use this 
service); 6 Staffs 
Moorlands (59 
respondents to the 
consultation use this 
service); 72 
Newcastle (14 
respondents to the 
consultation use this 
service); 411 East 
Staffs (14 
respondents to the 
consultation use this 
service).  
See table 2 below 
and Appendix 1 of 
the Analysis of 
Results Report. 
 
Nearly three 
quarters (73%) of 
respondents 
indicated that they 
hold a 
concessionary pass 
for free travel. 
 
In terms of the 
extent of the 
agreement / 
disagreement and 
levels of impact of 

number of respondents (15%) 
expressed an interest in supporting 
local community and voluntary 
transport schemes.  There is 
therefore the potential to support 
further people to use 
voluntary/transport schemes to 
minimise the impacts to these 
groups of people. 
 
Alternative approaches 
Through the consultation there 
were some suggestions for 
alternative approaches to the 
supported bus network, which are 
set out in the Analysis of the 
Results of the Consultation.  The 
service area has received all the 
comments and suggestions put 
forward to consider. 
 
 

P
age 46



 

5 
 

the four options; 
47% of all 
respondents to the 
consultation 
expressed 
agreement for option 
1.  However, 44% of 
those with a ‘long 
term disability which 
affects their day to 
day activities’ and 
37% of those with a 
‘learning disability’ 
were least likely to 
agree to option 1.  
66% of those with ‘a 
learning disability’ 
and 65% of those 
with ‘mobility 
impairment’ and 
60% of those with a 
‘disability’ felt the 
option would have 
an above average 
‘quite a big/big 
effect’ on them.  
 
25% of all 
respondents 
expressed 
agreement for option 
2 with minimal 
variation by the 
majority of 
respondent groups. 
57% of those with ‘a 

P
age 47



 

6 
 

learning disability’ 
and 56% of those 
whose ‘mobility was 
impaired due to a 
disability’ felt the 
option would have 
an above average 
‘quite a big/big 
effect’ on them.  
 
23% of all 
respondents 
expressed 
agreement for option 
3 with those with a 
‘disability which 
affects mobility’ and 
those with a ‘long 
term disability’ were 
more likely to be in 
agreement with this 
option (27% and 
26% respectively).  
66% of those with ‘a 
learning disability’ 
and 56% of those 
whose ‘mobility was 
impaired due to a 
disability’ felt the 
option would have 
an above average 
‘quite a big/big 
effect’ on them.  
 
27% of all 
respondents 

P
age 48



 

7 
 

expressed 
agreement for option 
4 with those with ‘a 
learning disability’ 
(32%) more likely to 
be in agreement. 
60% of those with ‘a 
learning disability’ 
felt the option would 
have an above 
average ‘quite a 
big/big effect’ on 
them. 
 
There were a 
number of key 
themes within 
respondent’s 
comments that 
spanned across all 
four proposed 
options, the 
following comments 
relate to 
respondents’ 
mobility/ability to get 
out and about: 
 
“It would limit 
journey 
opportunituies 
without walking”. 
“I fear without 
subsideised bus 
services I wont be 
able to travel.  I live 

P
age 49



 

8 
 

in a village and I 
don’t drive so rely on 
the subsidised bus 
services”. 
“We would be bery 
restricted without the 
bus to take us to the 
town”. 
“I couldn’t go out on 
my own without this 
service, I would lose 
my independence”. 
 
Respondents were 
asked to consider 
how they would 
travel if the buses 
they currently use, at 
the times that they 
use them, were not 
available.  Over half 
of those responding 
said they would not 
be able to travel 
(56%).  A higher 
proportion of the 
56% were ‘aged 
75+’, ‘female’, had a 
‘long term disability’ 
a ‘a mobility 
impairment’ or a 
‘learning disability’. 
 
Those who wanted 
to use a 
community/voluntary 

P
age 50



 

9 
 

transport scheme 
were more likely to 
be under the age of 
24, aged 75+ or 
have a long term 
disability, a mobility 
impairment or a 
learning disability. 
 
We are aware 
through the 
consultation that a 
number of 
respondents with a 
disability/impairment 
are aware and/or 
use local community 
or voluntary 
transport schemes – 
see mitigation for 
further information. 

 Sex The changes are unlikely to have 
any specific impact on gender.  In all 
districts and boroughs of 
Staffordshire except Stafford, 
females make up a greater 
proportion of the total population 
than males do, but it is not possible 
to split bus passenger numbers by 
gender. We are however aware 
through the consultation responses 
that the response rate from female 
residents was disproportionately 
high when compared to the mid-year 
population estimates from the Office 
of National Statistics 2016.  66% of 

N/A N/A N/A 

P
age 51



 

10 
 

respondents were female compared 
to 34% who were male. 

 Age Age is one of the protected 
characteristics that could be 
negatively affected most by the 
potential changes to public transport 
provision in Staffordshire without 
mitigation, particularly those aged 
65+ and those aged between 11 and 
19 years with a Your Staffordshire 
Card. 
 
According to Department for 
Transport figures1 across 
Staffordshire approximately 41% of 
total passenger journeys in 2015/16 
were made by elderly or disabled 
concessionary passengers which is 
significantly higher than the regional 
and national figures (25% and 22% 
respectively).   
 
Staffordshire has a higher proportion 
of residents aged 65+ (20.8%) when 
compared to both England (17.7%) 
and the West Midlands (18.2%).2  All 
districts within Staffordshire have 
higher than average proportions of 
people aged 65+ apart from 
Tamworth. The highest proportion of 
people aged 65+ are in Staffordshire 
Moorlands (23.9%) South Staffs 

There could be an 
increase in capacity 
of commercial 
services if 
Sundays/Bank 
Holidays supported 
services cut – 
people may choose 
to travel Monday to 
Saturday 

Older People 
Risk that older 
people may become 
isolated, lonely 
and/or have reduced 
accessibility to 
services/support. 
See Health & Care 
section for further 
information on older 
people and 
loneliness. 
 
Annual ENCTS 
Patronage data 
shows numbers of 
passenger journeys 
made by older or 
disabled people on 
the services within 
this review.  This 
often makes up a 
large proportion of 
annual passenger 
numbers. In 
Staffordshire there 
are 17 services that 
operate with over 
70% ENCTS 
patronage, six of 

Concessions 
The continuation of the English 
National Concessionary Travel 
Scheme and the local Your 
Staffordshire Card will help to 
ensure that financial impacts on 
elderly and young people which 
could be caused by having to make 
interchanges are minimised. 
 
 
 

                                                           
1
Department for Transport statistics, table BUS0113, last updated October 2016 https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/bus01-local-bus-passenger-journeys  

2
 Staffordshire Locality Profile 2016 https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/LocalityProfiles/Locality-Profiles-2016/March-2017-

Amendments/Staffordshire-Profile-2016-FINAL.pdf  

P
age 52

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/bus01-local-bus-passenger-journeys
https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/LocalityProfiles/Locality-Profiles-2016/March-2017-Amendments/Staffordshire-Profile-2016-FINAL.pdf
https://www.staffordshireobservatory.org.uk/documents/LocalityProfiles/Locality-Profiles-2016/March-2017-Amendments/Staffordshire-Profile-2016-FINAL.pdf


 

11 
 

(23.4%), Lichfield (22.9%) and 
Stafford (21.6%).   
 
While it is not possible to analyse 
bus usage by age, we are aware 
through the consultation results that 
the majority of the respondent profile 
(64%) were aged 65 or above.  
Responses were received from all 
age groups including those under 
the age of 18. 

these services 
operate with 100% 
ENCTS patronage 
as follows: 
Service nos.T3/T5 
Cannock; 
Coppenhall and 
Lodgefield Park, 
Stafford; 6 Staffs 
Moorlands; 72 
Newcastle; 411 East 
Staffs.  
See table 2. 
 
The consultation 
invited respondents 
to articulate the level 
of impact the four 
options presented to 
them would have.  
The level of impact 
varied by 
respondent type.  
Set out below for 
each option are the 
proportions of 75+ 
year olds who felt 
that the option would 
have an above 
average ‘quite a 
big’/’big effect’ upon 
them: 
 
Option 1 – 72% 
Option 2 – 57% 
Option 3 – n/a 

P
age 53



 

12 
 

Option 4 – 62% 
 
The level of 
agreement for each 
option is also 
available for all 
respondents and by 
respondent types.  
In total 47% agreed 
with option 1, 24% 
agreed with option 2, 
23% for option 3 and 
27% for option 4.  
Significantly for the 
75+ year olds is that 
30% agreed with 
option 3 and 34% 
agreed with option 4. 
 
Respondents were 
asked to consider 
how they would 
travel if the buses 
they currently use, at 
the times that they 
use them, were not 
available.  Over half 
of those responding 
said they would not 
be able to travel 
(56%).  A higher 
proportion of the 
56% were ‘aged 
75+’, ‘female’, had a 
‘long term disability’ 
a ‘a mobility 

P
age 54



 

13 
 

impairment’ or a 
‘learning disability’. 
 
Those who wanted 
to use a 
community/voluntary 
transport scheme 
were more likely to 
be under the age of 
24, aged 75+ or 
have a long term 
disability, a mobility 
impairment or a 
learning disability. 
 
We are aware 
through the 
consultation that a 
number of 
respondents are 
aware and/or use 
local community or 
voluntary transport 
schemes.  The 
results are broken 
down by respondent 
type and in terms of 
those aged 75+ 19% 
or 105 respondents 
had used these 
services. 
 
Younger People 
Risk that younger 
people cannot 
access 

P
age 55



 

14 
 

employment/training 
opportunities. 
 
Annual Your 
Staffordshire Card 
patronage data 
shows numbers of 
passenger journeys 
made by people 
aged 11 to 19 on the 
services within this 
review. 
 
There are three 
services with 
significant Your 
Staffordshire Card 
patronage as 
follows: 
Service nos. 182, 
108, 109 Staffs 
Moorlands. 
 
It is important to 
note that figures for 
annual ENCTS and 
Your Staffordshire 
Card patronage is 
unavailable for Dial-
a-Ride 
services.  However, 
research into 
patronage on these 
services shows that 
the majority of 
passengers are 

P
age 56



 

15 
 

ENCTS patrons and 
very little Your 
Staffordshire Card 
patrons use these 
services. 
 
The consultation 
invited respondents 
to articulate the level 
of impact the four 
options presented to 
them would have.  
The level of impact 
varied by 
respondent type.  
Set out below for 
each option are the 
proportions of under 
18s who felt that the 
option would have 
an above average 
‘quite a big’/’big 
effect’ upon them: 
 
Option 1 – 58% 
Option 2 – 77% 
Option 3 – 71% 
Option 4 – 57% 
 
The level of 
agreement for each 
option is also 
available for all 
respondents and by 
respondent types.  
In total 47% agreed 

P
age 57



 

16 
 

with option 1, 24% 
agreed with option 2, 
23% for option 3 and 
27% for option 4.  
Significantly for the 
under 18s, 38% 
agreed with option 4. 
 
We are aware 
through the 
consultation that a 
number of 
respondents are 
aware and/or use 
local community or 
voluntary transport 
schemes.  The 
results are broken 
down by respondent 
type and in terms of 
under 18s, 12% or 3 
respondents had 
used these services 
and 12% or 4 
respondents were 
aged 18 to 24. 
 
 

 Religion or 
Belief 

The changes are unlikely to have 
any specific impact on religion/belief.   
Although a district breakdown of 
religion is not available, the 2011 
census show that Christianity is still 
the main religion (60%).  However 
despite population growth the 
number of Christians in Staffordshire 

N/A Risk that people 
may not be able to 
get to places of 
worship. 

 

P
age 58



 

17 
 

fell from 650,000 in 2001 to 580,000 
in 2011.  At the same time, there has 
been a rise in the numbers of 
residents classing themselves as not 
having a religion.  In line with the 
changing ethnicity in Staffordshire 
there has been a 5% increase in 
Islam in Staffordshire. 
Respondents’ religion or belief 
characteristics were not provided in 
the public consultation. 

 Gender 
Reassignment 

The changes are unlikely to have 
any specific impact on gender 
reassignment.   
Respondents’ religion or belief 
characteristics were not provided in 
the public consultation. 

N/A Although we do not 
collect data on this 
protected 
characteristic, it is 
recognised that any 
changes to bus 
provision could 
affect access for 
anyone to leisure 
and cultural 
opportunities, 
support groups, 
medical 
appointments, 
places of faith etc. 

 

 Sexual 
Orientation 

The changes are unlikely to have 
any specific impact on sexual 
orientation. 
Respondents’ religion or belief 
characteristics were not provided in 
the public consultation.   

N/A Although we do not 
collect data on this 
protected 
characteristic, it is 
recognised that any 
changes to bus 
provision could 
affect access for 
anyone to leisure 
and cultural 

 

P
age 59



 

18 
 

opportunities, 
support groups, 
medical 
appointments, 
places of faith etc. 

 Pregnancy 
and Maternity 

The changes are unlikely to have 
any specific impact on pregnancy 
and maternity.   
Respondents’ religion or belief 
characteristics were not provided in 
the public consultation. 

N/A It is recognised that 
any changes to bus 
provision  could 
affect access to 
medical 
appointments, 
support groups etc. 

 

 Marriage and 
Civil 
Partnership  
The duty to have 
due regard to the 
need to eliminate 
discrimination also 
covers marriage 
and civil 
partnerships in 
relation to 
employment 
issues. 

 

The changes are unlikely to have 
any specific impact on marriage and 
civil partnership.  
Respondents’ religion or belief 
characteristics were not provided in 
the public consultation.  

N/A It is recognised that 
any changes to bus 
provision could 
affect access to 
leisure and cultural 
opportunities, 
support groups etc. 

 

 Rurality / 
Isolation 
Though not a 
protected 
characteristic 
of the Equality 
Act 2010, this 
is a relevant 
consideration. 

The changes are likely to affect 
people living in a rural area. The 
proportion of people living in rural 
areas in Staffordshire is higher than 
in England (24% and 17% 
respectively).  Some districts have a 
higher proportion than others: over a 
third (39.8%) of the population in 
South Staffs live in a rural area, 32% 
of the population in Stafford live in a 
rural area, 30.4% of the population in 
Staffs Moorlands live in a rural area 

N/A Several proposed 
route changes could 
have implications for 
rural isolation in 
South Staffs, 
Stafford, Staffs 
Moorlands and 
Lichfield 

 

P
age 60



 

19 
 

and 29.5% of the population in 
Lichfield live in a rural area.   

Impact on SCC 
Staff  
If the proposal 
affects SCC staff, 
consider the 
workforce profile 
compared against 
the protected 
characteristics pre 
and post change, 
the impact of job 
losses, available 
support for staff, 
and HR protocols. 

This proposal may affect some SCC 
employees who use the bus services 
to get to work. 

   

Evidence Base: (Evidence used/ likelihood/ size of impact) 
 
Consultation Results of Analysis Report October 2017 
 
See tables below: 
 
1.  Population Characteristics – Staffordshire 
2.  Passenger Journey 2016-17 
 
 

 

  

P
age 61



 

20 
 

Table 1:  Population Characteristics – Staffordshire 

Compared to England: 
Better Similar Worse Lower Similar Higher Suppressed / not tested / not available 

        

Indicator Time period 
Cannock 

Chase 
East 

Staffordshire 
Lichfield 

Newcastle-
under-Lyme 

South 
Staffordshire 

Stafford 
Staffordshire 
Moorlands 

Tamworth Staffordshire 
West 

Midlands 
England 

Population characteristics 

Mid-year population 
estimate 

2015 98,500 116,000 102,700 127,000 110,700 132,500 97,900 77,100 862,600 5,751,000 54,786,300 

Percentage under five 2015 
5.7% 

(5,600) 
6.3% 

(7,300) 
5.1% 

(5,200) 
5.1% 

(6,500) 
4.5% 

(5,000) 
5.0% 

(6,600) 
4.6% 

(4,500) 
6.1% 

(4,700) 
5.3% 

(45,300) 
6.4% 

(365,300) 
6.3% 

(3,434,700) 

Percentage under 16 2015 
18.1% 

(17,800) 
19.3% 

(22,400) 
16.9% 

(17,400) 
16.5% 

(21,000) 
15.5% 

(17,200) 
16.7% 

(22,100) 
16.2% 

(15,900) 
19.5% 

(15,000) 
17.3% 

(148,800) 
19.5% 

(1,122,400) 
19.0% 

(10,405,100) 

Percentage aged 16-
64 

2015 
63.7% 

(62,800) 
62.2% 

(72,200) 
60.1% 

(61,700) 
63.6% 

(80,800) 
61.1% 

(67,600) 
61.8% 

(81,800) 
59.9% 

(58,600) 
63.2% 

(48,800) 
61.9% 

(534,400) 
62.3% 

(3,582,800) 
63.3% 

(34,669,600) 

Percentage aged 65 
and over 

2015 
18.2% 

(18,000) 
18.5% 

(21,500) 
22.9% 

(23,600) 
19.9% 

(25,300) 
23.4% 

(25,900) 
21.6% 

(28,600) 
23.9% 

(23,400) 
17.3% 

(13,300) 
20.8% 

(179,400) 
18.2% 

(1,045,800) 
17.7% 

(9,711,600) 

Percentage aged 85 
and over 

2015 
2.1% 

(2,100) 
2.3% 

(2,600) 
2.6% 

(2,600) 
2.4% 

(3,100) 
2.7% 

(3,000) 
2.7% 

(3,500) 
2.7% 

(2,600) 
1.8% 

(1,400) 
2.4% 

(21,000) 
2.4% 

(136,600) 
2.4% 

(1,295,300) 

Dependency ratio per 
100 working age 
population 

2015 57.0 60.7 66.4 57.2 63.7 61.9 67.0 58.1 61.4 60.5 58.0 

Dependency ratio of 
children per 100 
working age 
population 

2015 28.4 31.0 28.2 26.0 25.4 27.0 27.1 30.8 27.8 31.3 30.0 

Dependency ratio of 
older people per 100 
working age 
population 

2015 28.6 29.7 38.2 31.3 38.2 34.9 39.9 27.3 33.6 29.2 28.0 

Population change 
between 2015 and 
2025 

2015-2025 
3.0% 

(3,000) 
5.5% 

(6,400) 
3.9% 

(4,000) 
4.2% 

(5,300) 
3.0% 

(3,300) 
4.0% 

(5,400) 
1.6% 

(1,600) 
1.7% 

(1,300) 
3.5% 

(30,200) 
5.8% 

(335,200) 
7.3% 

(3,989,600) 

Population change 
between 2015 and 
2025 - under five 

2015-2025 
-4.1% 
(-200) 

-1.2% 
(-100) 

-2.2% 
(-100) 

2.5% 
(200) 

3.1% 
(200) 

0.5% 
(0) 

-2.0% 
(-100) 

-5.8% 
(-300) 

-1.0% 
(-400) 

2.0% 
(7,200) 

2.0% 
(67,200) 

Population change 
between 2015 and 
2025 - under 16s 

2015-2025 
-1.0% 
(-200) 

4.2% 
(900) 

0.8% 
(100) 

4.5% 
(900) 

5.1% 
(900) 

0.4% 
(100) 

-0.2% 
(0) 

-2.1% 
(-300) 

1.7% 
(2,500) 

6.6% 
(74,100) 

8.2% 
(848,800) 

P
age 62



 

21 
 

Compared to England: 
Better Similar Worse Lower Similar Higher Suppressed / not tested / not available 

        

Indicator Time period 
Cannock 

Chase 
East 

Staffordshire 
Lichfield 

Newcastle-
under-Lyme 

South 
Staffordshire 

Stafford 
Staffordshire 
Moorlands 

Tamworth Staffordshire 
West 

Midlands 
England 

Population change 
between 2015 and 
2025 - ages 16-64 

2015-2025 
-1.6% 

(-1,000) 
0.8% 
(600) 

-1.3% 
(-800) 

0.3% 
(200) 

-4.0% 
(-2,700) 

-0.3% 
(-300) 

-4.2% 
(-2,400) 

-4.1% 
(-2,000) 

-1.6% 
(-8,500) 

2.1% 
(76,900) 

3.2% 
(1,123,600) 

Population change 
between 2015 and 
2025 - 65 and over 

2015-2025 
23.1% 
(4,200) 

22.8% 
(4,900) 

19.8% 
(4,700) 

16.4% 
(4,100) 

20.0% 
(5,200) 

19.4% 
(5,500) 

17.2% 
(4,000) 

27.0% 
(3,600) 

20.2% 
(36,200) 

17.6% 
(184,200) 

20.8% 
(2,017,200) 

Population change 
between 2015 and 
2025 - 85 and over 

2015-2025 
51.0% 
(1,100) 

41.5% 
(1,100) 

62.7% 
(1,700) 

34.8% 
(1,100) 

58.4% 
(1,800) 

45.0% 
(1,600) 

46.3% 
(1,300) 

58.5% 
(800) 

48.8% 
(10,400) 

36.8% 
(50,300) 

35.5% 
(460,700) 

Proportion of 
population living in 
rural areas 

2014 
9.1% 

(9,000) 
21.8% 

(25,200) 
29.5% 

(30,200) 
20.4% 

(25,700) 
39.8% 

(44,000) 
32.0% 

(42,300) 
30.4% 

(29,800) 
0.0% 
(0) 

24.0% 
(206,300) 

14.7% 
(841,800) 

17.0% 
(9,260,900) 

Proportion of 
population from 
minority ethnic 
groups 

2011 
3.5% 

(3,400) 
13.8% 

(15,700) 
5.4% 

(5,400) 
6.7% 

(8,400) 
5.4% 

(5,800) 
7.4% 

(9,700) 
2.5% 

(2,400) 
5.0% 

(3,800) 
6.4% 

(54,700) 
20.8% 

(1,167,500) 
20.2% 

(10,733,200) 

Index of multiple 
deprivation (IMD) 
2015 weighted score 

2015 20.9 18.8 12.7 18.5 12.5 13.5 15.2 20.3 16.4 25.2 21.8 

Percentage in most 
deprived IMD 2015 
quintile 

2015 
13.7% 

(13,500) 
17.7% 

(20,400) 
3.9% 

(4,000) 
11.2% 

(14,100) 
1.3% 

(1,500) 
5.4% 

(7,100) 
4.6% 

(4,500) 
17.5% 

(13,500) 
9.1% 

(78,600) 
29.3% 

(1,675,800) 
20.2% 

(10,950,600) 

Percentage in second 
most deprived IMD 
2015 quintile 

2015 
29.8% 

(29,300) 
16.6% 

(19,200) 
10.7% 

(10,900) 
29.1% 

(36,700) 
9.7% 

(10,800) 
12.4% 

(16,400) 
18.1% 

(17,700) 
21.9% 

(16,900) 
18.4% 

(157,900) 
18.6% 

(1,061,500) 
20.5% 

(11,133,400) 

Mosaic profile - most 
common 
geodemographic 
group 

2016 
H Aspiring 

Homemakers 
L Transient 

Renters 
B Prestige 
Positions 

F Senior 
Security 

E Suburban 
Stability 

A Country 
Living 

A Country 
Living 

H Aspiring 
Homemakers 

H Aspiring 
Homemakers 

H Aspiring 
Homemakers 

H Aspiring 
Homemakers 

Mosaic profile - 
percentage of 
population in the 
most common group 

2016 
20.7% 

(20,400) 
13.4% 

(15,500) 
16.8% 

(17,200) 
13.0% 

(16,500) 
15.5% 

(17,200) 
15.3% 

(20,300) 
15.8% 

(15,500) 
23.3% 

(17,900) 
12.9% 

(111,000) 
n/a n/a 

Mosaic profile - 
financial stress 

2016 
28.7% 

(28,300) 
28.4% 

(32,700) 
22.5% 

(23,000) 
27.5% 

(34,000) 
21.6% 

(23,600) 
24.4% 

(31,900) 
24.5% 

(23,900) 
29.9% 

(23,200) 
25.8% 

(220,600) 
n/a n/a 

Disability living 
allowance claimants 

Nov-2015 
8.8% 

(5,500) 
6.2% 

(4,450) 
6.1% 

(3,790) 
7.5% 

(6,070) 
6.3% 

(4,260) 
5.9% 

(4,810) 
7.4% 

(4,340) 
8.1% 

(3,950) 
7.0% 

(37,150) 
7.5% 

(267,430) 
7.1% 

(2,467,980) 

 

P
age 63



 

22 
 

Table 2 – Bus Passenger Journeys 

District / 
Borough 

Service 
No. 

Route 
Description 

Days of 
Operation 

Operating 
Days Per 
Annum 

Price Per 
Day 

Annual Cost Subsidy 
Per 
Passenger 
Per 
Journey 

% Annual 
On bus 
Patronage 

% Annual 
ENCTS 
Patronage 

% Annual 
Peak YSC  
Patronage 

% Annual 
Off-Peak 
YSC 
Patronage 

% 
Annual 
Scholar 
Passes 

Cannock 
Chase 

2E Cannock - Walsall Mon-Sat Eves 
excl Bank Hols                        

306 £87.87 £26,888.22 £1.29 65 28 0 8 0 

Cannock 
Chase 

2E Cannock - Walsall Sun & Bank Hols 
Eves 

56 £207.51 £11,620.56 £2.63 61 31 0 8 0 

Tamworth 5 Tamworth - 
Amington  

Sun & Bank Hols 56 £89.77 £5,027.12 £0.58 46 48 0 7 0 

Cannock 
Chase & 
Lichfield 

62 Cannock - 
Hazelslade - 
Burntwood - 
Lichfield 

Sun & Bank Hols 56 £236.70 £13,255.20 £1.48 49 37 0.0 14 0 

Cannock 
Chase 

71 Cannock - Wolv Mon-Sat excl 
Bank Hols 

306 £201.70 £61,720.20 £0.59 34 62 1.0 4 0 

Cannock 
Chase 

70 Cannock - Wolv Sun & Bank Hols 56 £105.32 £5,897.92 £1.08 65 26 0.0 9 0 

South 
Staffs 

10A/B/
S 

Perton - Codsall Mon-Fri excl 
Bank Hols 

254 £305.98 £77,718.92 £1.91 45 37 2.9 3 12.0 

Cannock 
Chase 

21 Cannock – 
Longford / Shoal 
Hill 

Mon-Sat excl 
Bank Hols 

306 £141.40 £43,268.40 £2.80 9 90 0.0 0 0 

Stafford 8 Parkside - 
Stafford - Moss 
Pit 

Mon-Sat Eves 
excl Bank Hols 

306 £58.00 £17,748.00 £1.52 53 41 0.0 6 0 

Stafford 9 Stafford - 
Highfields  

Mon-Sat Eves 
excl Bank Hols 

306 £79.00 £24,174.00 £3.14 51 43 0.0 6 0 

P
age 64



 

23 
 

District / 
Borough 

Service 
No. 

Route 
Description 

Days of 
Operation 

Operating 
Days Per 
Annum 

Price Per 
Day 

Annual Cost Subsidy 
Per 
Passenger 
Per 
Journey 

% Annual 
On bus 
Patronage 

% Annual 
ENCTS 
Patronage 

% Annual 
Peak YSC  
Patronage 

% Annual 
Off-Peak 
YSC 
Patronage 

% 
Annual 
Scholar 
Passes 

Cannock 
Chase 

61 Cannock - Heath 
Hayes 

Mon-Sat excl 
Bank Hols 

306 £64.52 £19,743.12 £1.41 36 58 0.4 6 0 

Stafford/S
outh Staffs 

76A Stafford - 
Penkridge - Wolv  

Sun & Bank Hols 56 £237.00 £13,272.00 £0.88 60 20 16.4 3 0 

Staffs 
Moorlands 

123 Cheadle Town 
Service 

Mon-Sat excl 
Bank Hols 

306 £189.00 £57,834.00 £1.08 8 92 0.0 0 0 

Staffs 
Moorlands 

455 Blythe Bridge 
High School 

Mon-Fri Sch 
days 

190 £79.00 £15,010.00 £0.64 72 0 19.4 0 8.9 

Cannock 
Chase 

T3/T5 T3 Thornhill Road 
- Cannock; T5 
Bradbury Lane - 
Cannock 

Tu, F excl Bank 
Hols 

104 £63.25 £6,578.00 £0.94 0 100 0.0 0 0 

Lichfield 35B Lichfield - Walsall Mon-Sat excl 
Bank Hols 

306 £197.90 £60,557.40 £1.49 38 60 0.6 1 0 

South 
Staffs 

16 Essington - 
Bloxwich  

Mon-Fri excl 
Bank Hols 

104 £71.41 £7,426.64 £6.42 9 91 0.0 0 0 

Stafford  Lodgefield Park - 
Stafford 

Tu, Th excl Bank 
Hols 

104 £43.48 £4,521.92 £5.70 0 100 0.0 0 0 

Stafford  Coppenhall - Ten  
Butts - Stafford 

Tu excl Bank 
Hols 

52 £34.89 £1,814.28 £3.95 0 100 0.0 0 0 

Staffs 
Moorlands 

16 Leek - Cheddleton 
- Hanley - Stoke 
Stn - Stoke 

Mon-Fri excl 
Bank Hols: 2 x 
Early morning 
journeys 

254 £93.25 £23,685.50 £3.35 67 20 9.5 4 0 

Staffs 
Moorlands 

16 Leek -  
Cheddleton - 
Hanley - Stoke Stn 
- Stoke 

Mon-Sat Eves 
excl Bank Hols 

306 £90.90 £27,815.40 £2.96 63 29 0.1 8 0 

Staffs 
Moorlands 

16 Hanley - Leek - 
Buxton 

Sun & Bank Hols 56 £384.56 £21,535.36 £2.54 54 34 0.4 12 0 

P
age 65



 

24 
 

District / 
Borough 

Service 
No. 

Route 
Description 

Days of 
Operation 

Operating 
Days Per 
Annum 

Price Per 
Day 

Annual Cost Subsidy 
Per 
Passenger 
Per 
Journey 

% Annual 
On bus 
Patronage 

% Annual 
ENCTS 
Patronage 

% Annual 
Peak YSC  
Patronage 

% Annual 
Off-Peak 
YSC 
Patronage 

% 
Annual 
Scholar 
Passes 

Staffs 
Moorlands 

30 Leek - Ipstone - 
Cheadle - Tean 

Mon-Sat excl 
Bank Hols 

306 £267.57 £81,876.42 £2.49 31 50 6.3 12 0 

Newcastle 33/35 Newcastle - 
Chesterton 

Mon-Sat excl 
Bank Hols 

306 £90.00 £27,540.00 £2.42 17 82 0.0 0 0 

Newcastle 85 Newcastle - Keele 
- Madeley - Crewe 

Mon-Sat Eves, 
Sun & Bank Hols 

362 £130.23 £47,143.26 £2.56 77 20 0.0 3 0 

East Staffs 
& Stafford 

841/84
2 

Uttoxeter - Hixon 
- Stafford 

Mon-Sat excl 
Bank Hols 

306 £765.12 £234,126.72 £2.07 32 42 10.1 15 0.5 

Stafford 12/13/
15/S1-
S6 

Stone Area 
Package 

Mon-Sat excl 
Bank Hols 

306 £805.73 £246,553.38 £2.37 18 70 5.4 5 1.6 

Stafford 14/14A
/14B 

Hanley - Stone - 
Eccleshall - 
Stafford 

Mon-Sat excl 
Bank Hols 

306 £555.92 £170,111.52 £1.17 50 39 1.3 6 4.3 

Newcastle 74A Newcastle - 
Audley  

Sun & Bank Hols 56 £85.85 £4,807.60 £0.81 49 48 0.1 2 0 

Newcastle 74A Newcastle - 
Audley  

Mon-Sat eves 
excl Bank Hols 

306 £75.75 £23,179.50 £2.59 69 28 0.0 3 0 

Staffs 
Moorlands 

93/116 Biddulph -Brown 
Edge - Leek; 
Cheddleton - Leek 

Mon-Sat excl 
Bank Hols 

306 £413.19 £126,436.14 £2.90 19 71 5.3 5 0 

Newcastle 80 Kidsgrove Town 
Service 

Mon-Fri excl 
Bank Hols 

254 £142.00 £36,068.00 £4.59 5 95 0.0 0 0 

Staffs 
Moorlands 

6 Longton - Blythe 
Bridge 

Sun & Bank Hols 56 £184.85 £10,351.60 £1.49 0 100 0.0 0 0 

Newcastle 72 Newcastle - 
Clayton  

Sun & Bank Hols 56 £86.00 £4,816.00 £2.84 0 100 0.0 0 0 

East Staffs 10 Burton - Rough 
Hay 

Mon-Sat excl 
Bank Hols 

306 £129.76 £39,706.56 £1.62 25 71 1.6 2 0 

P
age 66



 

25 
 

District / 
Borough 

Service 
No. 

Route 
Description 

Days of 
Operation 

Operating 
Days Per 
Annum 

Price Per 
Day 

Annual Cost Subsidy 
Per 
Passenger 
Per 
Journey 

% Annual 
On bus 
Patronage 

% Annual 
ENCTS 
Patronage 

% Annual 
Peak YSC  
Patronage 

% Annual 
Off-Peak 
YSC 
Patronage 

% 
Annual 
Scholar 
Passes 

East Staffs 18 Burton - 
Dalebrook 

Mon-Sat excl  
Bank Hols 

306 £79.79 £24,415.74 £1.18 6 94 0.0 0 0 

East Staffs 402/40
2A/403 

Uttoxeter - 
Draycott - Burton 

Mon-Sat excl 
Bank Hols 

306 £442.87 £135,518.22 £1.84 25 60 5.7 10 0 

East Staffs 1  Uttoxeter - 
Tutbury - Burton 

Mon-Sat Eves 
excl Bank Hols 

306 £181.32 £55,483.92 £2.70 59 35 0.0 5 0 

East Staffs 1E Uttoxeter - 
Tutbury - Burton  

Sun & Bank Hols 56 £227.58 £12,744.48 £2.20 56 40 0.0 4 0 

East Staffs 
& Lichfield 

7E Burton - Barton - 
Alrewas - Fradley 
- Lichfield 

Mon-Sat Eves 
excl Bank Hols 

306 £93.85 £28,718.10 £7.59 48 42 0.0 10 0 

East Staffs 
& Lichfield 

7E Burton - Barton - 
Alrewas - Fradley 
- Lichfield 

 Sun & Bank 
Hols 

56 £134.65 £7,540.40 £1.74 60 23 0.0 17 0 

East Staffs 411 Uttoxeter - Leigh 
Circular 

Wed excl Bank 
Hols 

52 £85.85 £4,464.20 £1.96 0 100 0.0 0 0 

Staffs 
Moorlands 

182 Blythe Bridge - 
Cheadle Schools 

Mon-Fri Sch 
days 

190 £82.93 £15,756.70 £0.39 0 0 32.4 68 0 

Cannock 
Chase & 
South 
Staffs 

67 Cannock - 
Featherstone - 
Brinsford - Wolv 

Mon-Sat excl 
Bank Hols 

306 £193.59 £59,238.54 £1.91 20 77 1.9 1 0 

South 
Staffs & 
Stafford 

877/87
8 

Brewood-
Wheaton Aston-
Church Eaton-
Stafford; 
Brewood-
Wheaton Aston-
Penkridge-Acton 
Trussel- Stafford 

Mon-Sat excl 
Bank Hols 

306 £403.00 £123,318.00 £2.05 23 44 12.4 6 14.9 

P
age 67



 

26 
 

District / 
Borough 

Service 
No. 

Route 
Description 

Days of 
Operation 

Operating 
Days Per 
Annum 

Price Per 
Day 

Annual Cost Subsidy 
Per 
Passenger 
Per 
Journey 

% Annual 
On bus 
Patronage 

% Annual 
ENCTS 
Patronage 

% Annual 
Peak YSC  
Patronage 

% Annual 
Off-Peak 
YSC 
Patronage 

% 
Annual 
Scholar 
Passes 

Stafford  11/73 Stafford - Coton 
Fields 

Mon-Fri excl 
Bank Hols 

254 £177.14 £44,993.56 £1.81 10 71 8.4 10 0 

Tamworth 82 Tamworth - 
Clifton Campville 

Mon-Sat excl 
Bank Hols 

306 £191.32 £58,543.92 £5.17 Figures unavailable 

East Staffs 
& 
Newcastle 

429 Marchington - 
Silverdale - NCHS 

Mon-Fri excl 
Bank Hols 

190 £262.60 £49,894.00 £1.10 100 0 0.0 0 0 

Staffs 
Moorlands 

18 Hanley - Endon - 
Leek 

Mon-Sat excl 
Bank Hols 

306 £134.30 £41,095.80 £3.76 64 25 1.4 9 0 

Staffs 
Moorlands 

108/10
9 

Ashbourne - Leek 
- Macclesfield 

Mon-Sat excl 
Bank Hols 

306 £531.48 £162,632.88 £3.68 35 36 20.2 2 7.7 

Lichfield 10 Burntwood - 
Brownhills 

Mon-Sat Eves 
excl Bank Hols; 
Sun & Bank Hols 

362 £128.59 £46,549.58 £1.39 96 4 0.0 0 0 

Staffs 
Rural 

Dial-a-
Ride 

Border Car Mon-Fri excl 
Bank Hols incl 
Good Friday 

255 £130.00 £33,150.00 £5.32 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 

Lichfield & 
Rugeley 

Dial-a-
Ride 

Lichfield & 
Rugeley Connect  

As above 255 £154.00 £39,270.00 £10.87 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 

Staff 
Moorlands 

Dial-a-
Ride 

Moorlands 
Connect 

As above 306 £318.51 £97,464.17 £7.43 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 

East Staffs Dial-a-
Ride 

Needwood Forest 
Connect 

As above 306 £174.38 £53,360.00 £13.56 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 

South 
Staffs 

Dial-a-
Ride 

South Staffs 
Connect 

As above 306 £587.53 £173,663.04 £8.61 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 

 

P
age 68



 

27 
 

Health and Care – Use this section to determine how the proposal will impact on resident’s health and wellbeing, and whether the 

proposal will impact on the demands for, or access to health and care services. Please consider the Care Act 2014 and the Health and Social 
Care Act 2012. 

Category Area  
(Areas highlighted are 
suggestions only and 
there may be other 
impacts in these 
categories) 

Which groups 
will be 
affected 

Benefits Risks Mitigations / Recommendations 

Mental Health and  
Wellbeing 
Will the proposal impact 
on the mental health and 
wellbeing of residents or 
services that support 
those with Mental Health 
issues? 

The proposals 
could affect 
people who 
use the bus 
services to 
access support 
groups and 
medical 
appointments. 
 

n/a The collaborative LGA, Age 
UK and Campaign to End 
Loneliness Report published 
in January 20163 states that  
loneliness is a significant and 
growing issue for older 
people and cite research that 
lonely individuals are more 
likely to visit their GP, have 
higher use of medication, 
higher incidence of falls and 
increased risk factors for long 
term care, undergo early 
entry into residential or 
nursing care, use a&e 
services.  The report draws a 
link between social isolation 
and loneliness but also 
recognises that they are 
separate and those socially 
isolated aren’t necessarily 
lonely.  Key risk factors for 
loneliness include being in 
later old age, on a low 
income, in poor physical or 

The LGA has a wide range of case 
studies and information to help 
local authorities address loneliness, 
which will need to be explored.  
However, it is recognised that this 
alone will not mitigate for loss of 
transport access, so consultation 
feedback will need to be carefully 
analysed in relation to this risk and 
potential impact. 

                                                           
3
 https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/combating-loneliness-guid-24e.pdf 

P
age 69

https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/combating-loneliness-guid-24e.pdf


 

28 
 

mental health, living alone or 
in isolated rural areas or 
deprived urban communities 
and having no access to a 
car/never using public 
transport.   

Healthy Lifestyles 
Will the proposal promote 
independence and 
personal responsibility, 
helping people to make 
positive choices around 
physical activity, healthy 
food and nutrition, 
smoking, problematic 
alcohol and substance 
use, and sexual health? 

The proposal 
may affect 
both people 
who are able 
to make 
healthy 
lifestyle 
changes and 
people who 
reply on the 
bus services to 
access support 
to make 
changes to 
their lifestyle. 

People may make positive 
choices around physical 
activity e.g. walking or 
cycling to get to places as 
opposed to using 
transport. 

People may not be able to 
access support groups that 
help them to make positive 
healthy lifestyle changes. 

 

Accidents and Falls 
Prevention 
Does the proposal reduce 
or increase the risk of: 
falls in older people, 
childhood accidents, road 
accidents, or workplace 
accidents? 

n/a n/a n/a n/a 

Access to Social Care 
Will the proposal enable 
people to access 
appropriate interventions 
at the right time? 

The proposal 
may affect 
people 
accessing 
early 
intervention 
support 

n/a People may need to access 
Council services if not able to 
attend early intervention 
support groups. 

 

P
age 70



 

29 
 

groups. 
 

Independent Living 
Will the proposal impact 
on people’s ability to live 
independently in their own 
home, with care and 
support from family, 
friends, and the 
community? 

The proposal 
may affect 
people who 
rely on the bus 
service to be 
independent. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

n/a There is a risk that people 
who are independent may 
need to rely upon Council 
services if they cannot afford 
taxis and/or do not have the 
support of family to maintain 
their independence. 

 

Safeguarding  
Will the proposal ensure 
effective safeguarding for 
the most vulnerable in our 
communities? 

The proposal 
may affect 
vulnerable 
people  
 
 
 

n/a Risks to vulnerable when 
taking taxis on their own or 
asking a neighbour to provide 
transport 
 

 

Evidence Base: (Evidence used/ likelihood/ size of impact) 

LGA, Age UK and Campaign to End Loneliness ‘Combating Loneliness – A Guide for Local Authorities’ January 2016 

https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/combating-loneliness-guid-24e.pdf 

 

 

 

P
age 71

https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/combating-loneliness-guid-24e.pdf


 

30 
 

Economy – Use this section to determine how the proposal will impact on the economy of Staffordshire and the income of residents. 

 

Category Area  
(Areas highlighted are 
suggestions only and 
there may be other 
impacts in these 
categories) 

Which 
groups will 
be affected 

Benefits Risks Mitigations / Recommendations 

Economic Growth 
Will the proposal promote 
the county as a “go to” 
location for business, and 
make it easy for 
businesses to start up, 
innovate and expand? 

People who 
use the bus 
to access 
training 
and/or 
employment 
 

n/a There is a risk that businesses 
may not be able to access 
quality employment if people 
cannot attend work or training. 

 

Poverty and Income 
Will the proposal have an 
impact on income? Will it 
reduce the gap between 
high and low earners? 

People who 
will not be 
able to 
access 
training 
and/or 
employment 
 

n/a There is a risk that those 
people living in areas without 
bus services and who cannot 
afford alternative transport will 
have reduced opportunities to 
attend work or training 
opportunities. 
 
The Greener Journeys report 
‘The Value of the Bus to 
Society’4 states that a 10% 
improvement in local bus 
service connectivity in the 10% 
most deprived neighbourhoods 
across England would result 
in: 
2.8% fall in income 
deprivation.  There is therefore 
a risk that those areas most 

 

                                                           
4
 http://www.greenerjourneys.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/10/The-Value-of-the-Bus-to-Society-FINAL.pdf  

P
age 72

http://www.greenerjourneys.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/10/The-Value-of-the-Bus-to-Society-FINAL.pdf


 

31 
 

deprived in Staffordshire will 
see an increase in income 
deprivation. 

Workplace Health and 
Environments 
Will the proposal impact 
on working conditions and 
the health of 
Staffordshire’s workforce? 

n/a n/a n/a n/a 

Access to jobs/ Good 
quality jobs 
Will the proposal create 
the right conditions for 
increased employment in 
more and better jobs? 

People who 
use the bus 
to access 
training 
and/or 
employment 
 

n/a There is a risk that those 
people living in areas without 
bus services and who cannot 
afford alternative transport will 
have reduced opportunities to 
attend work or training 
opportunities. 
 
The Greener Journeys report 
‘The Value of the Bus to 
Society’5 states that a 10% 
improvement in local bus 
service connectivity in the 10% 
most deprived neighbourhoods 
across England would result 
in: 
2.7% fall in employment 
deprivation.  There is therefore 
a risk that those areas most 
deprived in Staffordshire will 
see an increase in 
employment deprivation. 

 

                                                           
5
 http://www.greenerjourneys.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/10/The-Value-of-the-Bus-to-Society-FINAL.pdf  

P
age 73

http://www.greenerjourneys.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/10/The-Value-of-the-Bus-to-Society-FINAL.pdf


 

32 
 

Evidence Base: (Evidence used/ likelihood/ size of impact) 

Greener Journeys – The Value of the Bus to Society Report http://www.greenerjourneys.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/10/The-Value-of-the-Bus-

to-Society-FINAL.pdf 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 74

http://www.greenerjourneys.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/10/The-Value-of-the-Bus-to-Society-FINAL.pdf
http://www.greenerjourneys.com/wp-content/uploads/2016/10/The-Value-of-the-Bus-to-Society-FINAL.pdf


 

33 
 

Environment – Use this section to identify the impact of the proposal on the physical environment. How does the proposal support the 

utilisation and maintenance of Staffordshire’s built and natural environments, thereby improving health and wellbeing and strengthening 
community assets?   

Category Area  
(Areas highlighted are 
suggestions only and 
there may be other 
impacts in these 
categories) 

Which 
groups will 
be affected 

Benefits Risks Mitigations / Recommendations  

Built Environment/ 
Land Use  
Will the proposal impact 
on the built environment 
and land use? 

n/a n/a n/a n/a 

Rural Environment  
Will the proposal impact 
on the rural natural 
environment or on 
access to open spaces? 

n/a n/a n/a n/a 

Air, Water and Land 
Quality  
Will the proposal affect 
air quality (e.g. vehicle, 
industrial or domestic 
emissions), drinking 
water quality or land 
quality (e.g. 
contamination)? 

n/a n/a n/a n/a 

Waste and Recycling  
Will the proposal affect 
waste (e.g. disposal) 
and recycling? 

n/a n/a n/a n/a 

Agriculture and Food 
Production 
Will the proposal affect 

The 
proposals 
may affect 

n/a There is a risk that if 
seasonal farm workers 
cannot attend work due to not 

 

P
age 75



 

34 
 

the production of 
healthy, affordable and 
culturally acceptable 
food? 

seasonal 
farm workers 
who 
contribute to 
the 
production of 
food. 
It was most 
common for 
respondents 
to the public 
consultation 
to use buses 
‘to go 
shopping’ 
(86%), ‘for 
leisure/social 
purposes’ 
(75%), ‘to 
visit 
friends/family 
(71%) and ‘to 
get to a 
doctors or 
medical 
appointment’ 
(61%).  35% 
of 
respondents 
used buses 
regularly ‘to 
get to work’ 
and 24% 
used them ‘to 
get to 
education or 

being able to travel by bus 
that agriculture and food 
production be affected. 

P
age 76



 

35 
 

 

Localities / Communities – Use this section to identify the impact of the proposal on communities. How will the proposal 

strengthen community capacity to create safer and stronger communities? It is important to recognise the different localities and communities 
your proposal may impact upon, and identify any communities that could be more adversely impacted than others. District Commissioning 

training’. 
 

Transport 
Will the proposal affect 
the ability of people/ 
communities/ business 
to travel? Will the 
proposal impact on 
walking/ cycling 
opportunities? 

The 
proposals 
may affect 
people 
whose only 
means of 
travel is by 
bus, 
businesses 
providing 
alternative 
travel options 
e.g. taxis and 
people who 
are able to 
make healthy 
lifestyle 
changes. 

People may make positive 
choices around physical 
activity e.g. walking or cycling 
to get to places as opposed 
to using transport. 
 
Taxi businesses may benefit 
from increased fares. 

People who cannot afford to 
take alternative travel or able 
to walk or cycle to 
destinations may become 
isolated. 

 

Noise 
Will the proposal cause 
disruptive noise? 

n/a n/a n/a n/a 

Evidence Base: (Evidence used/ likelihood/ size of impact) 

P
age 77



 

36 
 

Leads (DCL’s) have a great deal of knowledge about their relevant locality and they must be engaged with as part of your Project Team at an 
early stage of the process. 

Category Area  
(Areas highlighted are 
suggestions only and 
there may be other 
impacts in these 
categories) 

Which groups will 
be affected 

Benefits Risks Mitigations / Recommendations   

Community 
Development/ Capacity 
Will the proposal affect 
opportunities to work 
with communities and 
strengthen or reduce 
community capacity? 

The proposal may 
affect current and 
potential 
communities 
providing transport 

Strengthen community 
capacity to deliver 
further transport 
services 

A number of the Voluntary 
Car and Community Bus 
Schemes rely partly on 
grants from SCC.  If these 
grants were cut it may impact 
upon these schemes. 

 

Crime/ Community 
Safety 
Will the proposal support 
a joint approach to 
responding to crime and 
addressing the causes 
of crime? 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Educational 
Attainment and 
Training 
Will the proposal support 
school improvement and 
help to provide access to 
a good education? 
Will the proposal support 
the improved supply of 
skills to employers and 
the employability of 
residents? 

Home to school 
movements which 
have been 
transferred to the 
local bus network 
and associated 
SCC home to 
school contractual 
cost increases 

N/A Risk of further bespoke home 
to school contracts being 
reinstituted as a 
consequence of reduced 
income to the commercial 
operators. 

 

Leisure and Culture 
Will the proposal 

The proposals may 
have an impact 

May encourage people 
to engage in local 

People may become isolated 
and lonely 

 

P
age 78



 

37 
 

encourage people to 
participate in social and 
leisure activities that 
they enjoy? 

upon people who 
use the services to 
access social and 
leisure activities 

social and leisure 
activities 

Volunteering  
Will the proposal impact 
on opportunities for 
volunteering? 

Current and 
potential volunteers 

May increase the 
number of volunteers 
who provide transport. 

May impact upon people who 
use the bus services within 
the proposal to access 
volunteering opportunities. 

 

Best Start  
Will the proposal impact 
on parental support (pre 
or postnatally), which 
helps to ensure that 
children are school-
ready and have high 
aspirations, utilising a 
positive parenting 
approach? 

The proposals may 
have an impact 
upon people being 
able to access pre 
and postnatal 
support groups and 
play groups 

n/a Parents may become isolated 
which may impact upon 
children  

 

Rural Communities 
Will the proposal 
specifically impact on 
rural communities? 

The changes are 
likely to affect 
people living in a 
rural area. The 
proportion of 
people living in 
rural areas in 
Staffordshire is 
higher than in 
England (24% and 
17% respectively).  
Some districts 
have a higher 
proportion than 
others: over a third 
(39.8%) of the 
population in South 
Staffs live in a rural 

n/a Areas of the county with no 
access to any transport 
resulting in isolation and 
loneliness. 

 

P
age 79



 

38 
 

area, 32% of the 
population in 
Stafford live in a 
rural area, 30.4% 
of the population in 
Staffs Moorlands 
live in a rural area 
and 29.5% of the 
population in 
Lichfield live in a 
rural area.   

Evidence Base: (Evidence used/ likelihood/ size of impact) 

 

 

 

Now transfer the main findings of this assessment to the ‘Checklist and Executive Summary’ template.  Then both documents need to be 

approved/signed off by the appropriate people. For CIAs that are going to Cabinet, only the ‘Checklist and Executive Summary’ should be 

submitted as part of the Cabinet Papers. The full CIA document should be submitted as a Background Paper. 

P
age 80



 
 

 
 

 

Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee – 14th November 2017 
 

Progress on the Countryside Estate 
 
Recommendation 
 
1. That the Committee scrutinise the contents of this report and considers the 

outcomes from the first phase of the Countryside Estate Review. 
 
Report of Cllr Gill Heath Cabinet Member for Communities  
 

Summary 
 
What is the Select Committee being asked to do and why? 
 
2. The Committee has previously provided input to the review into the future 

management of the countryside estate. This report is being submitted to update 
the Committee on the outcomes from the first phase of the Countryside Estate 
Review.  
 

3. The Committee is being asked to note that a further paper will be submitted to this 
committee prior to  Cabinet in March 2018, which identifies and recommends a 
management and delivery solution for the Countryside Estate  

 
Context & Background 
 
4. Staffordshire County Council (SCC) owns a large diverse countryside estate, 

providing opportunities to enhance people’s skills, and in some cases, 
employment potential, through volunteering.  Alongside the main country parks, 
the estate also comprises a number of smaller sites (e.g. picnic areas). Whilst the 
main country parks are very popular and make a significant contribution to SCC’s 
wider priorities, the smaller sites tend to be more of a local recreational asset. 
However, these smaller sites still have to be managed to meet SCC’s legal 
liabilities and obligations. 
 

5. SCC has powers under Section 4 of the Countryside Act 1968 to establish country 
parks but it does not have a statutory duty to do so. However, by virtue of having 
country parks and other countryside sites, there is a range of legislation that SCC 
has to comply with, including: 
 
a. SCC owns water bodies that come under the jurisdiction of the Reservoirs Act 

1975. This defines SCC as a statutory undertaker. 
b. Under the Occupier Liability Act 1984, SCC has a duty of care to site visitors.  
c. There are a range of statutory duties relating to environmental legislation and 

rights of way that cross SCC’s countryside sites (e.g. The Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 and The Rights of Way Act 1990). 

Local Members’ Interest 

N/A 

Page 81

Agenda Item 5



 
 
 
6. Other legislation that SCC has to comply with includes: The National Parks and 

Access to the Countryside Act 1949; The Forestry Act 1967 as amended; The 
Countryside Act 1968; The Highways Act 1980; The Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990; The Conservation (Natural Habitats, &c.) Regulations 1994; The Town 
and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) (England and Wales) 
Regulations 1999; The Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000, The 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010, and The Access to 
Environmental Information Regulations 2004 among others. 
 

7. The management of countryside sites is primarily delivered by the Ranger Service 
and the Countryside Works Unit with input from the Environmental Advice Team. 
They are supported by approximately 25,000 volunteer hours and private sector 
contractors (as required).  

 

8. To effectively and sustainably manage the countryside sites going forward, SCC 
decided that alternative delivery models needed to be explored. In early 2015, ten 
alternative delivery models were consulted upon and these were refined down to 
four preferred options. The four options, which were agreed by Cabinet in June 
2016, were:  

 
A: Maintain council ownership and seek opportunities to increase income from 

existing sites by working with volunteers, communities, third sector 
organisations and private parties. 

 
B: Transfer management on a site-by-site basis to local community or voluntary 

sector groups such as parish councils. 
 
C: Establish a partnership to manage countryside sites in a particular area. 
 
D: Establish a not-for-profit trading company or trust to run and develop parts of 

the estate. 
 

Progress to Date 
 

9. The first phase of the Countryside Estate Review covered the management and 
maintenance of the 18 countryside sites that comprise SCC’s countryside estate.  
It did not include any other council-owned land (e.g. County Farms) or the 
management of public rights of way (PRoW). 

 
10. A separate PRoW Review is being conducted and is running parallel to the 

Countryside Estate Review. The PRoW Review is assessing the entire PRoW 
function (i.e. management and maintenance) in order to identify a sustainable 
business model and working arrangements for managing and maintaining PRoW 
in Staffordshire. However, it is important to recognise that the Ranger Service and 
the Countryside Works Unit deliver the maintenance of PRoW and therefore a 
number of staffing options will be jointly investigated going forward. 

 

 

Page 82



  

 

11. Timeline to date 
 

a. September 2015 – Public consultation identifying the preferred options. 
b. June 2016 – Four preferred options were presented and approved by Cabinet. 
c. October 2016 – Information days with potential interested parties. 
d. December 2016 - Expression of Interest (EOI) forms went live.  
e. March 2017 – Expression of interest close. 
f. April 2017 – Panel meeting to access EOI’s. 
g. April/May 2017 – Clarification meetings with EOI applicants. 
h. June 2017 – Decision letters to applicants. 
i. June 2017 – Delegated Decision papers agreed for Consall Nature Park and 

Wimblebury Picnic Area. 
 

Outcome of Expression of Interest Process 
 

12. Between December 2016 and March 2017, organisations interested in managing 
and delivering all or some of SCC’s countryside sites were encouraged to submit 
an Expression of Interest (EoI). In total, fourteen EOI’s were received.  

 
13. The results of the EOI evaluation process are:  
 

a. The RSPB will take over the management and maintenance of Consall Nature 
Park. 

b. Heath Hayes and Wimblebury Parish Council will take over the management 
and maintenance of Wimblebury Mound Picnic Area. 
 

14. The EOI evaluation process also revealed a number of issues that have 
subsequently impacted on the Review’s direction of travel, including: 

 
a. Many organisations expressing an interest in one or more sites also requested 

payment for taking on the site/s. Payment in exchange for taking on a site/s 
was not stated in the EOI tender. 

b. Some local community groups expressing an interest in taking on a site also 
required significant levels of support from SCC in the short to medium term.  

c. Some organisations expressed a desire to take on sites on a phased approach 
or in clusters, thereby making the evaluation process difficult. 

d. Almost all organisations requested more detailed information about the costs 
and the management requirements of each site. 
 

Phase Two – Proposed Next Steps 
 

15. A process will commence enabling the transfer of Consall Nature Park and 
Wimblebury Mound Picnic Area to the RSPB and Heath Hayes and Wimblebury 
Parish Council respectively.  
 

16. A review of the current operating model and a range of efficiencies and income 
generating measures will be introduced in the short to medium term to ensure that 
the MTFS saving of £0.6m is met by 2018/19.These include: 
 

Page 83



 
 

a. A car parking strategy for all appropriate countryside sites will be developed 
and implemented to ensure that income generating opportunities are 
maximized.  

b. Explore the ‘offers’ at Marquis Drive Visitor Centre and at Chasewater 
Innovation Centre to improve the current offer and maximise income generating 
opportunities. 

c. Evaluate existing contracts to identify savings (e.g. deer management, property 
care, vehicle management, etc.). 

d. Review operation of new Countryside Stewardship Schemes going forward.  
e. Develop and implement a new operating model for the management and 

maintenance activity on country parks and PRoW. 
 

17. The review of the current operating model with require an appropriate consultation 
with staff and Trade Unions in accordance with SCC processes once the impact 
for staff is understood and an indicative timeline (that may be subject to change) is 
included in Appendix A to demonstrate how this might be managed. 
 

18. To enable a recommendation for the sustainable future of the countryside estate    
to be made by the Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee in March 2018, the 
following work needs to be completed:  

 
a.  Identify minimum management requirements for each site to meet legal and 

basic operational needs. 
b.  Develop basic management plans and calculate future costs for each site 

based on the minimal management requirements. 
c. Assess all capital assets on each site in order to adopt an asset based 

management approach. 
 

Steps taken in the interim to offset operating costs 
 

19. In the interim steps are being taken to ensure that our MTFS savings are 
delivered. These include holding vacancies whilst the Review is being completed 
and ensuring value for money on all essential purchases.  
 

20. Additional sources of income are also being explored. For example, introducing 
car parking charges on the larger sites and increasing the current event charges 
across all the Country Parks. In the Cabinet meeting 17 June  2015 it was agreed 
that: 
 
a. Current charges are maintained at the existing levels. Existing experience 

would suggest that a reasonable level of compliance would be achieved at 
these rates and it is unlikely to encourage displacement parking or deter those 
on lower incomes 

 
b.  An annual season ticket was in place at £22 pa (equivalent of 6p a day) not to 

penalise regular users such as dog walkers. Holders of blue badges would be 
exempt. Most local authorities charge for car parking on their countryside estate 
and generally current rates are on a par or lower than rates charged elsewhere.  

 

Page 84



  

 

c. The charging policy would be reviewed periodically and, if required, amended 
subject to approval from the Cabinet Member. Fees and charges are reviewed 
annually as part of the budget setting process.  

 
Third phase of the Countryside Estate Review 

 
21. A further paper will be brought to the Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee 

that will make recommendations for the final phase of the Countryside Estate 
Review. This may include the procurement of a management solution. 
 

HR Implications 
 

22. All staff involved, directly or indirectly, with the management of the countryside 
estate will be affected by all phases of the Review. This includes members of the 
Ranger Service, the in-house Works Unit, Visitor Centre Staff and the 
Environmental Specialist team. All staff are continually informed of progress and 
will have the opportunity to input through a formal consultation process. 

 
MTFS 

 
23. The total budget (capital and revenue) for managing the countryside sites and 

rights of way maintenance is £1,601,420 per annum. The wider Rural County 
team has to deliver a saving of £0.6m by 2020/21 in order to meet its MTFS 
commitments.  

 
Link to Other Overview and Scrutiny Activity – Previous consideration by Select 
Committee on May 2016  
 
Contact Officer 
 
Report Commissioner: Janene Cox OBE 
Job Title: Commissioner for Culture and Communities 
Telephone No: 01785 278368 
Email: janene.cox@staffordshire.gov.uk 
 
Appendices  
 

Appendix A – Flowchart of Development of Detailed Approach 
 
 
 

Page 85





Timeline for the Country Park and Rights of Way Reviews

D
ec

-1
6

Ja
n-

17

Fe
b-

17

M
ar

-1
7

Ap
r-1

7

M
ay

-1
7

Ju
n-

17

Ju
l-1

7

Au
g-

17

Se
p-

17

O
ct

-1
7

N
ov

-1
7

D
ec

-1
7

Ja
n-

18

Fe
b-

18

M
ar

-1
8

Ap
r-1

8

M
ay

-1
8

Ju
n-

18

Ju
l-1

8

Au
g-

18

Se
p-

18

O
ct

-1
8

Purdah X
Local Election 4th
Development of Alternative RoW Operating Model/s
Identify alternative and best practice RoW operating models, processes and procedures X X X
Identify and agree the Review's key workstreams X
Develop a number of alternative models, processes and procedures for Staffordshire X X X
Appraise and refine models, processes and procedures X X X
Finalise the Staffordshire RoW service X X
Prepare Business Case for Project Sponsor and Cllr Deaville X X
Implement the new model, processes and procedures (except staffing)
New model goes live (including new staffing structure) X
Identify Alternative Country Park Operating Model/s
Discussions with interested parties/stakeholders X X X X
Development of contract templates X X X
Deadline for Expressions of Interest X
Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee 3rd
Expressions of Interest Panel Meetings (i.e. selection) X
Carry out due diligence on selected organisation/s X X
Prepare Business Case for Project Sponsor and Cllr Winnington X X
Cabinet if key decision required x
Finalise contracts →
New model goes live x
Phase 2 Review Commences X
Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee X
Cabinet decision required X
Preperation work for phase 2 X X X X X X X X X
cabinet decsision required on CP model going forward X
Staff and Stakeholder Consultation
Develop a revised structure X
Grading Panel X
Update CIA X
Brief Trade Union X X
Group Staff Briefing on proposed draft model/s and structures X
Individual Employee  1-1’s X
End of 30 day Consultation Period X
Analyse results of consultation and redefine final model/s and structures X
Group Briefing on Outcome X
Individual Employee Meeting on Outcome X
Implement of final model/s and structure
Commencement of Preferencing/Selection Process X
Return of Preferencing/Application Forms from staff X
Selection / Interview Process Dates X
Individual Selection Outcome with Individual Staff X
Consideration of Dismissal meetings X X
Individual Staff working their Notice Period X X X X
Staff leave SCC’s employment X X X
MTFS savings need to be delivered by X

P
age 87





 
 

Local Members’ Interest 

N/A 

 
 

Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee – 14th November 2017 
 

Infrastructure+ Improvement Plan and Performance Review  
 

 
Recommendations 
 
That the Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee: 
 
1. Receives an update on the progress of the previously agreed Infrastructure+ 

Action Plan; and 
 

2. Is provided with an update on the progress of the extra £5m in-year (17/18) 
investment in highway maintenance. 

 
Joint report of Cllr Mark Deaville, Cabinet Member for Commercial and Cllr 
Helen Fisher, Cabinet Support Member for Highways and Transport. 
 

Summary 

 
What is the Select Committee being asked to do and why? 
 
3. The Infrastructure+ contract commenced on 1 October 2014. During the summer 

of 2015 Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee (PSSC) scrutinised the 
governance and reporting arrangements and on 24 April 2016 agreed an action 
plan of improvement with the then Cabinet Member for Economy, Environment 
and Transport. The first update was reported to PSSC on 15 November 2016. 
This report provides PSSC with a second update on progress against the agreed 
action plan. 

 

4. The nature of the Infrastructure+ Strategic Partnership is that it is readily able to 
adapt to the Council’s changing needs.  This flexibility is being demonstrated 
during 2017/18 by delivering at short notice the commitment of extra investment in 
highway maintenance.  This paper provides an update on the progress and 
achievements to date. 

 

Report 
 
Background 
 
5. Staffordshire’s Infrastructure+ contract is a strategic public-private partnership 

providing synergies in the holistic management and improvement of physical 
public infrastructure across Staffordshire.  A principal ambition for the 
Infrastructure+ partnership is to enable effective collaboration, risk management 

Page 89

Agenda Item 6



 
 

and innovation to continuously improve efficiency and Outcomes for 
Staffordshire’s residents.   
 

6. The core element of the Infrastructure+ contract is the maintenance, management 
and improvement of over 6,300Kms of highway network.  Best use of resources is 
achieved by adopting preventive maintenance strategies and targeting resources 
as set out in the council’s Highway Infrastructure Asset Management Plan 
(HIAMP), approved by Cabinet in January 2017. However, having to work within 
the limits of the available funding means that achieving locally desirable service 
levels is not always possible. This elevates the need for effective local 
engagement, timely communication and clear information for local Members and 
residents. 

 
7. During the summer of 2015 PSSC established a working group to scrutinise 

progress. The working group’s final report (please see link to this at the end of 
report) was endorsed on 17 December 2015 and a resulting Action Plan agreed 
on 24 April 2016. 

 
Action Plan Update 
 
8.  Table 1 lists the recommendations within the previously agreed Action Plan.  
 
Table 1 - Previous recommendations of Select Committee 

Recommendation 

1. 
Officers review the technical language used in customer feedback report with a 
view to making it easier for customers to understand (ref 6.1) 

2. 
A copy of Infrastructure+ organisation chart be made available to all Members 
on the Members’ intranet and be kept up to date (ref 6.3) 

3. Details of the Members’ Guide be placed on the Members’ intranet (ref 6.3) 

4. Gulley Emptying programme be added to the Members’ Guide (ref 6.5) 

 
5. 

That a review be made of highways information available on the Members’ 
intranet to add details of local highways staff contacts, divisional highways 
programmes, planning applications in Members divisions (ref 6.5), local 
improvement plans and cyclical highways programmes (ref 6.6) and that officers 
investigate if a routine, reactive and cyclical performance pack for each 
Member’s division could be provided (ref 6.6) 

6. 
A scrutiny Member (who is not a Member of the Prosperous Staffordshire Select 
Committee) be invited to join the Customer and Communications Outcomes 
Group (6.3) 

7. 
A request is made to Staffordshire Borough and District Council planning 
officers that they publish highways (planning) responses that could pertain to 
housing developments as part of their Planning Committee minutes (ref 6.5) 

8. 
Members recommended that Community Highways Infrastructure Managers be 
asked to share details of meetings arranged with Parish Councils with elected 
members (ref 6.6). 

 
 
 
 

Page 90



 

What progress has been made against the previous recommendations? 
 
9. Recommendation 1 (Continuous): In accordance with the Infrastructure+ 

Governance Structure a ‘Customer and Communication Outcome Group’, now 
chaired by the Cabinet Support Member for Highways and Transport, has 
ownership for Customer Satisfaction, including: 
 
a. Establishing customer service improvement priorities for Infrastructure+;  
b. Agreeing communications and media strategies; and 
c. Defining the Customer Service performance management framework. 
 

10. An initial priority of the Customer and Communication Outcome Group was to 
establish an automated update system in response to reported highway defects. 
This has been a significant IT challenge, initially requiring an interim manual 
solution until the automated version was launched in summer 2016. 

 
11. Earlier in 2017 the group completed the initial review of the language used in the 

standard scripted automated responses. The system will continue to be refined 
and improved in response to customer feedback and technical advancement.     

 
12. Recommendation 2 (Complete): Senior officer structure, responsibilities and 

contact details have been made available on the council’s internet.  Key officer 
contacts for local Members are their local Community Infrastructure Liaison 
Managers (CILMs). 

 
13. Recommendations 3, 4 and 5 (continuous):  The established Customer and 

Communication Outcome Group developed and launched a Highways Portal 
within the Member’s intranet pages on 1 November 2016. The portal aims to serve 
as a Member’s guide to help them respond directly to the many local highway 
enquiries they receive.  Greater visibility of service information, performance and 
forward works programmes continues to be developed and will be routinely 
updated.  To date the Highways Portal provides access to: 

 
a. General ‘hot-topic’ highways information; 
b. Key officer contact details; 
c. Member’s locally identified Divisional Highways Programme (DHP) priorities; 
d. Live roadworks information; 
e. Highway responses to local planning applications; and 
f. Some cyclical maintenance work programmes e.g. grass cutting, with others 

e.g. gully emptying, in development. 
 

14. Recommendation 6 (Complete): A member of Corporate Review Committee, 
initially Cllr. John Francis, has now been included within the membership of the 
Customer and Communication Outcome Group.   

 
15. Recommendation 7 (Complete): Planning officers of local Borough and District 

Councils have been asked to publish highway consultation response conditions as 
part of their formal planning decision notice.  This has generally been accepted 
and is being achieved by including a summary of the required conditions.   

 

Page 91



 
 

16. Recommendation 8 (Complete): Community Infrastructure Liaison Managers 
(CILM) continue to be reminded to share details of any meetings arranged with 
Parish Councils with the respective local elected County Councillors. 

 
SCC’s Extra £5m investment in Highway Maintenance during 2017/18 

 
17. Maintaining Staffordshire’s 6,300kms of roads and 4,500kms of footways is a job 

for the Council’s Infrastructure+ strategic partnership.  Following the original 
procurement, value for money continues to be ensured through commercial 
competition within the supply chain (subcontractors, plant and materials) as well 
as benchmarking of direct labour costs and operational performance.  In addition 
exclusivity for additional scheme work is subject to demonstration of Best-Value. 

 
18. Road maintenance is funded in two parts capital (life adding) government grant 

funding and local revenue (day to day upkeep) investment from the County 
Council. Between 2009 -2013 the County Council provided an extra £50m of its 
own capital investment. This improved the overall condition of the network by 
around 10%, adding durability that then enabled a series of subsequent savings to 
be made from the annual revenue funding in support of the Council’s Medium 
Term Financial Strategy (MTFS). However, over the last two years parts of the 
network have deteriorated, with a corresponding increase in the number of 
defects, customer complaints and third-party claims for injury and property 
damage related claims. 

 
19. In response to these circumstances Cabinet provisionally set out a new 4-year, 

£20m ‘extra investment’ programme. The priority in year 1 is to reduce the number 
of long-standing low-risk carriageway and footway pothole repairs to a more 
proportionate level, enable faster response times to new low-risk customer 
reported pothole defects and embrace a right-first-time and single visit approach 
wherever possible.  Continued investment in subsequent years would aim to 
retain the improved level of service, whilst also providing added durability to 
reduce the number of pothole defects from occurring in the first place.  

 
20. The extra £5m investment strategy for 17/18 is made of three core elements: 

 
a. £2.5m to provide an extra 45,000m2 of localised pothole repairs to reduce the 

overall backlog and enable faster and more comprehensive repairs; 
b. £2m towards hotspot-patching and resurfacing programme, targeting those 

locations with high levels of customer complaints and risk of personal injury or 
property damage e.g. Barton Turns, Burton; Hill Top, Hednesford; and 
Bridgecross Road, Burntwood;  

c. £0.5m drainage improvements, targeted to locations causing repeat surface 
defects. 

 
21. Progress: 

 
a. The extra investment has seen the overall number of potholes repaired 

increase to 31,000 in the past year compared to around 20,000 in a typical 
year. 

Page 92



 

b. In terms of area this means the localised pothole repair programme is on track 
an extra 30,000m2 of pothole patching repairs have been delivered in the first 
6-months of 17/18, making a combined total of 80,000m2, which is the same 
amount delivered in the whole of 2016/17.   

c. The hot-spot and resurfacing programme is also on-schedule with 19 of the 
identified 32 schemes complete or in progress. 

d. Sample survey customer-contact has started to show improvement in 
satisfaction with speed of response, scale of repair and quality of the work 
done. 

e. Notably there has also been a sharp decrease in media enquiries and 
associated largely negative coverage since the extra programme of investment.  
This has been complemented by a decline in comments on social media. 
 

22. The outline strategy for a continued £5m/year Extra Investment during years 2 – 4 
(2018/19 to 2020/21) is set out below: 
 
a. £2m/year to achieve the optimum amount of low-cost preventative maintenance 

treatment i.e. an extra 70 miles of ‘amber’ condition roads treated each year to 
help prevent potholes from forming; 

b. £0.5m/year towards routine and reactive pothole repairs, maintaining a more 
acceptable speed of response;  

c. Continuation of £0.5m/year of targeted drainage improvements; and 
d. £2.0m/year towards high-cost resurfacing of worn out carriageways and 

footways. 
 

Conclusions 
 

23. Of the eight recommendations within the agreed Infrastructure+ Action Plan 6 are 
complete and 2 will remain continuous.     

 

24. The first-year of extra investment in road maintenance is having a positive effect 
in terms of reducing the number of long-standing low-risk carriageway and 
footway pothole repairs to a more proportionate level, enabling faster response 
times to new low-risk customer reported potholes and embracing a right-first-time 
and single visit approach wherever possible.   

 
Link to Strategic Plan  

 
25. The Infrastructure+ contract is aligned with the “Leading for a Connected 

Staffordshire” business plan most significantly through helping to make 
Staffordshire a Great Place to Live.  Its contribution is assured through: clear and 
visible performance management frameworks and targets, governance structures 
and improvement plans to deliver the agreed Critical Success Factors, 
Contractual Outcomes and the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 
commitments. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 93



 
 

Link to Other Overview and Scrutiny Activity 
 

26. The Infrastructure+ Action Plan was agreed with the Cabinet Member for 
Economy, Environment and Transportation on 26 April 2016.  This report provides 
the second monitoring update of progress.  

 
 

Contact Officer 
James Bailey 
Commissioner for Highways and the Built County 
01785 276591 
james.bailey@staffordshire.gov.uk 

 
Appendices/Background papers 

 

Working group’s final report:  
 

Infrastructure+ - Review of Scrutiny of Governance and Reporting Arrangements to 
Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee 

 

Appendix A - 2017/18 Extra Investment programme / tracker (October 2017) 

Page 94

mailto:james.bailey@staffordshire.gov.uk
http://intranet.moderngov.staffordshire.gov.uk/documents/s76881/Scrutiny%20Review%20Final%20Report%20for%20publication.pdf
http://intranet.moderngov.staffordshire.gov.uk/documents/s76881/Scrutiny%20Review%20Final%20Report%20for%20publication.pdf


Maintenance pothole defects - resurfaced area (m2)

2017/18 Extra Investment - Pothole Progress Tracker (October 2017)

Routine Maintenance funding

0

500000

1000000

1500000

2000000

2500000

3000000

01/05/17 01/06/17 01/07/17 01/08/17 01/09/17 01/10/17 01/11/17 01/12/17 01/01/18 01/02/18 01/03/18 01/04/18

Cumulative Planned spend

Actual spend

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

30000

35000

40000

45000

50000

01/05/17 01/06/17 01/07/17 01/08/17 01/09/17 01/10/17 01/11/17 01/12/17 01/01/18 01/02/18 01/03/18 01/04/18

Target Extra Cumulative M2

Actual Extra Cumulative M2

Page 95



Road No. Road Name Location District / Borough Area County Councillor
Programme 

Delivery 
period 

 RAG  Comments 

29
-M

ay

05
-J

un

12
-J

un

19
-J

un

26
-J

un

03
-J

ul

10
-J

ul

17
-J

ul

24
-J

ul

31
-J

ul

07
-A

ug

14
-A

ug

21
-A

ug

28
-A

ug

04
-S

ep

11
-S

ep

18
-S

ep

25
-S

ep

02
-O

ct

09
-O

ct

16
-O

ct

23
-O

ct

30
-O

ct

06
-N

ov

13
-N

ov

20
-N

ov

27
-N

ov

04
-D

ec

11
-D

ec

18
-D

ec

25
-D

ec

01
-J

an

08
-J

an

15
-J

an

22
-J

an

29
-J

an

05
-F

eb

12
-F

eb

19
-F

eb

26
-F

eb

05
-M

ar

12
-M

ar

19
-M

ar

26
-M

ar

C0027 Sawpit Lane Brocton Milford - Cllr Frank Finlay  John Francis Q2 Completed Completed to plan
U5033 Rawnsley Road Rawnsley Rawnsley - Bill Hardman and Claire Peake  Graham Burnett Q1 Completed Completed to plan

D4221 Silver Birch Drive Kinver Potters Cross - Cllrs Gary Mander, Lyn Hindley, John Irving Bell, Ian 
Sadler, Virginia Webb, Henry Willimas and Paul Woodisee.  Victoria Wilson Q2/3 Not Started On target

B5016 Station Road Barton Turn, Barton Under 
Needwood Mercian - Cllrs. Michael Greatorex, Andrew James and Richard Kingstone.  Julia Jessel Q2 Completed

Completed - Start date was moved as a 
result of the closure we have in place at 
Branston Locks

U5058 Pennine Drive (incl. Greenfields) Cannock Cannock West - Doug Smith, Paul Snape, Hyra Sutton  Paul Snape Q2 Completed Completed to plan

C259 School Lane Coven
Brewood and Coven - Cllr Joyce Bolton 
Cllr Diane Holmes 
Cllr Wendy Sutton 

 Mark Sutton Q2/3 Completed

Completed to plan
C0001 Winghouse Lane Tittensor Stafford  Jeremy Pert Q2/3 In Progress On site - to plan

A5190 Cannock Road, Five Ways Island Heath Hayes

Heath Hayes East and Wimblebury - Alan Dean, Colin Lea, Diane 
Todd
Norton Canes - Mike Hoare, John Preece, Zaphne Stretton  Johnny Mcmahon Q2 Completed

Completed to plan

B5368 Church Lane Knutton Derick Huckfield
Tony Eagles

Q2/3 In Progress On site - to plan

C0252 Baswich lane Stafford Baswich - Cllrs Ann Edgeller  John Francis Q3 Not Started Still awaiting confirmation of a start date as 
a result of a third party (Canals River Trust).

D1496 Lindale Drive Wombourne Wombourne North and Lower Penn - Cllrs Bary Bond, Alan Hinton and 
Robert Reade

 Mike Davies Q2 Completed Completed to plan
A460 Hill Top Hednesford Hednesford South - Paul Woodhead  Graham Burnett Q2 Completed Completed to plan
A460 Rugeley Road Hednesford Hednesford North - Sheila Cartwright, Doris Grice, Alan Pearson  Graham Burnett Q3 In Progress On target

U5017 Norton Hall Lane / Church Road Norton Canes Norton Canes - Mike Hoare, John Preece, Zaphne Stretton  Johnny Mcmahon Q3/4 In Progress On target

C0369 Brownhills Rd / Norton East Rd / Beaumont Rd 
R'bout Norton Canes Norton Canes - Mike Hoare, John Preece, Zaphne Stretton  Johnny Mcmahon Q3 Completed Completed to plan

A34 Walsall Road Great Wyrley
Great Wyrley Landywood - Cllr Ray Perry 
Cllr Kath Williams  Kath Perry Q3 Completed

Completed to plan
A460 Sandy Lane Rugeley Hagley - Michelle Dudson and Christine Martin  Alan Dudson Q3 Completed Completed to plan

A41 / A464 Newport Rd / Holyhead Rd Perton Perton Dippons - Cllr Keith James Robert Marshall
Keith James Q3 In Progress On target

B5012 Park Road Cannock Cannock South - Maureen Freeman, John Kraujalis, Paul Witton
Cannock West - Doug Smith, Paul Snape, Hyra Sutton Paul Snape Q2 Completed Completed to plan

A5190 Bridge Cross Road Burntwood

Bridge Cross Road, Burntwood falls into several  Wards:  Summerfield & all Saints 
ward of Lichfield District Council:
Cllr Mrs Brenda Constable
Cllr Richard Mosson
Cllr Mrs Heather Tranter  Boney Hay & Central ward of Lichfield District Council :
Cllr Richard Bamborough
Cllr Di Evans
Cllr Mrs Natasha Pullen Chasetown ward of Lichfield District Council:
Cllr Sharon Banevicius
Cllr Beth Fisher

 Helen Fisher/Sue Woodward Q2 Completed

Completed  to plan
D4169 Chandler Avenue Kinver  Victoria Wilson Q2 Completed Completed  to plan

U2077 High Street (NUL Town Centre) Newcastle NUL Town Centre - Cllr Elizabeth Shenton  Stephen Sweeney Q4 Not Started Design/Christmas embargo delay

U6056 Chartwell Tamworth Mercian - Cllrs. Michael Greatorex, Andrew James and Richard Kingstone.  Jeremy Oates Q3/4 Not Started On target
D1255 Hillside Rd, St Edwards Rd Cheddleton Cheddleton Ward  Michael Worthington Q3/4 Not Started On target
U5051 Delta Way Bridgtown Cannock South Cllr Mrs Heather Tranter  Paul Snape Q3/4 Not Started On target

A461/ A5127 Sainte Foy Avenue / Birmingham Road 
roundabout Lichfield Leomansley - Cllrs. Andy Smith, Iain Eadie and Bob Awty  Colin Greatorex Q3/4 Not Started On target

U3016 Douglas Road West Stafford Coton - Cllrs Jack Kemp and Louise Nixon  Maureen Compton Q3 Not Started On target
U5050 Surrey Close Cannock Cannock South - Maureen Freeman, John Kraujalis, Paul Witton  Paul Snape Q3/4 Not Started On target
U2096 Wedgwood Street Wolstanton Wolstanton -  Cllrs Trevor Johnson and David Woolley John Cooper Q3 Not Started On target
U5065 Clarion Way Cannock Cannock North -  Gordon Alcott, Frank Allen, Jessica Cooper Derek Davis Q4 Not Started On target
U2075 Milbourne Drive Clayton Clayton - Cllrs Andrew Parker and Stephen Sweeney Stephen Sweeney Q4 Not Started On target

U6056 Godolphin Tamworth Mercian - Cllrs. Michael Greatorex, Andrew James and Richard Kingstone. Jeremy Oates Q4/1 Not Started May be delivered in 18/19 financial year

U6056 Glyndeborne Tamworth Mercian - Cllrs. Michael Greatorex, Andrew James and Richard Kingstone. Jeremy Oates Q4/1 Not Started May be delivered in 18/19 financial year
A527 Brampton Road Newcastle May Bank - Cllrs John Tagg and Simon Tagg Trevor Johnson Q4/1 Not Started May be delivered in 18/19 financial year

D2540 Hawthornden Manor Mews Uttoxeter Heath  - Cllrs. Michael Greatorex, Andrew James and Richard Kingstone. David Brookes Q4/1 Not Started May be delivered in 18/19 financial year

U6056 Kentwell Tamworth Mercian - Cllrs. Michael Greatorex, Andrew James and Richard Kingstone. Jeremy Oates Q4/1 Not Started May be delivered in 18/19 financial year

A521 Uttoxeter Road Island jnc A50 Blythe Bridge Forsbrook - Ross Ward Q4/1 Not Started
Start date may be delayed, awaiting 
Highway England road space dates.

U6056 Lorton Tamworth Mercian - Cllrs. Michael Greatorex, Andrew James and Richard Kingstone. Jeremy Oates Q4/1 Not Started May be delivered in 18/19 financial year

  Gawsworth Tamworth Mercian - Cllrs. Michael Greatorex, Andrew James and Richard Kingstone. Jeremy Oates Q4/1 Not Started May be delivered in 18/19 financial year

Hot-spot patching and resurfacing programme

P
age 96



 
 

 

 
 
This document sets out the work programme for the Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee for 2017/18.   
The Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee is responsible for scrutiny of highways infrastructure and connectivity, flood and water 
management, education, learning and skills. As such the statutory education co-optees will sit on this committee. The Council’s 
Business Plan 2017-18 states the Council’s Vision: A “Connected Staffordshire”…where everyone has the opportunity to prosper, be 
healthy and happy.  The Plan states three population outcomes – Access more good jobs and the benefits of economic growth; be 
healthier and more independent and feel safer, happier and more supported.  This Committee’s work is aligned to the outcome: Access 
more good jobs and the benefits of economic growth.  The Business Plan has seven business commissioning priorities – Great Place to 
Live; Living Well, Resilient Communities; Best Start; Ready for Life; Right for Business and Enjoying Life.  The work of this Committee 
is aligned to the relevant commissioning priority/priorities. 
 
We review our work programme at every meeting.  Sometimes we change it - if something important comes up during the year that we 
think we should investigate as a priority.  Our work results in recommendations for the County Council and other organisations about 
how what they do can be improved, for the benefit of the people and communities of Staffordshire. 
 
County Councillor Ian Parry 
Chairman of the Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee 
 
If you would like to know more about our work programme, please get in touch with Tina Gould, Scrutiny and Support Manager, 01785 
276148 or by emailing tina.gould@staffordshire.gov.uk  

Prosperous Staffordshire 
Select Committee Work 

Programme  

2017/18  

P
age 97

A
genda Item

 7

mailto:tina.gould@staffordshire.gov.uk


Work Programme Items carried over from 2016/17 
Item Date of meeting 

when item is due to 
be considered 

Link to Council’s 
Business Plan 

Commissioning 
Priorities 

Details Action/Outcome 

1. Library Strategy (item 
formerly referred to as 
Libraries in a Connected 
Staffordshire-  
Mobile and Travelling Library) 
– monitor and review 
outcomes, and Future 
Operating Model for 
Staffordshire’s Arts Service 
and the Shire Hall (Future of 
Shire Hall now to be 
considered as part of Penda 
Property Partnership 
discussions by Corporate 
Review Committee) 
Cabinet Member: Gill Heath 
Lead Officer: Janene 
Cox/Catherine Mann 

12 September 2017 Enjoying Life 
 

Pre-decision scrutiny 
 
Background to the Mobile and 
Travelling Library is that Members 
agreed to consider the effects of the 
mobile and travelling library service 
review following implementation.  
(Last considered on 12 October, 1 
June 2015 as part of the wider Library 
review previously considered by 
PSSC on 23   
January 2015). 
 
 

The comments from 
the Committee on the 
current and proposed 
library offer will be 
used to help shape 
the future 
development of the 
County Council’s 
Strategy for the 
Library Services 
2018-21. The 
Committee agreed 
the principles to 
determine where 
community 
management or self-
service is considered 
as an option.  A more 
detailed breakdown of 
the nature of the visits 
to libraries will be 
provided to Members. 

2. New item: Safer Roads 
Partnership  
Cabinet Member: Mark 
Deaville Lead officer: Mel 
Langdown 

12 September 2017 Great Place to Live 
 

Item proposed by Cabinet Member for 
Commercial. 

The Committee noted 
the new governance 
structure and 
operating model of 
the Staffordshire 
Safer Roads 
Partnership and the 
wide range of 
initiatives used to 
promote road safety 
across the County.  

P
age 98



The Cabinet Member 
agreed to investigate 
whether it is feasible 
to charge utility 
companies when 
roadworks take place 
and respond to the 
Chairman.  The 
presentation will be 
made available to all 
members via the e-
bulletin. 

3. Update on Flood Risk 
Management 
Cabinet Member: Mark 
Deaville 
Lead Officer: Hannah Burgess 

10 October 2017 Great Place to Live 
 

To update Members on the Flood 
Risk Strategy.  

The Committee noted 
the progress being 
made with regard to 
the Council’s 
responsibilities as 
Lead Local Flood 
Authority for 
Staffordshire and the 
collaborative working 
arrangements with 
Walsall, Sandwell and 
Wolverhampton 
Councils.  They 
supported a call for 
government to 
simplify the process 
for funding local flood 
alleviation. 

4. Countryside Estate Review 
Cabinet Member: Mark 
Winnington 
Lead Officer: Janene 
Cox/Emma Beaman 

14 November 2017 Great Place to Live 
and Enjoying Life 
 

Members have considered this item 
on 18.12.14, 4.9.15, 12.10.15 and 
24.5.16.  At their last meeting they 
asked that further consideration of 
larger sites be brought back to the 
Select Committee for pre-decision 
scrutiny and that local Members be 
engaged in discussions regarding the 

 

P
age 99



future of smaller sites. 

5. Supported Bus Network 
Cabinet Member: Mark 
Deaville 
Lead Officer: Clive Thomson 

14 November 2017 Great Place to Live 
 

This item was considered on 31 July 
and Members asked that it be brought 
back to the Committee following 
consultation. 

 

6. Infrastructure + - Action 
Plan (refresh) 
Cabinet Member: Mark 
Deaville 
Lead officer: James Bailey 

14 November 2017 
and then six monthly 

Great Place to Live 
 

Members have been regularly 
involved in scrutiny of the contract 
arrangements with Amey. 
Members to scrutinise the 
Improvement Plan and Performance 
Review. 

Please note items 6 
and 7 may be 
combined into one 
item. 

7. Highways Extra Investment 
Cabinet Member: Mark 
Deaville 
Lead officer: James Bailey 

14 November 2017 Right for Business 
and Great Place to 
Live 
 

Members are asked to scrutinise the 
county’s investment in our road 
network.   
Members wished to consider the 
quality of repairs/failure rate. 

 

8. West Midlands Rail 
Contract 
Cabinet Member: Mark 
Winnington 
Lead Officer: Clive Thomson 

14 November 2017 Right for Business 
and Great Place to 
Live 
 

New franchise commences 
Oct/November 2017. 

Briefing Note to be 
circulated with papers 
on 14.11.17. 

9. Economic Growth Capital 
and Development Programme 
to include Overview of 
Regeneration Projects 
Cabinet Member: Mark 
Winnington 
Lead officer: Anthony Hodge 

15 December 2017 
and then quarterly 
 
 
 
 
 

Right for Business 
and 
Great Place to Live 
 

Item proposed by the Corporate 
Director for Economy, Infrastructure 
and Skills. 
 
 

 

10. EU funding and European 
Social Funding  
Cabinet Member: Mark 
Winnington 
Lead officer: Nigel Senior 

15 December 2017 Right for Business 
 

This was on the work programme last 
year under the title EU Funding 
Programme, but not considered.  The 
future of the Programme was 
unknown post-Brexit.   

 

11. Scrutiny Review of Impact 
of HGVs on Roads and 
Communities in Staffordshire – 
follow up of Executive 
Response Action Plan 

15 December 2017 Great Place to Live 
 

Members undertook a review of the 
impact of HGVs on roads in 
Staffordshire last year.  Members are 
asked to continue to scrutinise the 
Executive Response Action Plan until 

 

P
age 100



Cabinet Member: Mark 
Deaville 
Lead officer: Clive Thomson 

all recommendations are completed 
or an explanation given. An initial 
Executive Response was scrutinised 
by the Committee on 13 September 
2016. 

12. Skills and Employability 
Self-Assessment 
Cabinet Member: Mark Sutton 
Lead officer: Tony 
Baines/Preeya Buckley 

18 January 2018 Ready for Life 
 

Members are asked to consider this 
item on an annual basis pre Ofsted 
inspection of the service. 

 

13. Adult and Community 
Learning – Quality 
Improvement Plan 
Cabinet Member: Mark Sutton 
Lead officer: Tony 
Baines/Preeya Buckley 

18 January 2018 Ready for Life 
 

This Plan has been developed as a 
result of the Skills and Employability 
Self-Assessment.  Members are 
asked to scrutinise the Plan. 

 

14. School Attainment and 
Improvement 
Cabinet Member: Mark Sutton 
Lead officer: Tim Moss 

18 January 2018 Ready for Life 
 

The Committee considers the 
progress of achievement in 
Staffordshire schools on an annual 
basis following the annual 
announcement of results by Ofsted. 

 

15. Post-16 Education 
Provision 
Cabinet Member:  Mark Sutton 
Lead Officers: Tim Moss/Tony 
Baines 

18 January 2018 Ready for Life 
 

Item proposed by the Cabinet 
Member for Learning and Skills. 

 

16. School Funding Formula 
Cabinet Member:  Mark Sutton 
Lead Officer: Tim Moss 

18 January 2018 Ready for Life   

17. Large scale Fly Tipping in 
Staffordshire 
Cabinet Member: Gill Heath 
Lead officer: Clive 
Thomson/Chris Jones 

2 March 2018 Great Place to Live 
 

The Select Committee’s views are 
sought on how large scale fly tipping 
is being managed. (Views of JWMB 
to be sought). 

 

18. Review of Household 
Waste Recycling Provision 
(impact of charging for non-
household waste) 

2 March 2018 Great Place to Live This item was called in and 
considered by the Corporate Review 
Committee on 26 October 2016. 
Members are asked to review the 

 

P
age 101



Cabinet Member: Gill Heath 
Lead officer: Clive 
Thomson/Chris Jones 

current arrangements that came into 
effect on 1.11.16. 

19. School Funding for the 
Future 
Cabinet Member: Mark Sutton 
Lead Officer: Andrew Marsden 

 2 March 2018 Ready for Life 
 

This item was proposed for addition 
to the work programme by Members 
at their March 2017 meeting. 

 

20. Economic Growth Capital 
and Development Programme 
to include Overview of 
Regeneration Projects 
Cabinet Member: Mark 
Winnington 
Lead officer: Steve Burrows 

2 March 2018 Right for Business 
and 
Great Place to Live 
 

Item proposed by the Corporate 
Director for Economy, Infrastructure 
and Skills. 
 

 

21. Delivering Housing in 
Staffordshire 
Cabinet Member:  Mark 
Winnington 
Lead officers: Mark Parkinson 

2 March 2018 Right for Business 
and Great Place to 
Live 
 

Link to school funding for the future 
above. 

 

22. HS2  
Cabinet Member: Mark 
Deaville 
Lead Officer: Clive Thomson 

4 April 2018 Right for Business 
and Great Place to 
Live 
 

Phase 2 under consultation.  

23. Sub-National Transport 
Body for East-West Midlands  
Cabinet Member: Mark 
Deaville 
Lead officer: Clive Thomson 

4 April 2018 Right for Business 
and Great Place to 
Live 
 

  

24. Countryside Estate Review 
Cabinet Member: Gill 
Heath/Mark Winnington 
Lead Officer: Emma Beaman 

4 April 2018 Great Place to Live 
Enjoying Life 

Pre-decision scrutiny.  

25. Improving Attendance and 
participation in our schools 
and settings 
Cabinet Member: Mark Sutton  
Lead officer: Tim Moss/Karl 
Hobson 

June 2018 Ready for Life 
 

Members previously considered this 
matter at their meeting in September 
2015 and requested that the  
Attendance Working Group report 
further progress, including specific 
intervention showing how the principles 

 

P
age 102



and priorities work in practice; Post-16 
changes and any impact these have on 
take up. 2017-18 Attendance figures 
not available until June 2018. 

26. Impact on Staffordshire of 
Britain’s Vote to Leave the 
European Union to Include EU 
Funding Programme 
Cabinet Member: Philip 
Atkins/Mark Winnington 
Lead Officer: John 
Henderson/Darryl Eyers 

 Right for Business 
 

At the meeting on 26 July Members 
asked to be kept appraised of the 
impact on Staffordshire of Britain’s 
vote to leave the European Union. 
Item on EU Funding Programme 
proposed by the Corporate Director 
for Economy, Infrastructure and 
Skills. 

Referred to All Party 
Member Group – 
External 
Relationships. 
Acknowledgement 
received from 
Chairman of APMG. 

27. Superfast Staffordshire 
(Broadband) – Going Forward 
Cabinet Member: Gill Heath 
Lead officer: Clive 
Thomson/Paul Chatwin/Louise 
Clayton 

To be advised Right for Business 
 

The Committee received a series of 
briefing notes on this matter in 
October 2013, October 2014 and July 
2015. There has been no further 
scrutiny since this time. 

Refer to All Party 
Member Group - 
Improvement 

28. Hanford Energy Cabinet 
Member: to be advised 

To be advised Great Place to Live  Refer to Corporate 
Review 

29. Sportshire Strategy and 
Major Events Evaluation 
Cabinet Member: Mark 
Winnington 
Lead Officer: Jude Taylor 

? Briefing note Enjoying Life 
 

Strategy reviewed in December 2015. 
Members asked that future evaluation 
reports include a detailed cost benefit 
analysis and that any figures used to 
highlight the success of events should 
be robust.  
The negative impact on local 
communities of Sportshire events was 
acknowledged and the Select 
Committee wish to ensure that 
everything possible is done to 
mitigate these in future.  
An evaluation report of the 2017 
Ironman event was requested to be 
brought to a Select Committee 
meeting approximately three months 
after the event. 

Request Briefing Note 

30. Constellation Partnership 
Cabinet Member: Mark 

 Right for Business 
 

The Partnership is between two LEPs 
and 7 local authorities with Ministerial 

Refer to Corporate 
Review 

P
age 103



Winnington Lead officers: 
Mark Parkinson/Tony Baines 

backing, and has an ambition to 
deliver 100,000 new homes and 
120,000 new jobs by 2040. 

31. Heritage Lottery Fund Bid 
Cabinet Member: Gill Heath 
Lead officer: Janene 
Cox/Joanna Terry 

 Enjoying Life 
 

Item proposed by Cabinet Member for 
Communities.  Lottery bid being 
completed. 

Briefing Note 
circulated September 
2017. 

32. Rights of Way  
Cabinet Member: Gill Heath 
Lead Officer: Nicola 
Swinnerton 

 Great Place to Live 
 

Issue regarding backlog of 
applications. 

Vice Chairman to 
discuss this matter 
with Cabinet Member 
for Commercial and 
report back 

33. County Farms 
Cabinet Member: Gill Heath 

 Right for Business 
 

Item proposed by Cabinet Member for 
Economic Growth.  Item could be 
broadened out to a wider issue re 
rural areas (food production; rural 
transport; role of county farms; land 
agents; hydrophonics; Agritech) 

For discussion at next 
triangulation meeting 

34. Inward Investment Team 
Cabinet Member: Mark 
Winnington 

 Right for Business Item proposed by Cabinet Member  
for Economic Growth 

For discussion at next 
triangulation meeting 

35. Small Businesses 
Cabinet Member: Mark 
Winnington 

 Right for Business Item proposed by Cabinet Member for 
Economic Growth 

For discussion at next 
triangulation meeting 

36. Elective home education 
Cabinet Member Mark Sutton 
Lead Officer: Karl Hobson 

 Ready for Life Item referred by Corporate Parenting 
Panel – August 2017 (NB Matter also 
referred to Safe and Strong 
Communities Select Committee) 

Meeting set up to 
discuss this matter 
with Chairs of this 
Committee and Safe 
and Strong Select 
Committee. A 
proposal has been 
made that a small 
Working Group of 
Members from both 
Committees be 
formed to take this 
forward. 

 

P
age 104



Working Groups 

37. Entrust Service Level 
Agreement Key 
Performance Indicator 
Working group 
Cabinet Member: Mark 
Deaville 
Lead Officer: Ian 
Turner/Karen Coker 

Scrutiny and Support 
Manager to discuss 
timing with Chair/Vice 
Chair 

Ready for Life 
 

Following consideration of 
Education Support Services 
– Commissioning and 
Contract Performance on 22 
January Members agreed to 
set up a Working Group to 
consider the review of KPIs 
and the information they 
wished to scrutinise in 
future.  

Committee agreed that new 
Members should be sought 
and a further meeting of the 
Group arranged. Chairman 
to discuss way forward with 
Cabinet Member for 
Commercial. 
Update: Cabinet Member for 
Commercial is preparing an 
update for the Committee.  
Advised to defer setting up 
of Working Group until this 
has been received. 

 

Membership 
 
Ian Parry  (Chairman) 
Julia Jessel (Vice-Chairman) 
Ann Beech 
Tina Clements 
Maureen Compton 
Keith Flunder 
Bryan Jones 
David Smith 
Simon Tagg 
Bernard Williams 
Rev. Preb. Michael Metcalf (Co-optee) 
Paul Woodhead (Co-optee) 
Candice Yeomans (Co-optee) 

Calendar of Committee Meetings at County Buildings, Martin Street, 
Stafford ST16 2LH  
 
20 June 2017 – cancelled 
31 July 2017 
12 September 2017 
10 October 2017 
14 November 2017 
15 December 2017 
18 January 2018 
2 March 2018 
New date: 4 April 2018 

 

P
age 105





 

 

 

 

 

 

Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee   
14th November 2017  

 
Briefing Note: West Midlands Rail Ltd 

 
Issue 
 
West Midlands Rail (WMR) Partner Authorities (of which Staffordshire County 
Council is a member) have been developing a proposal for increasing local 
involvement and influence over local rail services for approximately four and a 
half years, in line with government policy on devolution and as evidenced by 
the benefits elsewhere from the local control of rail services. 
 
Cabinet approved a decision on 18th November 2015 for Staffordshire County 
Council to become a member of West Midlands Rail Ltd and for the Leader of 
the Council and the Cabinet Member for Economic Growth to be appointed to 
the Board of Directors. At this meeting Cabinet also agreed for the Prosperous 
Staffordshire Select Committee to receive a report regarding the outcomes of 
the West Midlands Rail Franchise once these became available.  
 
A report to Cabinet on 16th March 2016 discussed how it was essential for 
Staffordshire County Council to take “advantage of every opportunity to 
influence proposals which impact on the Authority area and ensure that these 
regional, pan regional, sub-national and national initiatives complement and 
enhance the work we are doing at a local level”. To achieve the economic 
aims of the County Council, the Authority is therefore an active member of 
West Midlands Rail Ltd.    
 
Cabinet subsequently approved a decision on 20th July 2016 for Staffordshire 
County Council to authorise the signing of a Collaboration Agreement with the 
Secretary of State for Transport. This Collaboration Agreement sets out the 
relationship between WMR Ltd and Department for Transport in relation to the 
management of the West Midlands Rail Franchise.  
 
Background 
 
Having a high performing rail network with quality facilities and good customer 
experience which provides for the connectivity needs of Staffordshire’s 
businesses and communities is considered essential for the delivery of the 
County Council’s Strategic Plan and its associated outcomes. 
 
Transport connectivity plays a critical role in supporting economic flows and in 
unlocking investment in the necessary employment, housing and leisure 
markets. The West Coast Mainline for example provides a strategic link 
through the County between Scotland, the North West and London for both 
passenger and freight services. It is transport links like these that provide the 
strategic connectivity that Staffordshire needs to enhance its economic 

Page 107

Agenda Item 7a



   

 

 

competitiveness. However, despite the correlation between rail and economic 
growth, local influence in rail services in the West Midlands has historically 
been low.   
 
In recent years Government has committed to putting local communities back 
in control of the decisions and services that affect their lives. For rail this 
means transferring power and responsibility to the appropriate local level, so 
that where railways provide primarily local services, local communities and 
local authorities have a greater influence in how those services are run. 
 
In response to this commitment, 16 local authorities from across the West 
Midlands came together to form WMR Ltd, a cohesive and proactive body, 
owned by partner authorities1  to represent the regional and local economic 
transport and strategic objectives for the rail industry. WMR’s aim is to 
translate the Government’s agenda by leading the transformation of rail 
services in the West Midlands to meet the needs of passengers, stakeholders 
and businesses. In December 2015, WMR Ltd was established with the 
following objectives: 
 
a. To promote the devolution of responsibility for rail passenger services and 

(where appropriate) associated facilities in the WMR area to local transport 
authorities or other appropriate local authorities or other bodies within that 
area (acting through WMR Ltd); 

b. To manage or to assist in managing the performance of rail passenger 
services operating within the WMR area pursuant to rail franchise 
agreements or other similar agreements; 

c. To improve rail passenger services and associated facilities within the 
WMR area; 

d. To develop and oversee the implementation of a long-term strategy for rail 
passenger services in the WMR area.  

 
Cllr Mark Winnington, Cabinet Member for Economic Growth is currently the 
Vice Chair of the Board of Directors. He has previously also held the post of 
Chair of the Board. The Board is supported by an Officers’ Rail Devolution 
Group comprising representatives from each Partner Authority. Clare Horton 
currently Chairs this Group.  
 
Discussions with the Secretary of State for Transport led to a proposition for 
rail devolution in the West Midlands which has enabled WMR to have a 
meaningful level of influence over the specification and evaluation of the new 
West Midlands Franchise. The County Council was heavily involved in this 
process having an officer restricted within Government thereby enabling a 
positive and strong local influence. The County Council also undertook 
independent commercially confidential discussions with bidders to help inform 
and shape their bids to Government. 
 

                                                 
1
 Full Members of West Midlands Rail Ltd are Birmingham, Coventry, Dudley, Herefordshire, Northamptonshire, 

Sandwell, Solihull, Shropshire, Staffordshire, Telford and Wrekin, Walsall, Warwickshire, Wolverhampton and 
Worcestershire. Affiliate Members are Cheshire East and Stoke -on-Trent  

Page 108



   

 

 

The Government also agreed that once the new Franchise commenced in 
December 2017, WMR will be responsible for managing those services 
operating locally within the WMR area.   
 
Current Position 
 
The West Midlands Rail Franchise provides a combination of commuting, 
regional and longer distance services in the West Midlands and on the West 
Coast Main Line. These are:  
 
a. Local and regional services in the West Midlands area used by commuter, 

business and leisure travellers on the Cross City Line, Chase Line and 
Shrewsbury Line 
 

b. Long distance services along the West Coast Mainline from Liverpool to 
Birmingham via Stafford and Penkridge and Crewe to London via 
Kidsgrove, Stoke-on-Trent, Stone, Stafford, Rugeley, Lichfield and 
Tamworth. 

 
The Franchise is currently operated by London Midland, owned by Govia and 
operates 60% of all the rail services in the WMR area. On the 10th August the 
Department for Transport announced that the new Franchise would be 
awarded to West Midlands Trains Ltd, a joint venture of Abellio, Japan East 
Railway Company and Mitsui & Co Ltd. 
 
The new franchise will deliver nearly £1 billion of investment on services in the 
West Midlands. This will mean more space on trains, more frequent services 
and better facilities for passengers. For further information on the key benefits 
please refer to Appendix A. 
 
The new Franchise will run from 10th December 2017 until March 2026. 
 
Comments and Next Steps  
 
WMR’s interests extend beyond rail franchising and it is more than simply 
transferring powers from one tier of government to another. It is instead about 
translating those devolved responsibilities into meaningful actions that benefit 
local passengers, stakeholders and businesses 
 
WMR has therefore published its aspiration for a regional rail network that is 
characterised by consistently high standards of customer service and service 
delivery regardless of the identity of the train operator. This is known as the 
Single Network Vision. 
 
WMR are also pioneering a new approach to the management of rail stations. 
This involves working with Network Rail, who own the stations, and the train 
companies who manage them, to identify and secure funding to enable an 
agreed programme of station enhancements to be developed and delivered. 
 

Page 109



   

 

 

Finally WMR is developing a rail investment strategy for the WMR area. This 
covers a 30-year time period and is split into four time frames. The Strategy 
will build upon individual local authority rail strategies and focus on outputs 
and evidence based priorities to meet the region’s goals.   
 
A future update will be presented to the Prosperous Staffordshire Select 
Committee outlining how the County Council’s active involvement in 
influencing the rail agenda is delivering improvements to the rail offer for 
Staffordshire’s rail passengers if the Committee deems it appropriate.     
 
Conclusion  
 
Greater local control over the region’s rail network will further stimulate 
economic growth as local and national investment can be channelled into 
meeting local needs. At the same time, the rail franchises can be designed 
and managed to be responsive to the requirements of the communities they 
serve, bringing people and businesses across the region together. This will 
not only benefit Staffordshire but also the West Midlands and the country as a 
whole, as a more effective railway supports sustainable economic growth, 
offers an attractive option for business and leisure travels, and provides value 
for money for the tax-payer and the fare-payer.  

 
Contact details  
Clare Horton 
Connectivity Strategy Officer 
Clare.horton@staffordshire.gov.uk  
01785 276636 
 
 

 

Page 110

mailto:Clare.horton@staffordshire.gov.uk


Appendix A – West Midlands Franchise Key Benefits  
  
Key benefits will include: 
 

 20,000 extra seats into Birmingham with standing room for 50,000 
passengers in the AM and PM peaks. 

 Two separable business units; one for the West Midlands and the other for 
services on the West Coast Mainline. WMR will have lead contract 
management of the services in the West Midlands Business Unit. This is to 
ensure the new franchise will be responsive to regional needs (Please refer to 
Appendix B for a Map of the two separable business units). 

 The West Midlands separable business unit will receive a unique brand, 
known as West Midlands Railway.  

 Passengers will be entitled to 25% compensation if their train is delayed by 15 
minutes. They will continue to receive 50% refund for delays of 30 minutes 
and full compensation if it is more than 1-hour. 

 New and refurbished train carriages creating more space for people. 

 Free Wi-Fi will be available on all main line trains by the end of December 
2019 

 More accessible services with a reduction in the period of prior notice required 
for passenger assist.  

 A service quality regime to improve the quality of stations, trains and customer 
service for passengers.  

 Improved passenger information 

 Smart ticketing 

 Investment in Station improvements to deliver for example new car park 
spaces, new cycle parking spaces, new and refurbished waiting rooms and 
more seats at stations. 

 Investment in Community Rail  

 Station Alliance with West Midlands Rail and Network Rail 
 

In addition to the above, Staffordshire residents will also see the following 
improvements: 
 
Chase Line (Rugeley – Cannock – Walsall – Birmingham) 
 

 Electric rolling stock introduced following completion of the electrification 
works 

 A half-hourly service between Birmingham, Walsall and Rugeley Trent Valley 
Monday to Saturday by December 2018 and on Sundays by May 2021 

 Earlier and later services between Birmingham and Rugeley Trent Valley 
including on a Sunday 

 New hourly direct services planned between Rugeley Trent Valley, Cannock 
and London via Birmingham New Street, Birmingham International and 
Coventry. 

 
 
 
 

Page 111



Cross City Line (Lichfield – Birmingham – Bromsgrove/Redditch) 
 

 Investment in more than 100 brand new electric carriages introduced from 
2020 specially designed and dedicated to the Cross City Line 

 Extension of services from Lichfield City to Lichfield Trent Valley to provide 4 
services per hour Monday to Saturday by December 2018 and on Sundays by 
May 2021 

 Earlier and later services between Birmingham and Lichfield  

 Extension of Cross City services to Bromsgrove once the line is electrified in 
December 2018 

 A robust strategy to deliver services during the autumn leaf-fall period 
 
 Shrewsbury Line (Shrewsbury – Codsall – Wolverhampton – Birmingham) 
 

 Carriages will be fully refurbished and supported by investment in 80 brand 
new diesel carriages introduced by 2020 

 Additional services to create a regular all-day half-hourly service between 
Birmingham and Shrewsbury Monday to Saturday by December 2018 in 
addition to the current hourly service operated by Arriva Trains Wales 

 Between Shrewsbury and Wolverhampton the new hourly service shall call as 
a minimum at Wellington, Telford, Shifnal and Codsall 

 A new hourly Sunday West Midlands Franchise service between Shrewsbury, 
Codsall and Birmingham with 2 services per hour provided by May 2021. This 
will replace the current less frequent Arriva Trains Wales Service. 

 
Birmingham to Crewe Line (Birmingham to Stoke-on-Trent – Crewe) 
 

 A new hourly service between Crewe, Kidsgrove, Stoke-on-Trent, Stone, 
Stafford and London via Birmingham New Street, Birmingham International 
and Coventry.  

 A regular all-day service for Stone and Kidsgrove 

 Additional calls during the morning and evening rush hours at Stone and 
Kidsgrove compared to today 

 Additional evening services during the week and at weekends 

 Journey connections at Stafford for passengers wishing to use the existing 
London via Trent Valley service 

 A new station car-park at Stone   
 
Liverpool to Birmingham Line (Liverpool – Crewe – Stafford – Birmingham) 
 

 Later last service from Birmingham to Liverpool on a Saturday by December 
2018 

 Enhanced Sunday frequency between Birmingham and Liverpool increasing 
from 1 to 2 services an hour by May 2021 

 Earlier first services between Birmingham and Liverpool in both directions on 
a Sunday and a later last service from Birmingham to Liverpool 

 New hourly direct services to London planned between Liverpool, Crewe, 
Stafford, Birmingham New Street, Birmingham International and Coventry  

Page 112



 Extension of one Liverpool to Birmingham service planned to Birmingham 
International. 

 Half-hourly service in both directions at Penkridge 
 
London to Crewe Service (Crewe – Stafford – Rugeley – Lichfield – Tamworth - 
London) 
 

 Longer trains providing additional capacity on this busy route 

 Journey times between London and Crewe via the Trent Valley are reduced 
from December 2018 as services run fast between Crewe and Stafford 

 Later last service from London Euston to Crewe via the Trent Valley Monday 
to Friday by December 2018 

 Later last service from London Euston to Crewe via the Trent Valley on 
Saturdays by December 2018 

 Earlier first service from Crewe to London Euston on Sundays by May 2021 

 Extra car park spaces at Tamworth Rail Station 
 
  
 

Page 113





Appendix B: West Midlands Franchise Separable Business Units  

 

 

 

Page 115




	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee held on 10 October 2017
	Minutes

	4 Supported Bus Network
	Appendix A for Supported Bus Network
	Appendix B for Supported Bus Network

	5 Progress on the Countryside Estate
	Appendix A for Countryside Estate Review - Prosperous Staffordshire
	Sheet1


	6 Infrastructure+ Improvement Plan and Performance Review / Highways Extra Investment
	Appendix A for Infrastructure+ Improvement Plan and Performance Review
	Pothole Patching
	Structural Maintenance 


	7 Work Programme
	7a West Midlands Rail Briefing Note
	Appendix A for West Midlands Rail (Briefing Report)
	Appendix B for West Midlands Rail (Briefing Report)


